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Financial Highlights

N

Consolidated Statement of Operations Data

In thousands, except per share data 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Total revenue 544,619 $52,859 $52)46 526,405 526,373
Operating expenses 543,806 546,492 $45,074 546,297 S 61,792
Net {loss) income S 902 5 6,427 5 6,528 518,805 5(33,434)
Net lloss) income allocable

io common stockholders § (727) S 4,827 S 4928 5124.212) $(35,362)

Diluted net lloss) income

allocable to common

stockholders per share $ (006 S 038 S 034 S5 (1671 S (198}
Consclidated Balance Sheet Data
In thousands 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

Cash, cash equivalents

and short-term invesiments $ 10112 $32,670 $38,645 $44,425 565830
Working capital $ 50892 $32010 $39714 $34,643 559,636
Total assets $17634 $44)132 $52,346 $ 49165 $ 79,207
Total stockholders’ equity $ 8,352 $33956 3 41,215 535668 562,302

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Research and Development
Short-term Investments lin millions)
{in millions at year end, December 31
560 $15.0
$50 $12.5
540 $10.0
$30 $7.5
520 $5.0
S10 $2.5

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

2005 2006

2003 2004



ColtaGenex Pharmaceuticals, Inc. is a specialty
pharmaceutical company focused on developing and
marketing propriefary, innovative medical therapies for the
dermatology market. The Company currently markets four
prescription dermatology products, including its flagship
product, Oracea™ through its own highly-focused and
experienced sales force. Oracea was launched during
2006 as the first FDA-approved, systemic drug for the
treatment of rosacea.

The Company’s goal is to become a leading company
in therapeutic dermatology. In addition to its marketed
products, CollaGenex has a sirong pipeline of

development-stage prescription dermatology products.

Tho rmmed vrliimp - ad o ey a 1niAa arhirh

currenily in Phose Il dose-ranging studies for the treatment
of acne and rosacea. Anotherimportant pipeline product
is Col-118, a topical preduct that recently completed
the clinical portion of Phase I trials for the treatment of
erythema [skin redness) associated with rosocea ond
other dermatological conditions. To further expand the
Company’s pipeline and leverage ils development and
commercialization strengths, CollaGenex has an aclive
business development program to identify and acquire
rights to other innovative proprietary pipeline products
and technologies that offer promise in the freatment of
dermotological diseases.

CollaGenex is traded on the NASDAQ Global Market




To Our Stockholders:

2006 was a year of significant accomplishment for CollaGenex.

Our first development-stage dermatology product was approved by the FDA and
commercially launched ahead of schedule. We significantly strengthened our
patent estate, advanced our product development pipeline, secured a European

partner for Oracea and substantially enhanced our balance sheet.

Ready. Set. Launch.

We were extremely pleased that Oraceq, our
flagship development drug for the treatment of

rosaceaq, was approved by the FDA on May 26,

2006, slightly less than ten months after our NDA
submissicn. While we had planned for a July
approval and September iaunch, we also had
plans in place to support an earlier launch. At
the time of FDA approval, we had a fully-staffed
and trained sales force, marketing materials
ready to be finalized, and manufactured

product awaiting final packaging ond labeling.

When we received FDA approval earlier than
expected, these preparations enabled us to
launch Oracea successfully to dermatologists
at the American Academy of Dermotology
Summer Meeting in July.

it has been a tremendous launch. From July
through December 2006, nearly 92,000
Oracen prescriptions were filled. Oracea nei

sales for 2006 were $11.9 million, exceeding
our plans that anticipated $9 million. Most
importanily, we believe that dermatologists
and their patients now have a safe, effective
and convenient oral treatment for rosacea.

Oracea is indicated for the treaiment of
inflammatory lesions in adull patients with
rosaceq, a disease characterized by papules
and pustules, erythema {skin redness) and/
or telangiectasia (spidery veins). Our pivotal
Phase lll clinical studies demonstrated a greater
than 50% average reduction in inflammatory
lesions in rosacea patients. Patients take an
Oracea capsule just once a day, a convenient
alternative to the topical gels ond creams
previously approved to treat rosacea.

in our Phase IV clinical study program, we
are conlinuing to examine additional ways 10
optimize the clinical outcome of rosacea therapy
for doctors and their pafients. in February 2007,
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a poster was presented at the Annual Meeting of
the American Academy of Dermaiology highlighting
the effectiveness of combining Oracea with topical
meironidazole, the leading topical treatment for
rosaceq. This study also demonstrated the effectiveness
of Oracea alone as a maintenance therapy.

Based on prescription data, Oracea appears to be
expanding the estimated $500 million market for
drugs to treat rosaceq. Since only about 1.4 million
of the 14 million rosacea sutferers annually seek
treatment, we believe there is significant potential to
continue to expand Oracea usage in this market.

Additional Victories Throughout 2006

In addition to the exciting early approval and
launch of Oraceq, we continued to make significant
progress on a number of other important initiotives
and programs.

In early 2006, we submitted our dossier for approval to
market Oracea to the European regulatory authorities,
and we believe this approval will occur during
2007. In late 2006, we entered into an agreement
with MediGene AG, a German biopharmaceutical
company, for rights to market Oracea in Europe and
certain other countries. MediGene plans to build a
dermatology sales force to market Cracea and its

own prescription dermatology product, which is
also awaiting European regulatory approval. The
agreement provided for a non-refundable, upfront
licensing fee of $5 million, up o $7.5 million in
milestone payments based on achieving ceriain
annual sales thresholds, and royalties on future sales
of Oracea in the specified territories.

During 2006, we made significant progress in
advancing our pipeline of dermatology products. We
recently announced positive results from the Phase Il
dose-finding study of incyclinide for the treatment of
acne that we conducted in 2006. The highest dose
studied, 20 mg per day, was safe and effective in
treating acne. In March 2007, we continued the Phase
Il study to seek to optimize the dose by adding a
higher dose cohori. In 2006, we also initiated a Phase
Il dose-finding study for the use of incyclinide to treat
rosaceq, which is expected to be completed in the
third quarter of 2007,

We also developed several formulations of Col-118,
our fopical freatment for erythema (skin redness), and
initicted Phase | clinical trials in November 2006. The
clinical portion of these trials was recently completed,
and we expect to initiate Phase il clinical trials with
Col-118 during the second quarter of 2007. We are very
excited about the potential of this drug tc be the first
effective treatment for erythema, a significant and
clinically frustrating unmet medical need.
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Strong intellectual property is a cornersione of our
efforis to build a successful, long-term, sustainable
dermatology franchise. We significantly strengthened
our patent estate during 2006 by requesting confinuing
examination of our Oracea patent 709 following our
discovery of information that could potentially have
been perceived as relevant prior art.* The USPTO
examined the new information and issued a new
notice of allowance preserving all claims relating to
Oraceq. This patent should issue during the first half
of 2007.

Increasing Shots on Goal

While we believe that we have one of the most
promising product development pipelines in the
dermatology industry, we are committed to continuing
to invest in innovative potential compounds and
technologies to augment our pipeline. To this end, we
continuously and proactively identify opportunities
for bringing new development stage products and
technologies into our company through our business
development program.

Col-N8 is an excellent example of our strategy. In
December 2005, we acquired majority ownership of
a company called SansRosa, whose primary asset
was intellectual property covering the use of a class
of compounds to treat erythema, which is the bright

redness and flushing associated with rosacea and
other dermatological conditions. These compounds
have been approved for other uses where they act as
peripheral vasoconstrictors, and they have a proven
long-term safety record. When applied topically, one
of these compounds appears to constrict the blood
vessels in the face that cause erythema.

We paid a modest upfront fee for the rights to this
technology and will pay additional fees based on
the achievernent of certain clinicol milestones and @
rayalty on future sales. Because the compounds are
known to be safe, we believe we have been able to
eliminate a significant risk in the drug development
process while structuring future payments that are
dependent on the project’s success.

Ensuring a Winning Plan

We believe it is critically important fo operate from a
strong balance sheet so that we can adequately fund
the programs that will provide for the future growth
of the company. in November 2006, we completed
a highly successful common stock offering which
provided the Company with net proceeds of $42.5
million. At December 31, 2006, our cash and short
term equivalents were $65.8 million, which does not
include the $5 million upfront licensing fee we received
in 2007, as part of our agreement with MediGene.

*Previous teochings in 1he field used 10 decide wheiher ihe inveniion Is sufficiently unique and non-intuitive to qualify for patent protection




In 2006, we also expanded our working capital line
of credit from $5 million up to $10 million, giving us
additional financial flexibility to further support the
future success of our business.

Our 2006 income statement reflects both the successful
launch of Oracea and our commitment fo research
and development. Total net revenues of $26.4 million
included $11.9 million in Oracea sales, significantly
exceeding our guidance of approximately $9 million.
Research and development expense was $15.4 million.
Our net loss allocable to common stockholders per
basic and diluted share was $1.98, significantly better
than our guidance of $2.15.

Pulling Ahead

2007 should also see significant progress for
CollaGenex Pharmaceuticals.

We infend to continue building the prescription base
for Oracea with our highly-focused dermatology sales
force, innovative marketing programs and targeted
managed care efforts. We expect to advance our
development activities and complete Phase |l dose-
finding trials with incyclinide for acne and rosacea
and enter Phase |l trials for Col-118. We also hope to
complete the acquisition of at least one new product
or technology candidate. Finally, we expect to see the

continued strengthening of our patent estate through
the final issuance of our Oracea 709 patent and a
notice of allowance of the ‘656 patent application
covering incyclinide.

We look forward to updating you on our progress
during 2007. Thank you very much for your
conlinuing support.

(o, Moo

Colin W. Stewart
President and Chief Executive Officer




Moving Forward

CollaGenex is committed to advancing its position in therapeutic
dermatology. The Company has developed a solid infrastructure
with a focus on the dermatology market, a strong financial position,
a pipeline of innovative products in development, strong scientific
expertise, an active program to acquire and in-license products and
technologies, an in-house sales force to market existing products,
a strengthening intellectual property position and an experienced
management team. The combination of these important elements
will enable the Company to continue to chart a new course in
therapeutic dermatology successfully.

The executive management team of CollaGenex addresses each of
these elements in greater detail on the following pages.

>>










Focusing on the Dermatology Market

A core element of our corporate strategy is to remain
focused solely on the dermatology market. Over the
foreseeable future, we will concentrate on therapeutic
dermatology, where we believe we have an exciting
pipeline, proven development capabilities and a strong
commercialization platform. Therapeutic dermatology
is an $8.6 billion market opportunity, and the indications
we are targeting with our current product portfolio and
pipeline — rosaceq, acne, dermatitis and psoriasis -
account for approximately $3.1 billion of the
prescriptions filled in dermatology.

- Colin W. Stewart President and Chief Executive Officer
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Maintaining Strong Financials

A strong balance sheet is a cornerstone of our
corporate strategy. While we are proud of our
commercial accomplishments as a young and
emerging dermatology company, we will not
sacrifice the long-term value creation from our drug
development portfolio at the expense of focusing
solely on achieving near-term profitability. Our
obijective is to build a broad and deep pipeline of
products to provide an engine for the long-term
growth and sustainability of the Company. A strong
balance sheet is essential to assure that we have
the capability to continue to invest in this pipeline.

- Nancy C. Broadbent Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer







Building a Leading Franchise with Our Own R&D

Therapeutic dermatology has seen little innovation for many years. Outside
of the biological drugs developed to treat psoriasis, very few, truly novel
dermatological drugs have been developed over the past several decades.
Most new products are simply reformulations of existing compounds, with
few or no therapeutic or safety advantages.

We believe that changing this paradigm will create substantial value for both our
patients and our stockholders. We seek to develop products that significantly
improve the therapeutic outcome and/or reduce the side effects of drug therapy
for dermatologic diseases. Oraceais the first FDA-approved, tefracycline-based
drug that is both highly effective and safe when administered as long-term
therapy for the treatment of rosacea with the convenience of once-daily oral
administration. Incyclinide is a new chemical entity that we believe could offer
a potent, systemic anti-inflammatory treatment for acne and rosaceaq, with a
favorable safety profile. Col-118, if successfully developed, would be the only
effective freatment for erythema.

CollaGenex does not own or operate any laboratories. We carry out our mission
with a small group of highly trained and experienced physicians, scientists
and managers who direct and manage the activities of externolly-sourced
laboratories, contract research organizations, physicians and consultants.
This allows us to be quick and efficient without sacrificing quality.

- Klaus P. Theobald, M.D., Ph.D. Senior Vice President and Chief Medical Officer
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Augmenting the Portfolio by Licensing
New Products and Technologies

While we believe that we have one of the most promising and innovative
development pipelines in therapeutic dermatology, we are committed to
continuing to invest in potential compounds and technologies that offer
unique therapeutic or safety profile benefits. To this end, we have a very
active business development program to identify opportunities for bringing
new development stage products and technologies into our company.

Col-118 is an excellent example of our strategy. In December 2005, we acquired

a majority interest in a company called SansRosa, whose primary asset

was intellectual property covering the use of a class of compounds to treat

erythema, which is the bright redness and flushing associated with rosacea

and other dermatological conditions. These compounds have been approved

for other uses where they act as peripheral vasoconstrictors, and they have

a long safety record. When applied topically, one of these compounds, Col-
118, appears to constrict the blood vessels in the face that cause erythema.
Severa! formulations of Col-118 recently completed the clinical portion of Phase

| trials, and this compound will move into Phase I development during the

second quarter of this year.

We paid a modest upfront fee for the rights to this technology and will pay
additional fees for clinical milestones and a royalty on future sales. Because
the compounds are known to be safe, we believe we have been able to
eliminate a significant risk in the drug development process while structuring
future payments that are dependent on the project’s success.

- J. Gregory Ford Vice President, Business Development and Strategic Planning







Retaining Value with Our Own Sales Force

Many emerging companies with a strong R&D focus choose to
sell to or share the commercialization rights of their pipelines and
products with others. These arrangements typically take the form
of licensing and/or co-promotion agreements.

Our intent has been to maximize stockholder value by retaining
all the commercialization rights to our products in the U.S. and by
marketing our products with our own highly-trained, specialized
dermatology sales force. The size and dynamics of the U.S. derma-
tology market allow us to do this. Outside of the U.S., we intend
to license the marketing rights to our products to foreign national
pharmaceutical companies.

There are currently 11,000 dermatologists in the U.S., and 5,600 of
these dermatologists write 85% of the prescriptions for rosacea prod-
ucts. With our sales force of 70 representatives and 10 managers,
we can call on these doctors with total reach and optimal frequency.
The size and competence of our sales force also makes us an
attractive marketing partner for companies seeking 1o out-license
their products.

- David F. Pfeiffer Senior Vice President, Sales and Markefing
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Focusing on Differentiated Products with Strong IP Protection

Intellectual property is another important cornerstone of our strategy. We will
develop only proprietary, innovative prescription drugs around which we can
build regulatory exclusivity, patent protection and registrable brand names.

We seek ways to create an innovative product portfolio that is supported by
multiple layers of intellectual property protection. We try to tailor that protection
to the various characteristics of our products. With respect to Oraceq, for instance,
we have patents or pending patent applications that cover its use to freat the
indications recited in the package insert, its mechanism of action, its formulation
and its dosage. Similarly, incyclinide and Col-118 are covered by pending use
patent applications and will be entitled to FOA regulatory exclusivity if approved
for sale. We will also seek to develop and protect innovative formulations in
which these products may be presented.

At the same time, we understand the importance of licensing or acquiring
products and technologies that enjoy robust intellectual property protection.
We conduct extensive intellectual property due diligence on compounds or
technologies that we seek to bring in, and we continue to work with our licensors
to ensure a continuous flow of patentable innovations into the Company.

We understand that a strong focus on developing and protecting intellectual
property is critically important to building a long-term dermatology franchise.

- Andrew K. Powell Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary
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PART1
Item L. Business.

General

CollaGenex Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and subsidiaries is a specialty pharmaceutical company currently
focused on developing and marketing innovative proprietary medical therapies to the dermatology market.
We currently market four prescription pharmaceutical products to the dermatology market through our
professional dermatology sales force and generate revenues from four other prescription pharmaceutical
products that we continue to sell to the dental market. In May 2006, the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration, or the FDA, granted us marketing approval for Oracea™ for the treatment of
inflammatory lesions (papules and pustules) of rosacea in adult patients. Oracea is the first FDA approved,
orally-administered, systemically-delivered drug 1o treat rosacea. In July 2006, we launched Oracea to the
U.S. dermatology community.

Our strategy is to become a leading developer and marketer of innovative prescription pharmaceutical
products to the dermatology market. We intend to continue to market our current products, including
Oracea, and develop and launch new products based on our proprietary platform technologies as well as
other technologies. Our lead development candidates are: incyclinide (formerly known as COL-3), which is
currently in two separate Phase II dose-finding clinical trials for the treatment of acne and rosacea; COL-
118, a topical compound for which we are developing for the treatment of erythema (skin redness}
associated with dermatological conditions and for which we recently completed the clinical portion of a
Phase I clinical trial; and our Restoraderm®, a foam-based, topical dermal drug delivery system, which is
currently under development.

Our marketed dermatology products are: Oracea; Pandel®, a prescription corticosteroid we licensed
from Altana, Inc. in May 2002; Alcortin™, a prescription topical antifungal steroid combination; and
Novacort™, a prescription topical steroid and anesthetic. In June 2005, we executed a Promotion and
Cooperation Agreement with Primus Pharmaceuticals Inc., or Primus, to market Alcortin and Novacort to
dermatologists.

Our original dental product, Periostat®, is an orally-administered, prescription pharmaceutical
product that was approved by the FDA in September 1998 for the treatment of adult periodontitis. On
May 20, 2005, we terminated our domestic dental sales force and promotional activities for Periostat
following the introduction of a third party generic version of the product. We also discontinued the
promotion of our other dental products on May 20, 2005. We continue to generate sales from Periostat
and three other dental products, which include Atridox®, Atrisorb FreeFlow® and Atrisorb-D®, also
referred to as the Atrix Products, and are each licensed from Tolmar Inc., a subsidiary of Tecnofarma, S.A.

In addition to our marketed products, we have a pipeline of product candidates in clinical and
preclinical development. These products are based on our proprietary platform technologies, IMPACS™,
SansRosa™ and Restoraderm.

IMPACS (Inhibitors of Multiple Proteases And CytokineS) are a group of compounds that
demonstrate a range of anti-inflammatory activities as well as the ability to inhibit the breakdown of
connective tissue. Periostat and Oracea are our first FDA-approved IMPACS products. incyclinide is an
IMPACS compound currently in clinical development for the treatment of acne and rosacea. Qur
IMPACS technology is licensed on a perpetual basis from the Research Foundation of the State University
of New York at Stony Brook, or SUNY. SUNY also conducts research and development on other potential
applications of this technology on a project basis. Qur SansRosa technology, which we acquired in
connection with the step acquisition of SansRosa Pharmaceutical Development Inc., or SansRosa, in
December 2005, is a class of compounds that have shown promise in reducing the redness assaciated with
rosacea, and we intend to formulate and develop a topical treatment for rosacea based on one or more of
these compounds. Our Restoraderm technology is a proprietary, foam-based, topical drug delivery




technology that originated from a Swedish collaborator. We have acquired all rights, title and interest to
the Restoraderm technology. We have formulated various prescription and over-the-counter products
based on the Restoraderm technology. We are currently in the process of developing a timetable for
clinical development or commercial launch of the Restoraderm products.

On March 1, 2007, we announced results of a Phase II dose-finding study designed to evaluate the
safety and determine the therapeutic range of incyclinide for the treatment of acne. The study determined
the minimum effective incyclinide dose for the treatment of acne, which was 10 mg per day, and greater
efficacy was observed at 20 mg per day. We will continue the dose optimization trial and initiate an
additional Phase II cohort with the objective to determine the maximum effective dose.

The double-blind, placebo-controlled trial enrolled a total of 302 acne patients at twenty-seven
centers. The patients were divided among four arms of the study and administered either a placebo capsule
or a 5 mg, 10 mg or 20 mg incyclinide capsule. Patients were enrolled in three sequential cohorts, each
consisting of an active treatment group and a smaller placebo group. The first cohort received the lowest
dose of 5 mg incyclinide and each subsequent cohort escalated to the next higher dose level of 10 mg and
20 mg, respectively. The total number of placebo patients across the three cohorts was approximately the
same as each of the active treatment groups. Study-wide and in-cohort placebo analyses were conducted to
detect possible effects of the seasons on the placebo response. Absent treatment, acne patients typically
improve during the summer months and worsen during the winter months.

On February 1, 2007 we received written notice of termination from Altana, Inc. which provides for
the termination of the Sublicense Agreement relating to Pandel effective November 1, 2007.

On December 18, 2006, we executed a Product License and Supply Agreement with MediGene AG, a
corporation existing under the laws of Germany, for the marketing rights to Oracea. Under the Product
License and Supply Agreement, effective January 1, 2007, MediGene receives the right to manufacture,
register, market and sell Oracea in the European Union, certain contiguous countries and Russia. We
received an upfront fee of $5.0 million less applicable withholding taxes of approximately $1.0 miltion, for
which we expect to be reimbursed during 2007, related to the execution of the agreement and are entitled
to an additional $7.5 million in milestone payments upon the achievement of certain annual sales
thresholds. In addition, we will receive an agreed upon transfer price and a royalty of 12% of annual net
sales up to $10 million and 15% of annual net sales in excess of $10 million in the specified territories.

On November 21, 2006, we sold 3.5 million shares of our common stock to institutional and other
investors for an aggregate gross purchase price of $45.5 million. The net proceeds of the offering were
approximately $42.5 million after deducting the placement agency and financial advisory fees and all
offering expenses that were payable by us.

On November 3, 2006, we announced that the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office, or the USPTO, had
listed the status of U5, Patent Application, Serial No. 10/117,709, or the 709 Patent, as “allowed,” and that
the allowed claims cover the use of sub-antimicrobial tetracyclines for the treatment of acne and acne
rosacea, including Oracea and incyclinide.

On October 9, 2006, we entered into a Sixth Loan Modification Agreement, or the Subsequent
Modification Agreement, with Silicon Valley Bank, or SVB, to amend and renew the Loan and Security
Agreement between us and SVB dated March 19, 2001, as previously amended, or the Loan Agreement,
Pursuant to the terms of the Subsequent Modification Agreement, the expiration date of amended credit
facility has been extended to October 9, 2008. Under the amended credit facility, we may borrow up to the
lesser of (i) $10.0 million or (ii) 80% of eligible reccivables plus certain specified amounts, subject to
reduction during the period October 9, 2006 through December 31, 2007.

We are a Delaware corporation. We were incorporated and began operations in 1992 under the name
CollaGenex, Inc. and changed our name to CollaGenex Pharmaceuticals, Inc. in April 1996. Our principal




executive offices are located at 41 University Drive, Suite 200, Newtown, Pennsylvania 18940, and our
telephone number is (215) 579-7388.

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the terms “CollaGenex,” “we,” “us” and “our” includes
CollaGenex Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and its subsidiaries.

We are subject to the informational requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, or the Exchange Act, and, accordingly, file reports, proxy statements and other information with
the Securities and Exchange Commission. Such reports, proxy statements and other information can be
read and copied at the public reference facilitics maintained by the Securities and Exchange Commission
at the Public Reference Room, 100 F Street, N.E., Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549. Information
regarding the operation of the Public Reference Room may be obtained by calling the Securities and
Exchange Commission at 1-800-SEC-0330. The Securities and Exchange Commission maintains a web site
(http://www.sec.gov) that contains material regarding issuers that file electronically with the Securities and
Exchange Commission.

Our website is www.collagenex.com. We are not including the information contained on our web site
as a part of, or incorporating it by reference into, this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We make available
free of charge on our website our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q,
Current Reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file
such material with, or furnish it to, the Securities and Exchange Commission.

CollaGenex Pharmaceuticals, Inc., trademarks:

Oracea™, Periostat®, Metastat®, Dermostat®, Nephrostat®, Osteostat®, Arthrostat®,
Rheumastat®, Corneostat®, Gingistat®, IMPACS™, PS20®, The Whole Mouth Treatment®,
Restoraderm®, Dentaplex®, Lytra™, Periostat-MR™, SansRosa™, Unorthodoxy™,
Unorthodoxycycline™, Aprecin™, Zedara™, Optistat®, Xerostat®, Periocycline®, Periostatus®,
CollaGenex®, Dermastat®, Periostan®, Periostat-SR®, “C” Logo® and “The Whole Mouth Treatment”
Logo®, Esteemax™, Rubazil™, Lytrazine™, Palytra™, Lytrazac™, Presteme™, Erubatin™, Rosoral™,
Reveeril™, Cycavin™, Zyclinil™, and Impaken™.

Marks listed as registered herein may be registered in the United States or in other jurisdictions. All
other trade names, trademarks or service marks appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are the
property of their respective owners and are not property of CollaGenex Pharmaceuticals, Inc. or any of our
subsidiaries.

Products and Product Agreements

Our Currently Marketed Dermatology Products

The four prescription pharmaceutical dermatology products that we currently market are summarized
below:

Products Territory Where Marketed Marketing Partner
Oracea............... United States None

Pandel ............... United States Altana, Inc.
Alcortin.............. United States Primus Pharmaceuticals, [nc.
Novacort ............. United States Primus Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Oracea

In May 2006, the FDA approved Oracea for the treatment of inflammatory lesions (papules and
pustules) of rosacea in adult patients. Oracea is the first FDA-approved, orally-administered, systemically-
delivered drug to treat the inflammatory lesions (papules and pustules) of rosacea in adults. Rosacea is a
chronic disease affecting an estimated 14 million adults in the United States. While the exact cause is



unknown, chronic inflammation appears to play a primary role in the pathology of rosacea. In July 2006,
we launched Oracea to the U.S. dermatology community. Oracea, a 40 mg dose of doxycycline
monohydrate in a capsule formulation of 30 mg immediate release and 10 mg delayed release beads,
delivers anti-inflammatory actions without demonstrated antimicrobial effects. Oracea is dosed once-daily.
Oracea is not bioequivalent to other doxycycline formulations; it has no generic equivalent. In clinical
trials, Oracea has demonstrated a side effect profile similar to placebo. Safety beyond nine months has not
been established.

On February 24, 2006, we filed a Marketing Authorization Application for Oracea with the United
Kingdom’s Medicines and Healthcare Products Regulatory Agency. The United Kingdom will act as the
Reference Member State in reviewing and processing this Application pursuant to the decentralized
procedure for the approval and issuance of Marketing Authorizations in selected countries of the
European Union. On March 21, 2006, the European Patent Office published on its website that patent
application 02731267.7 (the European counterpart to the 709 Patent) was allowed. This patent has a
priority date of April 5, 2002 and covers the use of sub anti-microbial doxycycline in the treatment of acne
and rosacea, including Oracea.

On December 18, 2006, we executed a Product License and Supply Agreement, effective January 1,
2007, pursuant to which MediGene receives the right to manufacture, reglster market and sell Oracea in
the European Union, certain contiguous countries and Russia.

Pandel

In May 2002, we executed a Sublicense Agreement with Altana, Inc., the United States subsidiary of
Altana Pharma AG, pursuant to which we were granted the exclusive right to create improvements to,
market, advertise, promote, distribute, offer for sale and sell, in the United States and Puerto Rico,
Pandel, a mid-potency topical corticosteroid cream indicated for the relief of mild-to-moderate
inflammatory disorders of the skin in adults, such as atopic dermatitis and psoriasis. Altana currently
licenses the rights to Pandel from Taisho Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., a company organized and existing
under the laws of Japan. Pursuant to the terms of our sublicense, we paid Altana an aggregate sublicense
fee of $1.7 million in 2002. We purchase from Altana all Pandel products to be sold and promotional
samples, and we are required to pay Altana a royalty fee equal to a percentage of the net sales of Pandel.
In November 2006, the sublicense agreement with Altana was amended to among other things permit
Altana to terminate the agreement at any time upon nine months prior written notice. On February 1,
2007, we received written notice of termination from Altana which provides for the termination of the
Sublicense Agreement effective November 1, 2007. Under the terms of the agreement we are entitled to a
payment of $1,7 million from Altana, which represents initial license fees paid to Altana. Such payment is
due from Altana upon termination of the agreement.

Alcontin and Novacort

On June 6, 2005, we executed a Promotion and Cooperation Agreement with Primus. Under this
agreement, we acquired the right to promote Alcortin and Novacort to dermatologists in the United
States. Alcortin (1% iedoquinol and 2% hydrocortisone) is a prescription topical antifungal steroid
combination, and Novacort (2% hydrocortisone acetate and 1% pramoxine HCI) is a prescription topical
steroid and anesthetic. Both products contain a proprietary Biopeptide Aloe Complex™ which is designed
to improve skin penetration and help reduce inflammation. We have agreed to (i) maintain, manage and
compensate a direct sales force sufficient to make the products the subject of an agreed number of detail
calls in the United States, and (ii) achieve certain agreed combined levels of sales of the products during a
three-year period. In exchange for our services, we earn a quarterly fee from Primus based on a percentage
of the gross profit arising from prescriptions written by dermatologists that result in sales of the products in
the United States. Through June 30, 2006, the majority of marketing expenses, excluding sales force
compensation and sample product costs, related to the promotion of the Primus products were funded by




Primus and the majority of product sample costs and all sales force compensation were funded by us.
Pursuant to an amendment executed in October 2006, effective July 1, 2006, sample expenses and
marketing costs, excluding sales force compensation, are funded 60% by us and 40% by Primus.

Other Product Offerings
Periostat

Periostat, a 20 mg dose of doxycycline hyclate, is a unique sub-anti-microbial dosage strength of
doxycycline that suppresses the chronic and progressive tissue degradation characteristic of adult
periodontitis, without exerting any anti-microbial effect. Adult periodontitis is a chronic disease
characterized by the progressive loss of attachment between the periodontal ligament and the surrounding
alveolar bone, as well as breakdown of the alveolar bone itself, ultimately resulting in tooth loss.

In September 1998, the FDA granted United States marketing approval for Periostat as an adjunct to
scaling and root planing, or SRP, to promote attachment leve! gain and reduce pocket depth in patients
with adult periodontitis. Periostat was made available for prescription use in November 1998 and was fully
launched commercially in January 1999. In May 2005, a third party generic version of Periostat was
introduced to the dental market, and we discontinued all direct selling and promotional activities for
Periostat in the United States. We had also sold a separately branded version of Periostat to United
Research Laboratories, Inc/Mutual Pharmaceutical Company, Inc., or Mutual, pursuant to a License and
Supply Agreement executed in April 2004 as part of a settlement of our outstanding patent litigation with
Mutual. As a result of the launch of a third party generic version of Periostat in May 2005, Mutual ceased
purchasing product from us during June 2005.

On November 3, 2004, CollaGenex International Ltd, or CIL, our wholly-owned U K. subsidiary, sold
its U.K. and European dental assets to Alliance Pharma plc, a UK. specialty pharmaceuticals company.
This agreement provided for the sale by CIL to Alliance of certain trademark rights, U.K. and European
governmental marketing authorizations, distribution agreements and other intangible assets relating to the
sale or potential sale of Periostat in the U.K., Europe, Israel, South Africa, New Zealand and Australia.
We also entered into a Supply Agreement with Alliance pursuant to which we supply Periostat in bulk
tablet form to Alliance at a negotiated fair value transfer price.

Atridox, Atrisorb FreeFlow and Atrisorb-D

Pursuant to the terms of an exclusive License and Marketing Agreement that we executed with Atrix
Laboratories, Inc. (now known as Tolmar Inc.) in August 2001, we obtained the right to market, sell and
distribute Atrix’s proprietary dental products, Atridox, Atrisorb FreeFlow and Atrisorb-D to the United
States dental community.

Atridox is a locally-applied, anti-microbial therapy for the treatment of chronic adult periodontitis
using Atrix’s patented drug delivery technology, Atrigel®. Atrisorb FreeFlow is a guided tissue
regeneration, or GTR, barrier product used in the surgical treatment of periodontal defects to help
regenerate tissue. Atrisorb-D is the first GTR barrier product to incorporate an antibiotic, which has been
shown 1o reduce the incidence of infections during GTR procedures.

On February 22, 2006, we amended our License and Marketing Agreement with Tolmar Inc., and
have agreed to continue to sell the Atrix Products through our distributor and pay an increased royalty on
net sales and an increased transfer price, but we are no longer required to make annual minimum
expenditures for advertising and promotional activities. In May 2005, we discontinued all direct selling and
promotional activities for the Atrix Products. Pursuant to the amended agreement, either party may
terminate the License and Marketing Agreement at any time, with or without cause, upon six months prior
written notice. The amendment extends the term of the License and Marketing Agreement through
December 31, 2007.




Our Previously Marketed Product
Vioxx

Pursuant to a Co-Promotion Agreement we executed with Merck & Co., Inc., or Merck, in
September 1999, we reccived the exclusive right to co-promote Vioxx®, a prescription strength, non-
steroidal anti-inflammatory drug, to the dental community. The agreement provided for certain payments
by Merck to us upon sales of Vioxx. In September 2002, we executed an amendment, extension and
restatement of the Co-Promotion Agreement which provided that the agreement would expire on
December 31, 2003. The Co-Promotion Agreement provides for indemnification of us by Merck against
any claims arising from manufacturing or design defects in the Vioxx product or for which we, as the
promoter of the product, may be strictly liable as if we were a seller of an inherently dangerous product.
We have not to date been named as a defendant in any of the lawsuits which have been brought against
Merck in connection with this product. During the year ended December 31, 2005, we recorded $153,000
in residual contract revenues under this agreement. We did not receive any contract revenues from this
agreement during the year ended December 31, 2006 and will not earn any further contract revenue under
this agreement.

Sales and Marketing

We currently employ 80 sales force professionals who promote our products directly to dermatology
professionals. We also have five national account managers who regularly call on major drug wholesalers,
managed care organizations, large retail chains, formularies and similar organizations. We produce
educational marketing materials, detail aids and product samples that are used extensively by our
representatives in their presentations to dermatology professionals. We also focus on providing continuing
medicai education programs and convention activities.

Sales training is an important component of our sales and marketing efforts. New representatives
receive four weeks of field training and three weeks of intensive office training in dermatology, territory
management and selling skills. Training continues at district-level meetings throughout the vear. In a
complex regulatory environment, we also train sales personnel on compliance with the relevant rules and
guidelines of the FDA and other government agencies.

Commercial Manufactoring, Distribution and Suppliers

In March 2006, we executed a Commercial Manufacturing Agreement effective December 31, 2005
with Cardinal Health PTS, LLC, or PTS, pursuant to which PTS has agreed to manufacture QOracea for us.
Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, we agreed to (i) furnish to PTS on a monthly basis a rolling
forecast of product quantities for the subsequent twelve-month period, the first three months of which
shall become binding, and (ii) pay PTS a fee for the product, subject to an annual adjustment. The
Commercial Manufacturing Agreement with PTS has an initial term of four years unless terminated earlier
pursuant to its terms.

In January 1995, we entered into a supply agreement with Hovione International Limited, or Hovione,
pursuant to which the active ingredient in Periostat, doxycycline hyclate, is supplied to us by Hovione from
its offshore facilities. Qur current supply agreement does not cover the purchase of doxycycline
monohydrate, which is the active ingredient in Oracea. We are currently in discussions with Hovione to
restructure our agreement so that it will cover doxycycline monohydrate. During the course of these
discussions we have been purchasing doxycycline monohydrate on a purchase order by purchase order
basis. Hovione supplies a substantial portion of the doxycycline hyclate and doxycycline monohydrate used
in the United States from two independent facilities, providing for a back-up supply in the event that one
facility is unable to manufacture. The term of the supply agreement has been extended to May 14, 2008
and thereafter automatically renews for successive two-year periods unless, 90 days prior to the expiration




of any such periods, either party gives the other party written notice of termination. In addition, in the
event of a default that remains uncured for 90 days, the non-defaulting party can terminate the supply
agreement effective immediately at the end of such ninety-day period. We rely on Hovione as our sole
supplier of both doxycycline hyclate and doxycycline monohydrate, and have no back-up supplier at this
time.

In September 2000, we entered into a Service and Supply Agreement with a contract manufacturer,
Pharmaceutical Manufacturing Research Services, Inc., or PMRS, for the tablet formulation of Periostat.
This agreement was automatically terminated in May 2005 when a generic 20 mg doxycycline hyclate tablet
became available on the market. We now purchase Periostat tablets from PMRS on a purchase order basis.
Currently, PMRS is the sole third-party contract manufacturer to supply Periostat to us. PMRS is required
to comply with current Good Manufacturing Practices, or cGMP, requirements,

In November 1998, we executed a Distribution Services Agreement with Cord Logistics, Inc. (now
known as Cardinal Health Specialty Pharmaceutical Services, or SPS), pursuant to which SPS acts as our
exclusive logistics provider for our products, excluding the Atrix Products, in the United States. Under this
agreement, SPS warehouses and ships Oracea, Pandel and Periostat from its central distribution facility in
LaVergne, Tennessee to wholesalers that distribute our products to retail and mail order pharmacies
throughout the United States for prescription sale to patients. SPS also provides various customner and
financial support services to us, including billing and collections, contract pricing maintenance, cash
application, and chargeback processing and related reporting services. The Distribution Services
Agreement had an initial term of three years with automatic renewal for successive one-year periods unless
notice of termination was provided by either party 90 days prior to expiration. We negotiated a three-year
extension of such agreement having similar terms to the original agreement with an effective date of
March 1, 2002.

In February 2002, we executed a Wholesale Service Agreement effective November 2001 with
National Specialty Services, Inc., (now known as Oncology Therapeutic Networks, or OTN}, pursuant to
which OTN acts as our non-exclusive authorized distributor of Atridox, Atrisorb FreeFlow and Atrisorb-D.
Under this agreement, as amended, OTN also provides certain additional services, including marketing,
sales detail report production and contract administration. The Wholesale Service Agreement had an
initial term of three years and renews automatically for successive one-year periods unless notice of
termination is provided by either party 90 days prior to expiration.

In October 2005, we entered into an agreement with a third party provider pursuant to which we have
agreed to pay monthly invoiced costs and expenses in exchange for certain research and development
services, process development and material preparation services relating to incyclinide

Customers/Backlog

In April 2005, we executed Distribution Fee for Service Agreements with two of our three major drug
wholesalers pursuant to which we agree to pay a percentage of the net invoice cost in exchange for certain
product distribution, inventory management and administrative services. The agreements have a three year
term.

Due to the relatively short lead-time required to fill orders for our products, backlog of orders is not
material to our business.

During 2006, sales to Cardinal Health, Inc., McKesson Corporation, Amerisource Bergen
Corporation, represented approximately 44%, 31% and 13%, respectively, of our aggregate net product
sales. We do not sell our products directly to drug chain retailers, supermarkets, independent pharmacies
or other mass merchants.



Research and Development
Overview

Our research and development activities are conducted primarily by third parties including contract
research organizations and academic and government institutions. The main focus of these activities is the
research and development of novel and/or known compounds for application in a variety of inflammatory
and tissue-destructive disorders.

Major research programs which we have conducted over the last three years include: (i) Oracea for
the treatment of rosacea; (ii) the development of a “once-a-day” formulation of Periostat {Periostat-
MR™), which was discontinued in 2005; (iii) the development of incyclinide for acne and rosacea; (iv) the
development of our SansRosa technology for the treatment of redness associated with rosacea and other
skin disorders; and (v) the development of our Restoraderm platform.

Our research and development expenditures were approximately $15.4 million, $14.0 million and
$8.8 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. We expect to increase our investment in research and
development to approximately $24.0 million in 2007.

Our Technology—IMPACS

Our core technology is the IMPACS technology and is licensed from SUNY. It involves the use of a
broad class of compounds (IMPACS) that have been chemically modified to retain and enhance their
anti-collagenolytic and other properties but which may have the structure elements responsible for their
antibiotic activity removed. These compounds inhibit the destruction of the connective tissues of the body
and down-regulate the pathological host response to a variety of external and internal mediators of
inflammation and tissue destruction.

Our IMPACS technology comprises a family of compounds which have shown the ability to inhibit
inflammation as well as the activity of various enzymes in the inflammatory cascade that lead to tissue
destruction. We have completed Phase III clinical trials for each of Periostat and Oracea to demonstrate
their safety and efficacy in treating adult periodontitis and rosacea, respectively, and have obtained FDA
approval for these products.

The technology works in part by modulating the activity of matrix metalloproteinases. Matrix
metalloproteinases are responsible for the normal turnover of collagen and other proteins that are integral
components of a variety of connective tissues such as skin, bone, cartilage and ligaments.

Under normal physiological conditions, the natural breakdown of collagen is in part regulated by the
interaction between the degradative properties of matrix metalloproteinases and a group of naturally
occurring biomolecules called tissue inhibitors of metalloproteinases, which modulate the level of matrix
metalloproteinase activity. In many pathological conditions, however, the balance between collagen
production and degradation is disrupted resulting in excessive loss of tissue collagen, a process called
collagenolysis. One such example is the progressive destruction of the periodontal ligament and alveolar
bone in adult periodontitis. Similar degradative activity is associated with numerous other disorders and
conditions, including, but not to those in dermatology, such as acne and rosacea.

Our license from SUNY also covers certain compounds that have shown potential in a number of
preclinical models of excessive connective tissue breakdown. Our current research and development
programs focus on the potential use of IMPACS compounds for a variety of disorders characterized by
inflammation and connective tissue destruction. Additional research by SUNY researchers has been
conducted to identify, synthesize and characterize a new generation of IMPACS compounds, and we have
filed patent applications on structure and use of these compounds.




Our Technology—SansRosa

Our SansRosa technology was acquired as a result of the step acquisition of SansRosa in
December 2003, and of the acquisition of rights to other related patents. It covers a class of compounds
that have shown promise in reducing the redness associated with rosacea, and we are formulating and
developing a topical treatment for rosacea based on one or more of these compounds.

Our Technology—Restoraderm

Our Restoraderm technology is a unique, proprietary dermal drug delivery system, which we acquired
from a Swedish collaborator in 2004. It is designed to enhance the dermal delivery of a variety of active
ingredients and we believe it may be used as the platform on which to develop a portfolio of topical
dermatological pharmaceuticals. The Restoraderm technology incorporates certain lipid compositions to
enhance the natural skin barrier and facilitate the delivery of therapeutic active ingredients into the skin.
The Restoraderm technology is currently under development, and we continue to evaluate a number of
Restoraderm product opportunities and their potential contribution to our portfolio of pipeline products.

Clinical Developments—OQOracea in Rosacea

Rosacea is a condition that affects approximately 14 million adults in the United States. Rosacea
affects primarily the face and is typically characterized by the appearance of inflammatory lesions (papules,
pustules and nodules), erythema (skin redness) and telangiectasia (spider veins). If allowed to progress to a
moderate or severe condition, rosacea can cause itching, pain and thickening of the skin. In severe cases, a
disfiguring enlargement of the nose can develop, a condition known as rhinophyma. While the exact cause
is unknown, chronic inflammation appears to play a primary role in the pathology of rosacea.

In June 2005, we announced the positive outcome of two Phase 111 double-blinded, placebo-controlled
clinical studies designed to evaluate the safety and efficacy of Oracea, doxycycline (controlled release
capsules) 40 mg, for the treatment of rosacea. The two double-blinded, placebo-controlled Phase 111
clinical studies were identical in design and conducted concurrently.

Patients were administered either Oracea or placebo once a day for 16 weeks. A total of 537 patients
were enrolled in 28 centers across the United States. At baseline, Oracea and placebo patients had a mean
lesion count of 20.0 and 20.8, respectively. Using the Investigator’s Global Assessment (IGA) score, a
subjective 5-point scale measuring disease severity, more than 90% of all patients in both treatment groups
were characterized as moderately to severely affected.

Both studies achieved their primary endpoint by demonstrating a greater reduction in inflammatory
lesion count from baseline for the Oracea-treated patients compared to the placebo controls. In the two
studies, patients receiving Oracea experienced a 61% and 46% mean reduction in inflammatory lesions
compared to 29% and 20%, respectively, in patients receiving placebo. The differences were clinically and
statistically significant (p-values of less than 0.001 in each study).

As secondary endpoints, the change in IGA score and the “dichotomized” IGA at week 16 were
analyzed. “Dichotomized” IGA measures the percentage of patients who were clear or near clear at the
end of the study. Oracea-treated patients fared much better than placebo patients as evidenced by a
statistically significant change from baseline in IGA with p-values of less than 0.001 and p=0.004 for the
two studies, respectively. In the analysis of “dichotomized” IGA, there was a statistically significant, greater
number of patients who were clear or near clear at the end of the study in the Oracea group compared to
the placebo group, with p=0.036 and p=0.012, respectively.

Another secondary endpoint was the analysis of the change in erythema over the course of the study.
In one study, erythema showed a trend towards improvement. In the second study, the reduction in



erythema achieved statistical significance as erythema scores improved from 9.7 at baseline to 7.0 at
week 16 (p=0.017).

In May 2006, the FDA approved Oracea for the treatment of inflammatory lesions (papules and
pustules) of rosacea in adult patients. In July 2006, we launched Oracea to the U.S. dermatology
community. Oracea, a once-daily 40 mg dose of doxycycline monohydrate in a capsule formulation of 30
mg immediate release and 10 mg delayed release beads, delivers anti-inflammatory actions without
demonstrated antimicrobial effects. Oracea is the first FDA-approved, orally-administered, systemically-
delivered drug to treat the inflammatory lesions (papules and pustules) of rosacea in adults. Oracea is not
bioequivalent to other doxycycline formulations; it has no generic equivalent.

The total expenses incurred through December 31, 2006 relating to the development of Oracea were
approximately $10.0 million.

On February 2, 2007, we announced results of a Phase IV clinical study designed to evaluate the
efficacy of combining Oracea capsules and topical MetroGel in the treatment of rosacea. The trial also
evaluated the effectiveness of Oracea for maintenance therapy in the treatment of rosacea.

The double-blind, placebo-controlled trial enrolled a total of 72 rosacea patients at three centers. The
patients were administered either Oracea capsules plus MetroGel or placebo capsules pius MetroGel once
a day for 12 weeks. MetroGel was discontinued at Week 12, and patients continued to receive either
Oracea or placebo through Week 16. Measurements of the changes in the number of inflammatory lesions
were taken at Weeks 4, 8, 12 and 16. The primary efficacy endpoint of the study was the mean change in
inflammatory lesions at Weeks 12 and 16. The study successfully met this endpoint and demonstrated a
statistically significant, greater reduction in inflammatory lesions at Weeks 12 and 16 in the Oracea plus
MetroGel group compared to the placebo plus MetroGel group.

Clinical Developmenits—incyclinide

incyclinide is a second generation compound from our IMPACS technology and has demonstrated a
range of potent anti-inflammatory activities in various preclinical and clinical studies. In 2005, we
announced results from a Phase II clinical trial evaluating incyclinide as a treatment for rosacea. The
Phase I study was designed to establish proof of principle for incyclinide as a potential treatment for a
dermatologic condition. In this double-blinded, placebo-controlled clinical study, patients with rosacea
were administered either incyclinide or placebo once a day for 28 days. Data was collected at baseline,
Day 14, Day 28 and Day 42. Primary efficacy parameters measured the changes from baseline to endpoint
(Day 42) in total inflammatory iesion count and the clinician’s erythema score.

The study enrolled 14 patients with a mean age of 50.1 vears. Eight patients received 10 mg of
incyclinide once daily and six patients received placebo once daily. At baseline, incyclinide and placebo
patients had mean lesion counts of 23.4 and 23.0, respectively. Using the IGA score, the two patient groups
were characterized as moderately to severely affected by the disease.

The study achieved its primary endpoint, demonstrating a greater reduction in inflammatory lesion
count from baseline for the incyclinide treated patients compared to the patients on placebo. At endpoint
(Day 42), incyclinide patients had a mean reduction of 12.8 lesions while placebo patients showed an
increase of 2.3 lesions. This difference was statistically significant (p=0.0213). Importantly, the onset of
action was rapid, with approximately 80% of the reduction in lesion count observed at Day 42 was already
present at Day 14. At endpoint, 75% of all incyclinide treated patients were clear or near clear of disease
symptoms as measured by the IGA score. Erythema showed a slightly better improvement in the
incyclinide group, with a 2.5 point reduction in the clinician’s erythema assessment score for the incyclinide
group compared to a 1.7 point reduction for the placebo group. incyclinide was well-tolerated and the
adverse event profile was unremarkable.
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In the fourth quarter of 2005, we announced the initiation of a Phase II, double-blinded, placebo-
controlled, dose-finding clinical trial to evaluate the safety and efficacy of incyclinide for the treatment of
acne. We reported these results in March 2007,

The double-blind, placebo-controlled trial enrolled a total of 302 acne patients at 27 centers. The
patients were divided among four arms of the study and administered either a placebo capsule or a 5 mg,
10 mg or 20 mg incyclinide capsule. Patients were enrolled in three sequential cohorts, each consisting of
an active treatment group and a smaller placebo group. The first cohort received the lowest dose of 5 mg
incyclinide and each subsequent cohort escalated to the next higher dose level of 10 mg and 20 mg,
respectively. The total number of placebo patients across the three cohorts was approximately the same as
each of the active treatment groups. Study-wide and in-cohort placebo analyses were conducted to detect
possible effects of the seasons on the placebo response. Absent treatment, acne patients typically improve
during the summer months and worsen during the winter months.

Each cohort of the study was administered either a placebo or incyclinide capsule once a day for 12
weeks. The primary endpoint of the study was the reduction in inflammatory lesion count at 12 weeks.
Patients were evaluated at Baseline, Weeks 3, 6,9, 12 and 16 (four weeks after the final capsule was
administered). The average number of inflammatory lesions at baseline was approximately 24 and well-
balanced across the four treatment arms.

incyclinide was well-tolerated with most adverse events being mild or moderate. The adverse events
were equally distributed across all treatment groups, including placebo. Laboratory and clinical safety
assessments were unremarkable.

Efficacy was assessed in an intent-to-treat analysis comparing the lesion count profile over the course
of the study. No apparent drug effect was observed in the 5 mg patient cohort at any visit. In the 10 mg
patient group, a drug effect was observed compared to both the total placebo group and the in-cohort
placebo group.

The 20 mg patient cohort showed the greatest reduction in inflammatory lesions compared to placebo,
with a rapid onset of action. This cohort had a 25.9% reduction in inflammatory lesion count at Week 3
compared to a 9.4% effect in the in-cohort placebo group. At Weeks 6, 9 and 12, the reductions in
inflammatory lesions for the incyclinide group were 36.0%, 36.1% and 31.7%, respectively, compared to
17.5%, 23.8% and 26.5%, respectively, for the in-cohort placebo group. At Weeks 3 and 6, the data showed
a trend towards statistical significance, with p-values less than 0.07.

When compared to the total placebo group, the reductions in inflammatory lesions in the 20 mg
cohort were statistically significant at Weeks 6 (p=0.041) and 9 (p=0.037). The greatest reduction in
inflammatory lesion count occurred at Week 9 and was less apparent at week 12.

A secondary endpoint of the study evaluated the change in the IGA score, a subjective measurement
of disease severity. As with the inflammatory lesion count, the 5 mg cohort could not be differentiated
from the total placebo group. The 10 mg cohort showed a statistically significant but modest improvement
in the IGA score compared to the total placebo group at Week 9 (p=0.022), and the 20 mg group showed
a greater improvement in the IGA score compared to the total placebo group at Week 6 (p=0.065) and
Week 9 (p=0.026). The performance of the three cohorts compared to placebo in the change in IGA score
further confirmed the dose-relationship across the three incyclinide cohorts.

The total future anticipated expenses related to the development of incyclinide for acne and rosacea is
currently estimated to be between $15.0 and $20.0 million.
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Preclinical and Other Research and Development Activities
COL-118

In the fourth quarter of 2006, we initiated a Phase I clinical trial evaluating COL-118 for the
treatment of erythema (redness associated with rosacea) and other skin disorders. This Phase I study was
clinically completed in February 2007. -

Restoraderm

We are currently conducting some formulation and stability work on products incorporating our
Restoraderm technology and we are stili in the process of developing a timetable for clinical development
or commercial launch.

Other IMPACS Activities

In October 2002, we announced the execution of a license agreement with Medtronic, Inc. involving
our IMPACS compounds, pursuant to which Medtronic obtained an exclusive, worldwide license to
technology relating to the use of the compounds to treat aortic aneurysms and other forms of vascular
disease with medical devices. This program is still underway, but neither we nor Medtronic have developed
a timetable for clinical development or commercial launch of any product.

Patents, Trade Secrets and Licenses
Overview

We have patents, or patent applications, covering all of our technologies. Some are owned, and some
are licensed from third partics.

Our IMPACS technology is licensed from SUNY, referred to herein as the SUNY License, and other
academic and research institutions collaborating with SUNY. Thirty-six United States patents and United
States patent applications held by SUNY are licensed to us under the SUNY License. We have also
licensed technology from Supernus Pharmaceuticals, Inc., or Supernus, successor in interest to Shire
Laboratories, Inc. In addition to the patents and patent applications licensed from SUNY, which represent
the core technology, and the technology licensed from Supernus, we also own technology for which
applications for United States patents have been filed and have been issued. This includes various
independently developed inventions relating to the uses of tetracyclines, as well as the SansRosa
technology and the Restoraderm technology. A total of eight United States patents are issued, and
approximately fifteen United States patent applications are pending, relative to these technologies.
Applications corresponding to each are pending pursuant to the United States Patent Cooperation Treaty
in various foreign jurisdictions.

Acquired and Licensed Intellectual Property

Under the SUNY License, we have an exclusive worldwide license to SUNY’s rights in certain patents
and patent applications to make and sell products employing tetracyclines to treat certain disease
conditions.

In January 1992, we entered into the SUNY License and have subsequently amended the SUNY
License twice. The SUNY License grants us an exclusive worldwide license to make and sell products
employing tetracyclines that are designed or utilized to alter a biological process. In consideration of the
license granted to us, we: (i) issued to SUNY 78,948 shares of our common stock in 1992; and (ii) have
agreed to pay SUNY royalties on the net sales of licensed products, with minimum annual royalty
payments of $50,000 per year. The term of the license is until the later of: (i) the expiration of the last to
expire of the licensed patents in each country; or (i) November 18, 2018, at which time we have a fully
paid, non-exclusive license. Our rights under the SUNY License are subject to certain statutory rights of
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the United States government resulting from federal support of research activities at SUNY. We are
entitled to deduct costs incurred to defend SUNY patents from current and future royalties due to SUNY.
In the event that cumulative legal costs exceed the amount of the royalties payable to SUNY, the amount
of such excess is accumulated to offset future royalties earned by SUNY, if any, on net sales of products
based on the SUNY technology.

In February 2002, we announced that we had licensed Restoraderm, a topical drug delivery
technology. In August 2004, we purchased all right, title and interest in this technology, pursuant to the
terms of an Asset Purchase and Product Development Agreement, or the Restoraderm Purchase
Agreement, The Restoraderm Purchase Agreement superseded our Co-operation, Development and
License Agreement executed in February 2002. Under the terms of the Restoraderm Purchase Agreement,
the purchase price of the assets shall be up to $1.0 million, subject to the achievement of certain
milestones. We are also required 1o pay certain product development milestone payments in the aggregate
amount of up to approximately $2.0 million as well as royalty and sublicense fees upon product
commercialization. As of December 31, 2006, approximately $500,000 of these milestone and sublicense
fees had been paid by us.

On June 10, 2002, we executed a Development and Licensing Agreement with Supernus pursuant to
which we were granted an exclusive worldwide license (including the right to sublicense) to use Supernus
technology and patents to develop prescription products for the treatment of various inflammatory
disorders. Under the agreement, certain product development functions will be performed for us by
Supernus. We have committed to pay Supernus milestone payments in cash or, at our option, in a
combination of cash and our common stock, upon the achievement of certain clinicat and regulatory
milestones. Through December 31, 2006, the total milestone payments made to Supernus related to
Oracea were $2.7 million. For rosacea-indicated development, these future payments could total up to $1.0
million in the aggregate and relate primarily to international approval and international commercialization
of Oracea. Under the agreement, we must also pay Supernus royalties based on a percentage of net sales
of any products utilizing any part of the licensed technology, including Oracea. We began incurring
royalties to Supernus in the third quarter of 2006 as a result of our July 2006 launch of Oracea.

On December 14, 2005, we executed a Share Purchase Agreement, or the SansRosa Purchase
Agreement, to acquire all the shares of SansRosa from the existing shareholders of SansRosa, or the
SansRosa Shareholders. SansRosa is the assignee of certain patent applications covering methods for
treatment of redness associated with rosacea and other skin disorders. The agreement also provides for
royalty payments to former SansRosa Shareholders if there are future sales of products incorporating
SansRosa technology.

In March 2006, we acquired from an individual inventor all right, title and interest in certain
additional patents related to the SansRosa technology in consideration for a lump sum payment. The
agreement also provides for royalty payments if there are future sales of products incorporating SansRosa
technology.

Our Patents

Our success will depend in part on patent and trade secret protection for our technologies, products
and processes, and on our ability to operate without infringement of proprietary rights of other parties
both in the United States and in foreign countries. Because of the substantial length of time and expense
associated with bringing new products through development to the marketplace, the pharmaceutical
industry places considerable importance on obtaining and maintaining patent and trade secret protection
for new technologies, products and processes.

Thirty-six United States patents and United States patent applications held by SUNY are licensed to
us under the SUNY License. SUNY also has obtained patents in certain European countries, Canada and
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Japan, and has pending patent applications in certain other foreign countries which correspond to its
United States patents relating to methods of use of tetracyclines. Over eighty patents have been issued in
foreign countries. All of SUNY’s United States and foreign patents expire between 2004 and 2023.

Our Oracea product is covered by various patents and patent applications, including the 709 Patent,
and 11/061,866, or the 866 Application. On May 17, 2006, we announced that we had submitted additional
references to the USPTQ, that may be relevant to the examination of the 709 Patent and other
applications based thereon. This application relates to the use of sub-antimicrobial and chemically
modified tetracyclines for the treatment of acne and acne rosacea, including Oracea and incyclinide. The
USPTO had previously issued a Notice of Allowance of this application in August 2005, and a patent was
scheduled to issue on May 23, 2006, but the application was withdrawn from issuance for consideration of
the additional references. On July 20, 2006, we announced that the USPTO had issued a non-final
rejection of this patent application directed to methods for treating acne with Oracea.

On September 1, 2006, we announced that we had submitted our response to the non-final rejection
from the USPTO. We limited the scope of our claim to the use of sub-antimicrobial tetracyclines since the
chemically modified tetracyclines, including incyclinide, are the subject of application Serial
No. 10/757,656, or the 656 Application. On November 3, 2006, we received a notice of allowance from the
USPTO regarding the 709 Patent. The allowed claims under the 709 Patent cover the use of sub-
antimicrobial tetracyclines for the treatment of acne and acne rosacea. We will continue to prosecute the
656 Application.

In February 2007, we received a Notice of Allowance from the USPTO regarding the 866 Application.
The allowed claims under the 866 Application cover the use of sub-antimicrobial tetracyclines for the
treatment of certain symptoms of rosacea.

Government Regulation

Government authorities regulate research, development, testing, manufacture, labeling, promotion,
advertising, distribution, and marketing of the products we develop and market. In the United States, the
FDA regulates Oracea, Atridox, Pandel, Periostat, Alcortin and Novacort and our products in
development as drugs under the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act and implementing regulations.
The FDA regulates Atrisorb FreeFlow and Atrisorb-D as medical devices under the Food, Drug, and
Cosmetic Act and implementing regulations. Both before and after approval or clearance of our products,
failure to comply with FDA requirements may subject us to administrative or judicial sanctions, such as the
FDA’s refusal to approve pending applications or warning letters, product recalls, product seizures, total
or partial suspension of production or distribution, withdrawal of approvals, import detentions, injunctions,
and/or criminal prosecution.

Our products in development are classified as drugs. The steps required before any of our product
candidates may be marketed in the United States include:

» preclinical laboratory tests, animal studies, and formulation studies;

» submission to the FDA of an investigational new drug exemption for human clinical testing, which
must become effective before human clinical trials may begin;

» adequate and well-controlled clinical trials to establish the safety and efficacy of the drug for each
indication;

¢ submission to the FDA of an new drug application, or NDA, for approval,

¢ satisfactory completion of an FDA inspection of the manufacturing facility or facilities at which the
drug is produced to assess compliance with cGMP; and

¢ FDA review and approval of the NDA.
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Preclinical tests include laboratory evaluations of product chemistry, toxicity, and formulation, as well
as animal studies. The results of the preclinical tests, together with manufacturing information, analytical
data, and a plan for studying the product in humans, are submitted to the FDA as part of an investigational
new drug exemption, which must become effective before human clinical trials may begin. An
investigational new drug exemption automatically becomes effective 30 days after receipt by the FDA,
unless before that time the FDA raises concerns or questions about issues such as the conduct of the trials
outlined in the investigational new drug exemption. In that case, the investigational new drug exemption is
placed on clinical hold and the sponsor and the FDA must resolve any outstanding FDA concerns or
questions before clinical trials can proceed. Submission of an investigational new drug exemption does not
always result in the FDA allowing clinical trials to commence.

Clinical trials involve administration of the investigational drug to human subjects under the
supervision of qualified investigators and are conducted under protocols detailing the objectives of the
study, the parameters to be used in monitoring safety, and the effectiveness criteria to be evaluated. Each
protocol must be submitted to the FDA as part of the investigational new drug exemption process, and
must be reviewed and approved by an independent Institutiona! Review Board before it can begin.

Clinical trials typically are conducted in three sequential phases, but the phases may overlap or be
combined. Phase I usually involves the initial introduction of the investigational drug into people to
evaluate its safety, dosage tolerance, pharmacodynamics, and, if possible, to gain an early indication of its
effectiveness. Phase II usually involves trials in a limited patient population to evatuate dosage tolerance
and appropriate dosage, identify possible adverse effects and safety risks and evaluate preliminarily the
efficacy of the drug for specific indications. Phase III trials usually further evaluate clinical efficacy and test
further for safety by using the drug in its final form in an expanded patient population.

Assuming successful completion of the required clinical testing, the results of the preclinical studies
and of the clinical studies, together with other detailed information, including information on the
manufacture and composition of the drug, are submitted to the FDA in the form of a new drug application
requesting approval to market the product for one or more indications. Before approving an application,
the FDA usually will inspect the facility or the facilities at which the drug is manufactured, and will not
approve the product unless compliance with cGMP is satisfactory. If the FDA determines the application
and the manufacturing facilities are acceptable, the FDA will issue an approval letter, If the FDA

fdetermmes the application or manufacturing facilities are not acceptable, the FDA will outline the

7 deficiencies in the submission and often will request additional testing or information. Notwithstanding the
submission of any requested additional information, the FDA ultimately may decide that the application
does not satisfy the regulatory criteria for approval.

The FDA approved our NDA for Oracea in 2006 and our NDA for Periostat in 1998. The Atrix
Products and Pandel have also received FDA approval. However, we cannot be sure that any additional
approvals for our product candidates will be granted on a timely basis, if at all. After approval, certain
changes to the approved product, such as adding new indications, manufacturing changes, or additional
labeling claims are subject to further FDA review and approval. As part of the NDA for Periostat, the
FDA requested a post-market animal study related to long-term dosing and carcogenicity, which was
completed in 2000. As part of the NDA for Oracea, the FDA requested certain post-approval studies
related to Oracea be conducted. Such studies are currently in progress.

We market two products, Alcortin and Novacort, under a Promotion and Cooperation Agreement
with Primus. Neither product has an approved NDA; whether either or both requires an NDA at this time
is unclear. If the FDA believes that an approved NDA is required, it could at any time seek one or more of
the administrative or judicial sanctions listed above, the result of which could be that we could no longer
market these products.
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In some circumstances, approved drugs are provided protection from generic versions of the approved
drug for specified time periods. For example, the law provides for market exclusivity for new chemical
entities and for certain classes of chemical entities approved for new indications. However, since Periostat
and Oracea contain doxycycline as an active ingredient, and doxycycline has previously been approved as
an antibiotic, the FDA classifies both drugs as antibiotics which are not entitled to the market exclusivity
protection otherwise available to new drugs under the Hatch Waxman amendments to the Food, Drug, and
Cosmetic Act. This classification is controlling even though both Periostat and Oracea have been shown in
clinical trials to have no anti-microbial effects.

Though Oracea is also classified by the FDA as an antibiotic, the following language in the prescribing
information for Oracea differs from labeling for antibiotics with antimicrobial actions; “The dose of
Oracea differs from that of doxycycline used to treat infections.” In addition, the prescribing information
for Oracea iucludes a section on microbiology which states, “The plasma concentrations achieved with
Oracea during administration are less than the concentration required to treat bacterial diseases. In vivo
microbiological studies utilizing a similar drug exposure for up to 18 months demonstrated no detectable
long-term effects on bacterial flora sampled from the oral cavity, skin, intestinal tract and vagina. Oracea
should not be used for treating bacterial infections, providing antibacterial prophylaxis, or eliminating
microorganisms associated with any bacterial disease.”

Like drugs, medical devices also require FDA authorization before they can be marketed in the
United States. Atrisorb FreeFlow and Atrisorb-D have received clearance for marketing. Modifications to
those products, however, could require additional approval or clearance.

Approved and cleared drugs and medical devices remain subject to comprehensive regulation by the
FDA while they are being marketed. For example, marketers and manufacturers of approved and cleared
drugs and medical devices are required to report certain adverse reactions and production problems, if
any, to the FDA, and to comply with requirements concerning advertising and promotional labeling for
their products. The FDA does not permit marketing or promotion of an approved or cleared drug product
or medical device for an unapproved or uncleared use. Also, quality control and manufacturing procedures
must continue to conform to the FDA's requirements for cGMP (for drugs) or Quality Systems Regulation
{for medical devices) after approval. Accordingly, we, our manufacturers, and our suppliers must continue
to expend time, money, and effort to maintain compliance with manufacturing requirements and other
aspects of regulatory compliance. The FDA periodically inspects manufacturers to assess compliance with
manufacturing and other requirements. We buy bulk active ingredient for Oracea, Periostat and our
products in development from third party suppliers and finish the products in third party manufacturing
facilities. The other products we market, Atridox, Atrisorb FreeFlow, Atrisorb-D and Pandel are provided
by suppliers.

In addition to the applicable FDA requirements, we are subject to foreign regulatory authorities
governing clinical trials and drug sales. Whether or not FDA approval has been obtained, approval of a
pharmaceutical product by the comparable regulatory authorities of foreign countries must be obtained
prior to the commencement of marketing of the product in those countries. The approval process varies
from country to country and the time required may be longer or shorter than that required for FDA
approval.

Competition

Dermatology

The market for dermatology products is characterized by rapidly advancing technologies, intense
competition and a strong emphasis on proprietary products. We face competition from many different
sources, including commercial pharmaceutical and biotechnology enterprises, technology companies, such
as laser therapy providers and cosmeceutical companies.
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Many of our competitors have significantly greater financial resources and experience in research and
development, manufacturing, preclinical testing, clinical trials, regulatory approvals and marketing
approved products than we do. Smaller or early stage companies may also prove to be significant
competitors, particularly through collaborative arrangements with large and established companies. Our
commercial opportunity will be reduced or eliminated if our competitors develop and commercialize
products that are safer, more effective, have fewer side effects, are easier to administer or are less
expensive than any products that we may develop. These third parties compete with us in recruiting and
retaining qualified scientific and management personnel, establishing clinical trial sites and patient
registration for clinical trials, as well as in acquiring technologies and technology licenses complementary
to our programs or advantageous to our business.

Oracea competes against branded and generic oral tetracycline products, and topical formutations
such as branded and generic metronidazole, azelaic acid and sodium sulfacetamide/sulfur products. Many
of these products have been sold and promoted for years and have been established as useful and safe in
the treatment of rosacea.

There are also many companies and academic and research institutions researching and developing
potential treatments for acne and rosacea. Some of these companies are large pharmaceutical companies,
while others are smaller companies that may also prove to be significant competitors, particularly through
collaborative arrangements with large pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies. Companies with
products either commercially available or in human clinical trials include Stiefel Labs, Allergan, Inc.,
Roche Inc., Galderma Laboratories, L.P., Warner Chilcott Inc., Intendis GmbH, Medicis Pharmaceutical
Corporation, Dusa Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and numerous generic pharmaceutical manufacturers.

Dental

In September 1998, the FDA granted United States marketing approval for Periostat as an adjunct to
SRP to promote attachment level gain and reduce pocket depth in patients with adult periodontitis.
Periostat was made available for prescription use in November 1998 and was fully launched commercially
in January 1999. In May 2005, a third party generic version of Periostat was introduced to the dental
market and we discontinued all selling and promotional activities for Periostat and the Atrix Products.
Based on data provided by a leading independent prescription tracking service, we estimate that Periostat's
share of the 20 mg doxycycline market was approximately 4% at December 31, 2006.

Employees

We have historically outsourced our manufacturing, clinical trials, NDA preparation, warehousing,
distribution and other activities, We intend to continue to outsource many of the activities which we have
historically outsourced. As of December 31, 2006, we employed 130 persons. Each of our management
personnel has had extensive prior experience with pharmaceutical, biotechnotogy or medical products
companies. We cannot be certain that we will be able to recruit and retain qualified inside sales and
marketing personnel, distributors or marketing partners or that our marketing and sales efforts will be
successful. Currently, none of our employees are covered by collective bargaining agreements. In general,
our employees are covered by confidentiality agreements. We consider relations with our employees to be
excellent,

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

Statements contained or incorporated by reference in this Annual Report on Form 10-K that are not based
on historical fact are “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995, Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Exchange
Act. These forward-looking statements regarding future events and our future results are based on current
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expectations, estimates, forecasts, and projections and the beliefs and assumptions of our management
including, without limitation, our expectations regarding revenues, results of operations, selling, general and
administrative expenses, research and development expenses, the sufficiency of our cash for future operations,
and the success of our preclinical, clinical and development programs and our dermatology franchise. Forward-
looking statements may be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as “believe,” “could
increase the likelihood,” “hope,” “target,” “project,” “goals,” “potential,” “predict,” “might,” “expect,” *i
“is planned,” “should,” *

ntend,”
will enable,” “would be expected,” “look forward,” “may provide,” “ "4
“could,” “will,” “expect,

would,” “may,”
o h ” o
negative of those terms.

LI

estimate,” “anticipate,” “continue,” or similar terms, variations of such terms or the

We cannot assure investors that our assumptions and expectations will prove to have been correct.
Impontant factors could cause our actual results to differ materially from those indicated or implied by forward-
looking statements. Such factors that could cause or contribute to such differences include those factors
discussed below. We undertake no intention or obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements,
whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. If any of the following risks actually occur,
our business, financial condition, results of operations or liguidity would likely suffer.

We are depending heavily on the commercial success of Oracea. If we are unable to successfully
commercialize Oracea our business will be materially harmed.

We have invested a significant portion of our recent efforts and financial resources in the
development of Oracea for the treatment of rosacea. Our ability to generate substantial product revenues
from Oracea will depend heavily on the successful commercialization of Oracea. While we have generated
revenue from Oracea since the product’s July 2006 launch, it is premature to determine the future success
and growth, if any, of the Oracea product brand. The success of Oracea will depend primarily on the
acceptance of the product by patients, the medical community and third party payors.

Although we currently derive additional revenue from marketing and/or selling other products other
than Oracea (Periostat, the Atrix Products, the Primus products and Pandel) our revenue and profitability
in the near future will depend on our ability to market and sell Oracea successfully.

We cannot rely on regulatory protections te prevent the approval of generic equivalents of our products.

In connection with the regulatory approval process, some approved new drug products can obtain
exclusivity that will prevent generic versions of the products from entering the marketplace for a period of
time. In the United States, market exclusivity is available for new chemical entities and for significant
changes in already approved drug products, such as a new use.

Market exclusivity is, however, not available to drugs that contain an active ingredient that has already
been approved as an antibiotic and marketed prior to 1998. On January 19, 2005, the United States District
Court for the District of Columbia upheld the FDA’s application of this principle to Periostat and
determined that Periostat was not entitled to market exclusivity because its active ingredient, doxycycline,
had previously been approved as an antibiotic. Because Oracea also contains doxycycline as its active
ingredient, it will also not be entitled to market exclusivity.

In the European Community regulatory market exclusivity is a function of how long the competent
authorities may determine that data submitted in marketing approval applications may not be referenced
by others. The period of so-called data exclusivity to which a new product may be entitled can vary from
eleven years to none at all. This depends on how a product is classified and can turn on the application of
regulatory standards of which there has been no authoritative interpretation to date. We cannot predict
what period of data exclusivity, if any, may be enjoyed by Oracea in the European Community.

With limited or no market exclusivity it could be more difficult for us to prevent competitors from
seeking approval for copies of our proprietary products, and in such a case the value of such products
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would be materially adversely affected. Without market exclusivity, generic versions of our products could
quickly gain market entry if they meet regulatory approval criteria. Thus, despite the FDA’s May 2006
approval of Oracea, because it will not be entitled to market exclusivity, third parties may enter the market
which would materially harm our business.

If we are not able to obtain and enforce patent protection for Oracea or our other discoveries, our ability to
commercialize our product candidates successfully will be harmed and we may not be able to operate our business

profitably.

Our success depends, in part, on our ability to protect proprietary methods and technelogies that we
develop under the patent and other intellectual property laws of the United States and other countries, so
that we can prevent others from using our inventions and proprietary information. However, we may not
hold or obtain proprietary rights to some patents related to our current or future products and
technologies, and we may not, under relevant patent laws, be considered to be inventors of technologies we
believe we have developed.

Because publications of discoveries in scientific literature lag behind actual discoveries, and such
publications may not come to light despite diligent searches, we cannot be certain that we were the first to
make the inventions claimed in our issued patents or pending patent applications. Similarly, because
patent applications in the United States and many foreign jurisdictions are typically not published until 18
months after filing, or in some cases not at all, we cannot be certain that we were the first to make the
inventions claimed or to file for protection of the inventions set forth in our patent applications. As a
result, we may not be granted additional patents or our existing patents may be found to be invalid. We
may also be required to obtain licenses under third-party patents to market our proposed products. If
licenses are not available to us on acceptable terms, or at all, we will not be able to market the affected
products,

Our strategy depends on our ability to identify our discoveries rapidly and to seek patent protection
for them. This process is expensive and time consuming, and we may not be able to file and prosecute all
necessary or desirable patent applications at a reasonable cost or in a timely manner. Despite our efforts to
protect our proprietary rights, unauthorized parties may be able to obtain and use information that we
regard as proprietary. The issuance of a patent does not guarantee that it is valid or enforceable, so even if
we obtain patents, they may not be valid or enforceable against third parties. In addition, the issuance of a
patent does not guarantee that we have the right to practice the patented invention. Third parties may
have blocking patents that could be used to prevent us from marketing our own patented product and
practicing our own patented technology.

Our pending patent applications may not result in issued patents, or may result in patents that do not
cover our future products. The patent position of pharmaceutical or biotechnology companies, including
ours, is generally uncertain and involves complex legal and factual considerations. The standards which the
USPTO and its foreign counterparts use to grant patents are not always applied predictably or uniformly
and can change. There is also no uniform, worldwide policy regarding the subject matter and scope of
claims granted or allowable in pharmaceutical or biotechnology patents. The laws of some foreign
countries do not protect proprietary information to the same extent as the laws of the United States, and
many companies have encountered significant problems and costs in protecting their proprietary
information in these foreign countries. Accordingly, we do not know the degree of future protection for
our proprietary rights or the breadth of claims allowed in any patents issued to us or to others. The
allowance of broader claims may increase the incidence and cost of patent interference proceedings and/or
opposition proceedings. On the other hand, the allowance of narrower claims may limit the value of our
proprietary rights.
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A number of our pending patent applications are related and include claims that are intended to cover
Oracea and/or incyclinide. On November 3, 2006, we received a notice of allowance from the USPTO
regarding the 709 Patent. The allowed claims under the 709 Patent cover the use of sub-antimicrobial
tetracyclines for the treatment of acne and acne rosacea.

The USPTO had previously issued a notice of allowance of the 709 Patent in August 2005. However,
on May 17, 2006, before issuance of the patent, we announced that we had submitied additional references
to the USPTO that may have been relevant to the examination of the application. Accordingly, we
requested continuing examination of the 709 Patent and other applications based on it.

On July 20, 2006, we announced that the USPTO had issued a non-final rejection of this patent
application. In responding to that non-final rejection, we limited the scope of the claims in the application
to the use of sub-antimicrobial tetracyclines since the chemically modified tetracylines, including
incyclinide, are the subject of the 656 Application, which we will continue to prosecute.

Our issued patent relating to Oracea, and if issued, our other patents relating to incyclinide, may not
contain claims sufficiently broad to protect us against third parties with similar products, or provide us with
any competitive advantage. Moreover, once issued, any of our patents may be challenged, narrowed,
invalidated or circumvented. In addition, the patent rights in our products that derive from claims under
method of use patents may be hard to assert or enforce if medical professionals prescribe or dispense
similar (including generic), though non-approved, doxycycline products for indications covered by our
patents. If our patents are invalidated or otherwise limited, other companies will be better able to develop
products and technologies that compete with ours, which could adversely affect our competitive business
position, business prospects and financial condition.

We cannot assure you that our pursuit of business in the dermatology market will be successful.

We continue to implement our plans to expand into the dermatology market. In May 2006, the FDA
approved Oracea for the treatment of rosacea in adults, and in July 2006, we commenced our trade launch
of Oracea in the United States. While we have begun to generate revenue from Oracea sales in connection
with the product’s July 2006 trade-launch, it is premature to determine the future success and growth, if
any, of the Oracea product brand. We continue to seek additional product licensing opportunities to
enhance our near-term offerings to the dermatology market. Even if we succeed in our efforts to identify
and license additional products, it is not possible to guarantee that in licensed products will continue
indefinitely to be available to us. For instance, on February 1, 2007 we received written notice of
termination of our agreement with Altana which provides for the termination of our rights in Pandel
effective November 1, 2007.

The dermatology market is very competitive and some of our competitors have substantially greater
resources than we have. Our future success will depend on, among other things, our ability to: (i) achieve
market acceptance for any current or future dermatological offerings, including acceptance from managed
care and similar organizations; (ii) hire and retain personnel with experience in the dermatology market;
(iii} execute our business plan with respect to this market segment; and (iv) adapt to technical or
regulatory changes.

At the same time, new product development is a lengthy, complex and uncertain process that will
require significant attention and resources from management. A product candidate can fail at any stage of
the development process due to, among other things, efficacy or safety concerns, the inability to obtain
necessary regulatory approvals, the difficulty or excessive cost to manufacture and/or the infringement of
patents or intellectual property rights of others. Furthermore, the sales of new products may prove to be
disappointing and fail to reach anticipated levels. We therefore cannot assure you that we will be successful
in our pursuit of business in the dermatology market, or that we can sustain any business in which we
achieve initial success.
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The success of our current technology platforms, and that of any other future technology platforms we
may purchase or in-license, will depend on the quality and integrity of the technologies licensed or sold to
us. Despite our due diligence and the safeguards we have in place, we cannot guarantee the effectiveness
or integrity of such technologies, nor can we be certain that others do not have intervening rights in such
technologies. If any of our in-licensed technologies proved ineffective, or if a third party successfully
asserted any right to such technologies, our ability to develop new products and implement our strategies
would be materially adversely affected.

If we are not able to obtain required regulatory approvals, we will not be able to commercialize our product
candidates, and our ability to generate revenue will be materially impaired.

Failure to obtain regulatory approval for a product candidate will prevent us from commercializing
the product candidate. Other than Oracea and Periostat, we have not received regulatory approval to
market any of our product candidates in any jurisdiction. We have only limited experience in filing and
prosecuting the applications necessary to gain regulatory approvals. Securing FDA and other comparable
authority approval, requires the submission of extensive preclinical and clinical data, information about
product manufacturing processes and inspection of facilities and supporting information to the FDA and
other comparable authorities for each therapeutic indication to establish the product candidate’s safety
and efficacy. Our future products may not be effective, may be only moderately effective or may prove to
have undesirable or unintended side effects, toxicities or other characteristics that may preclude our
obtaining regulatory approval or prevent or limit commercial use.

The process of obtaining regulatory approvals is expensive, often takes many years, if approval is
obtained at all, and can vary substantially based upon, among other things, the type, complexity and
novelty of the product candidates involved. Changes in the regulatory approval policy during the
development period, changes in or the enactment of additional statutes or regulations, or changes in
regulatory review for each submitted product application, may cause delays in the approval or rejection of
an application.

The FDA, and comparable authorities in other countries, have substantial discretion in the approval
process and may refuse to accept any application or may decide that our data is insufficient for approval
and require additional preclinical, clinical or other studies. In addition, varying interpretations of the data
obtained from preclinical and clinical testing could influence how a preduct candidate is classified and
delay, limit or prevent regulatory approval of a product candidate. Any regulatory approval we ultimately
obtain may be limited or subject to restrictions or post-approval commitments that render the product not
commercially viable.

Even if regulatory approval of a product is granted, the approval may be subject to limitations on the
indicated uses for which the product may be marketed or to the conditions of approval, or contain
requirements for costly post-marketing testing and surveillance to monitor the safety or efficacy of the
product.

If we lose our sole supplier of doxycycline or our manufacturer of Oracea, our sales of Oracea will be
interrupted, halted or less profitable.

We do not have the resources, facilities or capabilities to manufacture any of our products or product
candidates. We have no current plans to establish a manufacturing facility. We expect that we will be
dependent, to a significant extent, on contract manufacturers for commercial scale manufacturing of our
products or product candidates in accordance with regulatory standards.

We rely on Hovione, as our sole supplier of both doxycycline hyclate and doxycycline monohydrate,
and have no back-up supplier at this time. Doxycycline monohydrate is the active ingredient in Oracea.
Hovione has two FDA-approved, validated manufacturing facilities that we believe will provide us with
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some protection against supply interruption. We are, however, seeking a back-up supplier, but there are
relatively few alternative suppliers of doxycycline, and Hovione produces the majority of the doxycycline
used in the United States. Our current supply agreement with Hovione does not cover the purchase of
doxycycline monohydrate, which is the active ingredient in Oracea. We are currently in discussions with
Hovione to restructure our agreement so that it will cover doxycycline monohydrate. During the course of
these discussions we have been purchasing doxycycline monohydrate on a purchase order by purchase
order basis. The term of the supply agreement expires on May 14, 2008 and thereafter automatically
renews for successive two-year periods unless, 90 days prior to the expiration of any such periods, either
party gives the other party written notice of termination. In addition, in the event of a default, uncured for
90 days, the non-defaulting party can terminate the supply agreement effective immediately at the end of
such ninety-day period. Although Hovione maintains two manufacturing locations, if we are unable to
procure a commercial quantity of doxycycline from Hovione on an ongoing basis at a competitive price, if
Hovione fails to comply with cGMP or if we cannot find a replacement supplier in a timely manner or with
favorable pricing terms, our costs may increase significantly and we may experience delays in the supply
and sale of Oracea.

We entered into an agreement effective December 31, 2005 with PTS pursuant to which PTS has
agreed to manufacture Oracea for us. We intend to contract with additional manufacturers for the
commercial manufacture of an Oracea capsule. We believe, however, that it could take up to one year to
validate successfully a secondary manufacturer. We cannot be certain that we will be able to enter into
additional agreements on acceptable terms, if at all. In the event that we are unable to obtain sufficient
quantities of doxycycline or Oracea on commercially reasonable terms or in a timely manner, our business,
financial condition and results of operations would be materially adversely affected.

If the federal regulatory status of Alcortin or Novacort changes, we may be unable to continue to market one
or both of these products.

We market two products, Alcortin and Novacort, under a Promotion and Cooperation Agreement
with Primus. Sixty percent of sample product and promotion costs and all sales force compensation related
to our promotion of Alcortin and Novacort are funded by us. Primus is responsible for the manufacture of
Alcortin and Novacort and has not sought FDA approval for these products because Primus believes that
no approval is required. We cannot be sure that FDA will not object to the lack of approval for these
products. If the FDA were to assert that these products required approval, it could at any time seek to take
administrative or judicial actions which could prevent us from marketing these products. Qur inability to
market these products could result in a temporary or permanent loss of revenue, which may be partially
offset by a reduction in our promotional expenses related to these products.

Our products could be subject to restrictions or withdrawal from the market and we may be subject to
penalties if we fail to comply with regulatory requirements. Both before and after approval or clearance, we, our
products and product candidates and our manufacturers are subject to extensive regulatory requirements. Failure
to comply with these requirements could subject us to administrative and judicial sanctions.

Both before and after approval or clearance of our products, we, our products and product
candidates, and our manufacturers are subject to extensive regulatory requirements covering, among other
things, manufacturing, advertising and promotion, labeling, adverse event reporting, post-approval
commitments, registration, record-keeping, export, and distribution of samples. Failure to comply with
regulatory requirements may result in:

e restrictions on such products, manufacturers or manufacturing processes;
s warning letters;

» withdrawal of the products from the market;

22




» refusal to approve pending applications or supplements to approved applications that we submit;

e recall;

¢ fines; |

e suspension or withdrawal of regulatory approvals;

o refusal to permit the import or export of our products; !

¢ product seizure; and

e injunctions or the imposition of civil or criminal penalties.

We may be unable to raise additional capital if needed, which would force us to delay, reduce or eliminate
our product development programs and commercialization efforts.

We expect that our research and development expenses will increase in connection with our ongoing
activities and that we will incur significant commercialization expenses as we expand our marketing and
sales efforts. We will need additional funding to meet these additional expenses and may be unable to raise
capital when needed or on attractive terms, which would force us to delay, reduce or eliminate our
research and development programs and commercialization activities. If we generate revenues and incur
expenses at our anticipated levels, we anticipate that our current cash, cash equivalents and short-term
investments at December 31, 2006 will be sufficient to fund our operations through at least the end of
2007. However, our forecast of the period of time through which our financial resources will be adequate
to support our operations involves risks and uncertainties, and actual results could vary materially. Our
future funding requirements will depend on many factors, including:

e the cost of commercialization activities, including product marketing and sales;

e the successful commercialization of Oracea and its acceptance by managed care organizations and
other third party payors;

» the success of obtaining European Union approval of Oracea and in turn the success of MediGene
AG, our foreign marketing partner for Oracea, in commercializing Oracea in the European Union;

v

o the success of our dermatology franchise;

e the success of our prosecution of the 656 Application related to the use of chemically modified
tetracyclines for the treatment of acne and acne rosacea, including incyclinide;

& the issuance of the 709 Patent;

» receipt and maintenance of marketing approvals from the FDA and similar foreign regulatory
authorities for our product candidates;

o the success of our preclinical, clinical and development programs;

» revenues and profits from sales of Oracea, Pandel, and Periostat, and our other product candidates,
as well as the products we co-promote;

« the terms and conditions of our outstanding Series D-1 Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, or
Series D-1 Stock;

» our ability to continue to meet the covenant requirements under our amended revolving credit
facility with SVB;

o the costs involved in preparing, filing, prosecuting, maintaining and enforcing patent claims and
other patent-related costs, including potential litigation costs and the results of such litigation,
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» the extent to which we acquire or invest in businesses, products and technologies;

e the costs involved in obtaining and maintaining regulatory approvals and clearances required to
market and sell our products; and

» the receptivity of the capital markets to any future financings.

Until such time, if ever, as we can generate substantial product revenues, we expect to finance our
cash needs through public or private equity offerings, debt financings and corporate collaboration and
licensing arrangements. If we raise additional funds by issning equity securities, our stockholders may
experience dilution. Debt financing, if available, may involve agreements that include covenants limiting or
restricting our ability to take specific actions, such as incurring additional debt, making capital
expenditures or declaring dividends. Any debt financing or additional equity that we raise may contain
terms, such as liquidation and other preferences that are not favorable to us or our stockholders. If we
raise additional funds through collaboration and licensing arrangements with third parties, it may be
necessary to relinquish valuable rights to our technologies, research programs or products or grant licenses
on terms that may not be favorable to us.

We cannot assure you that our clinical trials will be completed in a timely manner or will meet agreed upon
end-points.

As part of our plans to expand into the dermatology market, we will need to conduct extensive testing
of our products, pursuant to protocols that measure end points agreed with the FDA or other regulatory
agencies. We cannot guarantee that Phase 1, Phase II, or Phase 111 testing for our products in development
will be completed successfully within any specified period of time, if at all. Many products that initially
appear promising are found, after clinical evaluation, not to be safe and effective, Also, we, or the FDA,
may suspend clinical trials at any time on various grounds, including a finding that the subjects or patients
are being exposed to an unacceptable health risk.

Delays in patient enrollment in clinical trials may result in increased costs and delays, which could
have a harmful effect on our ability to develop products.

It may take several years to complete the testing of a product, and failure can occur at any stage of
testing. For example:

 interim results of preclinical or clinical studies do not necessarily predict their final results, and
results in early studies might not be seen in later studies;

« potential products that appear promising at early stages of development may ultimately fail for a
number of reasons, including the possibility that the products may be ineffective, less effective than
products of our competitors or cause harmful side effects;

» any preclinical or clinical test may fail to produce results satisfactory to the FDA or foreign
regulatory authorities;

e preclinical and clinical data can be interpreted in different ways, which could delay, limit or prevent
regulatory approval;

* we may not be able to manufacture the investigational or commercial product in sufficient quantity
or quality or at acceptable cost;

* negative or inconclusive results from a preclinical study or clinical trial or adverse medical events
during a clinical trial could cause a preclinical study or clinical trial to be repeated or a program to
be terminated, even if other studies or trials relating to the program are successful;

¢ the FDA can place a hold on a clinical trial if, among other reasons, it finds that patients enrolled in
the trial are or would be exposed to an unreasonable and significant risk of illness or injury;
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« we may encounter delays or rejections based on changes in regulatory agency policies during the
period in which we develop a drug or the period required for review of any application for
regulatory agency approval; and

¢ our clinical trials may not demonstrate the safety and efficacy needed for our products to receive
regulatory approval.

If we are required to conduct additional clinical trials or other studies beyond those that we currently
contemplate, if we arc unable to successfully complete our clinical trials or other studies or if the results of
these trials or studies are not positive or are only modestly positive, we may be delayed in obtaining
marketing approval, we may not be able to obtain marketing approval or we may obtain approval for
indications that are not as broad as intended. Our product development costs will also increase if we
experience delays in testing or approvals. Significant clinical trial delays could allow our competitors to
bring products to market before we do and impair our ability to commercialize our products or potential
products. If any of this occurs, our business will be materially harmed.

If we infringe or are alleged to infringe intellectual property rights of third parties, it will adversely affect our
business.

Our research, development and commercialization activities, as well as any product candidates or
products resulting from these activities, may infringe or be claimed to infringe patents or patent
applications under which we do not hold licenses or other rights. Third parties may own or control these
patents and patent applications in the United States and abroad. These third parties could bring claims
against us or our collaborators that would cause us to incur substantial expenses and, if successful against
us, could cause us to pay substantial damages. Further, if a patent infringement suit were brought against
us or our collaborators, we or they could be forced to stop or delay research, development, manufacturing
or sales of the product or product candidate that is the subject of the suit.

As a result of patent infringement claims, or in order to avoid potential claims, we or our collaborators
may choose or be required to seek a license from the third party and be required to pay license fees or
royalties or both. These licenses may not be available on acceptable terms, or at all. Even if we or our
collaborators were able to obtain a license, the rights may be nonexclusive, which could result in our
competitors gaining access to the same intellectual property. Ultimately, we could be prevented from
commercializing a product, or be forced to cease some aspect of our business operations, if, as a result of
actual or threatened patent infringement claims, we or our collaborators are unable to enter into licenses
on acceptable terms. This could harm our business significantly.

There has been substantial litigation and other proceedings regarding patent and other intellectual
property rights in the pharmaceutical and biotechnology industries. In addition to infringement claims
against us, we may become a party to other patent litigation and other proceedings, including interference
proceedings declared by the USPTO and opposition proceedings in the European Patent Office, regarding
intellectual property rights with respect to our products and technology. The cost to us of any patent
litigation or other proceeding, even if resolved in our favor, could be substantial. Some of our competitors
may be able to sustain the costs of such litigation or proceedings more effectively than we can because of
their substantially greater financial resources. Uncertainties resulting from the initiation and continuation
of patent litigation or other proceedings could have a material adverse effect on our ability to compete in
the marketplace. Patent litigation and other proceedings may also absorb significant management time.

We depend upon third party researchers and providers of clinical services to perform as contractually
required if we are to be successful in bringing riew producis to market.

We do not have the ability independently to conduct the clinical trials required to obtain regulatory
approval for our products. We rely on independent clinical investigators, contract research organizations
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and other third party service providers for successful execution of our clinical trials, but do not control
many aspects of their activities. We are responsible for ensuring that each of our clinical trials is conducted
in accordance with the general investigational plan, protocols for the trial and applicable regulatory
requirements, Moreover, the FDA requires us to comply with standards, commonly referred to as Good
Clinical Practices, for conducting and recording and reporting the results of clinical trials to assure that
data and reported results are credible and accurate and that the rights, integrity and confidentiality of trial
participants are protected. Our reliance on third parties that we do not control does not relieve us of these
responsibilities and requirements. Third parties may not, however, complete activities on schedule, or may
not conduct our clinical trials in accordance with regulatory requirements or our stated protocols.
Furthermore the data that they generate may not be accurate or may, in extreme cases, be fraudulent.

Our ability to bring our future products to market depends on the quality and integrity of the data we
present to regulatory authorities in order to obtain marketing authorizations. We cannot guarantee the
authenticity or accuracy of such data, nor can we be certain that such data has not been fraudulently
generated. The failure of these third parties to carry out their obligations would materially adversely affect
our ability to develop and market new products and implement our strategies.

We depend upon certain key relationships to generate much of the technology required to maintain our
competitive position in the marketplace.

Our IMPACS technology is licensed under the SUNY License and other academic and research
institutions collaborating with SUNY. Under the SUNY License, we have an exclusive worldwide license
to SUNY’s rights in certain patents and patent applications to make and sell products employing
tetracyclines to treat certain disease conditions. The SUNY License imposes various payment and
reporting obligations on us, and our failure to comply with these requirements permits SUNY to terminate
the SUNY License. If the SUNY License is terminated, we would lose our right to exclude competitors
from commercializing similar products, and we could be excluded from marketing the same products if
SUNY licensed the underlying technology to a competitor after terminating the SUNY License. The
SUNY License is terminable by SUNY on 90 days prior notice only upon our failure to make timely
payments, reimbursements or reports, if the failure is not cured by us within 90 days. The termination of
the SUNY License, or the failure to obtain and maintain patent protection for our technologies, would
have a material adverse cffect on our business, financial condition, liquidity and results of operations.

If our products cause injuries, we may incur significant expense and liability.

Our business may be adversely affected by potential product liability claims arising out of the testing,
manufacturing and marketing of Periostat, Oracea and other products developed by or for us or for which
we have licensing or promotion and cooperation rights. We continually evaluate the limits and adequacy of
our product liability insurance coverage and currently have an aggregate of $10.0 million in product
liability insurance covering Pertostat, and Oracea, our product candidates and products for which we have
licensing or promotion and cooperation rights,

Our insurer has also notified us that our general product liability policy will not cover claims arising
from our past sales of Vioxx, to the extent such claims are made after December 31, 2004. This does not
affect our rights under the Co-Promotion Agreement with Merck, which provides for indemnification of us
by Merck against any claims arising from manufacturing or design defects in the Vioxx product or for
which we, as the seller of the product, may be strictly liable as a seller of an inherently dangerous product.

Our insurance may not adequately protect us against product liability claims. Insufficient insurance
coverage or the failure to obtain indemnification from third parties for their respective liabilities may
expose us to product liability claims and/or recalls and could cause our business, financial condition and
results of operations to decline.
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Our stock price is highly volatile and, therefore, the value of your investment may fluctuate significantly.

The market price of our common stock has fluctuated and may continue to fluctuate as a result of
variations in our quarterly operating results. These fluctuations may be exaggerated if the trading volume
of our common stock is low. In addition, the stock market in general has experienced dramatic price and
volume fluctuations from time to time. These fluctuations may or may not be based upon any business or
operating results. Our common stock may experience similar or even more dramatic price and volume
fluctuations that may continue indefinitely.

The following table sets forth the high and low last sale prices per share for our common stock for
each of the quarters in the period beginning January 1, 2004 through December 31, 2006, as reported on
the NASDAQ Global Market:

Quarter Ended High Low

March 3L, 2004, . .ottt et e e $14.16 $10.07
JURe 30,2004 ...ttt e e $13.21 § 8.70
September 30,2004, . ... ... e $ 949 § 6.09
December31, 2004 .. ..ovtnr et $ 749 § 537
March 31, 2005, ... i e et e $ 752 § 450
JUne 30, 2005 . it i s e $ 761 § 399
September30,2005. . ... .o $995 §$ 715
December 31, 2005 .. v it e e e $12.07 $ 8.0
March 31,2006, ... .. r oot it e $14.80 $11.27
June 30, 2006 . ... .t e e e, $14.67 $10.52
September 30, 2006. . ... ..ottt $13.22 § 852
December 31,2006 .. ovvtre et e $1465 $11.35

ItemlB. Unresolved Staff Comments.

Not applicable.

Item 2.  Properties.

We own no real property. Our principal executive offices, located at 41 University Drive, Suite 200,
Newtown, Pennsylvania, consist of 18,163 square feet of leased space. Our lease for such premises
continues through July 2009.

Item 3.  Legal Proceedings.
IVAX and CorePharma

On October 1, 2004, we filed a complaint for patent infringement against IVAX Pharmaceuticals Inc.,
or IVAX, and CorePharma LLC, or CorePharma, in the United States District Court for the Eastern
District of New York. In our complaint, we alleged that the submission of ANDAs by each of IVAX and
CorePharma for 20 mg tablets of doxycycline hyclate infringed United States Patent RE 34,656, for which
we are the exclusive licensee. We also alleged that any manufacture, importation, marketing and sale of
generic 20 mg tablets of doxycycline hyclate by IVAX and CorePharma would infringe the RE 34,656
patent. We sought an injunction preventing IVAX and CorePharma from introducing 20 mg tablets of
doxycycline hyclate in the United States. The injunction was denied by the Court on June 16, 2005. We,
IVAX, and CorePharma have since agreed not to pursue litigation on the merits of our patent
infringement claims of the counter claims alleged by IVAX and CorePharma. On May 10, 2006, the Court
in the Eastern District of New York entered a Stipulated Order of Dismissal with Prejudice as to the
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matters at issue with CorePharma, and on September 20, 2006 a similar order was entered with respect to
IVAX.

Under the SUNY License, we are entitled to deduct costs incurred to defend its patents, including the
$2.0 million settlement payment to Mutual in April 2004, from current and future royalties due to SUNY
on net sales of Periostat and sales to Mutual. We anticipate that our future legal costs in these matters
relating to patent infringement and defense will be reimbursed by SUNY pursuant to the SUNY License
to the extent that these legal expenses do not exceed royalties earned by SUNY. In the event such
cumulative legal costs exceed the amount of the royalties’ payable to SUNY, we will not be able to recover
such legal costs from SUNY. The cumulative legal patent defense, litigation and settlement costs incurred
as of December 31, 2006 exceed the amount of the royalties earned and payable to SUNY since our
litigation commenced by approximately $3.6 million. These amounts, which have been expensed, will be
available to offset future royalties earned by SUNY, if any, on net sales of products based on the SUNY

technology.

Itemd4. Submission of Matters to a Yote of Security Holders.

Not applicable.
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PARTII

Item 5.  Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities.

Market Information

Since June 20, 1996, our common stock has traded on the NASDAQ Global Market under the symbol
“CGPL”

The following table sets forth the high and low last sale prices per share for our common stock for
each of the quarters in the period beginning January 1, 2005 through December 31, 2006, as reported on
the NASDAQ Global Market:

Quarter Ended High Low

March 31,2005, ... ovr e ettt ie e $ 752 § 4.50
June 30,2005 ...t $ 761 §$ 399
September 30,2005 ... ... it $995 § 715
December 31,2005 ...\ttt ie et $1207 § 850
March 31,2006, . ..ot ii i ittt $14.80 $11.27
June 30,2006 .. ... i e $1467 $10.52
September 30,2006, . ... ... $13.22 § 8.52
December 31,2006 . ..o oviiiein i $14.65 $11.35

Holders

As of March 7, 2007, the approximate number of holders of record of our common stock was 88 and
the approximate number of beneficial holders of our common stock was 3,979 as of March 12, 2007.

Dividends .

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock. Except as set forth below,
we intend to retain earnings, if any, to fund future growth and the operation of our business. On May 12,
1999, we consummated a $20.0 million financing through the issuance of our Series D Cumulative
Convertible Preferred Stock, or Series D Stock. As a result of such financing, we had certain common
stock dividend obligations and continue to have certain cumulative cash dividend obligations to the holders
of the Series D Stock, who now hold Series D-1 Stock as a result of the Restructuring and Exchange
Agreement we executed with such holders on December 15, 2005. Such arrangement also limits our ability
to generally declare dividends to our common stockholders. In addition, our ability to generally declare
dividends to our common stockholders is further limited by the terms of our credit facility with SVB, which
expires on October 9, 2008.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Information relating to compensation plans under which our equity securities are authorized for
issuance is set forth under “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and
Related Stockholder Matters” in our definitive proxy statement for our 2007 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.

Item 6.  Selected Consolidated Financial Data.

The selected consolidated financial data set forth below with respect to our consolidated statement of
operations for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2006 and our consolidated
balance sheets as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 are derived from and qualified by reference to our
audited consolidated financial statements and the related notes thereto found at “Item 15. Exhibits and
Financial Statement Schedules” herein. The consolidated statement of operations data for the years ended
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December 31, 2003 and 2002 and the consolidated balance sheet data as of December 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002 are derived from our audited consolidated financial statements not included in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K. Historical results are not necessarily indicative of future results. The selected consolidated
financial data set forth below should be read in conjunction with and is qualified in its entirety by our
audited consolidated financial statements and related notes thereto found at “Item 15. Exhibits and
Financial Statement Schedules” and “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” which are included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Years Ended December 31,
2006(2) 2005 2004 2003 2002
(dollars in thousands except for per share data)

Consolidated Statement of Operation Data:

Revenues:

Netproductsales ........................ $ 24448 § 25736 $ 51,739 § 49,038 § 42,111

Contractrevenues. ..., ........ ..., cou.... 1,390 481 237 3,122 2,332

Licenserevenues. . .. .......cooueveennan.. 64 188 170 699 176

Grantrevenues.................cc...0uo.- 471 — — — —
Totalrevenues ...........c.cveiiivinienn,,. 26,373 26,405 52,146 52,859 44,619
Operating expenses:

Costof productsales ..................... 5473 5,885 7,446 7,362 6,713

Research and development.............,.. 15,394 13,986 8,843 5,462 4,394

Selling, general and administrative. ......... 40,925 25,242 29,417 32,968 32,699

Restructuring charge . .................... — 1,184 348 — —

Legalsettlement .. ... .................... — — 2,000 700 —

Gain on sale of U.K. and European dental

1111 1 A — — (2,980) — —
Operating (loss) income. ..............,. (35,419) (19,892) 7,072 6,367 813

Interest INCOME . o v v e et ie i cie e 2,001 1,087 421 148 77
Interestexpense ..........cooiiiieia,,. (16) — — — (5)
Other income (expense) ............coouen,. — — 2 (3) 17 1\
(Loss) income before income taxes ........... (33,434) (18,805) 7,495 6,512 902
Income taxes. .. coviurinniieiiierinianans — — 967 85 —
Net(loss)income ................ e $ (33434)8 (18,805) % 6,528 § 6,427 § 902
Net (loss) income allocable to common

stockholders .................ocoiiiiann $ (35362)% (24212) % 4,928 § 4,827 $ (727)
Basic net (loss) income per share allocable to

common stockholders(1) . ................. $ (1.98) § (167) 3 035 § 0.40 § {0.06)
Diluted net (loss) income per share allocable to

common stockholders{i)............... .. 3 (1.98) (Len) § 0.34 § 038 % (0.06)
Shares used in computing basic per share

amounts(l) ......... ... el 17,902,257 14,480,779 14,264,687 12,094,638 11,234,652
Shares used in computing diluted per share

amounis(l) ..., 17,502,257 14,480,779 14,500,637 12,836,364 11,234,652

As of December 31,
2006(2) 2005 2004 2003 2002
{(in thousands)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Cash, cash equivalents and short-term

INVESTIMENLS . . oottt e et e eee e $ 65830 § 44425 § 38645 § 32,670 § 10,112
Workingcapital, . ..., 59,636 34,643 39,7114 32,010 5992
Total assets .. .....oiveniineiin i, 79,207 49,165 52,346 44,132 17,634
Accumulated deficit..................... ... (123,500) (89,138) (64,926) (69,854) (74,681)
Total stockholders’ equity . .................. £ 62302 § 35668 8 41,215 § 33,956 § 8,352

(1) See Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for information concerning computation of net (loss)
income per share allocable to common stockholders.

(2) See Note 9 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for information concerning our adoption of SFAS
No. 123R effective January 1, 2006.
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Item7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of QOperations,

Our management’s discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations include
the identification of certain trends and other statements that may predict or anticipate future business or
financial results that are subject to important factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially
from those indicated. See Item 1A, “Risk Factors.”

Overview

CollaGenex Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and subsidiaries is a specialty pharmaceutical company currently
focused on developing and marketing innovative proprietary medical therapies to the dermatology market.
We currently market four prescription pharmaceutical products to the dermatology market through our
professional dermatology sales force and generate revenues from four other prescription pharmaceutical
products that we continue to sell to the dental market. In May 2006, the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration, or the FDA, granted us marketing approval for Oracea™ for the treatment of
inflammatory lesions (papules and pustules) of rosacea in adult patients. Oracea is the first FDA approved,
orally-administered, systemically-delivered drug to treat rosacea. In July 2006, we launched Oracea to the
U.S. dermatology community. .

Our strategy is to become a leading developer and marketer of innovative prescription pharmaceutical
products to the dermatology market. We intend to continue to market our current products, including
Oracea, and develop and launch new products based on our proprietary platform technologies as well as
other technologies. Our lead development candidates are: incyclinide (formerly known as COL-3), which is
currently in two separate Phase II dose-finding clinical trials for the treatment of acne and rosacea;
COL-118, a topical compound for which we are developing for the treatment of erythema (skin redness)
associated with dermatological conditions and for which we recently completed the clinical portion of a
Phase I clinical trial; and our Restoraderm®, a foam-based, topical dermal drug delivery system, which is
currently under development.

Our marketed dermatology products are: Oracea; Pandel®, a prescription corticosteroid we licensed
from Altana, Inc. in May 2002; Alcortin™, a prescription topical antifungal steroid combination; and
Novacort™, a prescription topical steroid and anesthetic. In June 2005, we executed a Promotion and
Cooperation Agreement with Primus Pharmaceuticals Inc., or Primus, to market Alcortin and Novacort to
dermatologists.

Our original dental product, Periostat®, is an orally-administered, prescription pharmaceutical
product that was approved by the FDA in September 1998 for the treatment of adult periodontitis. On
May 20, 2005, we terminated our dental sales force and promotional activities for Periostat following the
introduction of a third party generic version of the product. We also discontinued the promotion of our
other dental products on May 20, 2005. We continue 10 generate sales from Periostat and three other
dental products, which include Atridox®, Atrisorb FreeFlow® and Atrisorb-D®, also referred to as the
Atrix Products, and are each licensed from Tolmar Inc., a subsidiary of Tecnofarma, S.A.

In addition to our marketed products, we have a pipeline of product candidates in clinical and
preclinical development. These products are based on our proprietary platform technologies, IMPACS™,
SansRosa™ and Restoraderm.

IMPACS (Inhibitors of Multiple Proteases And CytokineS) are a group of compounds that
demonstrate a range of anti-inflammatory activities as well as the ability to inhibit the breakdown of
connective tissue. Periostat and Oracea are our first FDA-approved IMPACS products. incyclinide is an
IMPACS compound currently in clinical development for the treatment of acne and rosacea. Our
IMPACS technology is licensed on a perpetual basis from the Research Foundation of the State University
of New York at Stony Brook, or SUNY. SUNY also conducts research and development on other potential
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applications of this technology on a project basis, Our SansRosa technology, which we acquired in
connection with the acquisition of SansRosa Pharmaceutical Development Inc., or SansRosa, in
December 2005, is a class of compounds that have shown promise in reducing the redness associated with
rosacea, and we intend to formulate and develop a topical treatment for rosacea based on one or more of
these compounds. Our Restoraderm technology is a proprietary, foam-based, topical drug delivery
technology that originated from a Swedish collaborator. We have acquired all rights, title and interest to
the Restoraderm technology. We have formulated various prescription and over the counter products
based on the Restoraderm technology. We do not currently have a timetable for either the initiation of
clinical development or the launch of any Restoraderm products.

We were founded in 1992 and completed an initial public offering of our common stock in 1996.
Although we achieved net income for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 we have incurred
losses in every other year since inception and have an accumulated deficit of $123.5 million at
December 31, 2006.

Results of Operations
Years Ended December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005

Revenues
Revenues 2006 Change 2005
{dollars in thousands)

Qracea NetProduct Sales ............ccvvvivn.. $11,933 N/A 3 —

Other Net Products Sales. ....................... 12,515 (51.4)% 25,736
Total Net Product Sales....................... 24,448 (5.0)% 25,736

Contract Revenues .........oviiiiinarvnnnnns 1,390  189.0% 481

License Revenue ............ .o iiiiioas, 64  (66.0)% 188

GrantRevenues. .. ...........coieiienininennnn. 471 N/A —
Total Revenues .......c.o.ovtiviiiniieninnnans. $26,373 (0.)%  $26,405

Net product sales of Oracea, Periostat, Pandel and the Atrix Products during the year ended
December 31, 2006 were approximately $24.4 million. Net revenues from the sale of dermatology products
were nearly 70% of total revenue in 2006 compared to 31% in 2003, reflecting our transition from a dental
pharmaceutical company to a company focused on developing and marketing prescription pharmaceutical
products for the dermatology market. The decrease in net product sales was primarily due to lower
Periostat net sales and the elimination of sales of United Research Laboratories, Inc./Mutual
Pharmaceutical Company, Inc., or Mutual’s, branded version of Periostat as a result of the launch of a
third party generic competitor in May 2003, offset in part by net sales of Oracea following its market
launch in July 2006.

Contract revenues during the year ended December 31, 2006, were derived primarily from our
Promotion and Cooperation Agreement with Primus for the Alcortin and Novacort products. The
Promotion and Cooperation Agreement was executed in June 2005; the increase in 2006 is attributable to
having a full vear of sales. During the year ended December 31, 2005, contract revenues were primarily
derived from residual contract revenue from our expired agreement with Merck & Co., Inc. for Vioxx®
and from our Promotion and Cooperation Agreement with Primus for the Alcortin and Novacort products.
License revenues during each of the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 consisted primarily of
international licensing revenues for Periostat. License revenues during the year ended December 31, 2005,
included $132,000 in license revenue representing the unamortized portion of up front license received in
the year 2000 related to Periostat, which was terminated in March 2005. Grant revenues of $471,000
recognized during the vear ended December 31, 2006 represent reimbursements received during the year
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from the National Institutes of Health, or NIH, pursuant to the November 2005 grant related to our
incyclinide development program.

Cost of Product Sales
Cost of Product Sales 2006 Change 2005
(dollars in thousands}
Costof Product Sales ........ .o $5,473 (7.0)%  $5885
Percent of Net Product Sales. ..............oouis, 22.4% NA 22.9%

Cost of product sales includes product packaging, third party royalties, amortization of product
licensing fees, costs associated with the manufacturing, storage and stability of Oracea, (in 2006), Periostat,
and Mutual’s branded version of Periostat (in 2005), and the transfer price and storage costs associated
with our products, as well as charges taken to reflect decreases in inventory carrying value.

Cost of product sales during the year ended December 31, 2006, includes a charge of $257,000
associated with the write-down of excess and short dated inventories. Excluded from cost of product sales
during the year ended December 31, 2006 was approximately $700,000 of pre-FDA approval Oracea
manufacturing expenses.

Cost of product sales for the year ended December 31, 2005 includes a charge of approximately $1.0
million associated with the estimated excess inventories of Periostat and Mutual’s branded version of
Periostat as a resuit of the launch by a third party generic competitor which occurred in May 2005.

Research and Development

Research and Development 2006 Change 2005
(dollars in thousands)
Research and development .. .............cocoenines $15,394 101% $13,986

Research and development expenses consist primarily of funds paid to third parties for the provision
of services and materials for drug development, pre-FDA approval manufacturing and production costs
related to Oracea, including milestone fees, manufacturing and formulation enhancements, clinical trials,
purchased in-process research and development, statistical analysis report writing and regulatory
compliance costs (including new drug approval submission and filing fees).

Significant development projects conducted during the year ended December 31, 2006 included:
e clinical and manufacturing development activities for incyclinide of approximately $8.0 million;

» clinical and manufacturing activities (including pre-FDA approval production and validation costs)
and regulatory compliance costs for Oracea of approximately $1.5 million;

e various Phase IV clinical trials and post approval studies related to Oracea of approximately
$1.2 million; and

o in-process research and development and manufacturing development costs related to COL-118 of
approximately $1.0 million.

Personnel and direct internal overhead expenses, including consulting and regulatory costs incurred
during the year ended December 31, 2006, were approximately $3.6 million.

We estimate that if incyclinide is developed to the point of commercialization for both acne and
rosacea indications, the additional formulation and clinical development expenses and milestone fees
expected to be incurred to product commercialization, would be between $15.0 million and $20.0 million.
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We are currently conducting formulation and stability work on products incorporating our Restoraderm
technology, and we are reviewing product options and the timetable associated with clinical development
or commercial launch. It is premature to estimate future development and clinical costs associated with:
COL-118. We anticipate that our personnel and direct internal expenses will increase in 2007 as we add
additional clinical personnel. We discontinued all development work on Periostat-MR following the launch
of generic competition to Periostat in May 2005 and our decision to exit the dental business.

Significant development projects conducted during the year ended December 31, 2005 included:
¢ clinical and manufacturing development work for Oracea of approximately $5.0 million;
 clinical and manufacturing development work for incyclinide of $3.1 million;

* clinical and manufacturing development and formulation work for Periostat-MR of approximately
$1.3 million;

¢ stability testing and formulation costs for potential products utilizing our Restoraderm technology,
of approximately $1.1 million; and

e the initial purchase price installment for SansRosa technology of $750,000.
Personnel and direct internal overhead expenses, including consulting and regulatory costs incurred
during the year ended December 31, 2005, were approximately $2.7 million.

Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, General and Administrative 2006 Change 2005
(dollars in thoysands)
Selling, General and Administrative ................ $40,925 62.1% $25,242
Restructuringcharge. ...t — N/A 1,184
1o} - Y $40,925 549% $26,426

Selling, general and administrative expenses consist primarily of personnel salaries and benefits,
including non-cash stock-based compensation expense in 2006, direct marketing costs, professional, legal
and consulting fees, insurance and general office expenses.

Significant components of selling, general and administrative expenses incurred during the year ended
December 31, 2006 included approximately $15.7 million in direct selling and sales training expenses,
approximately $15.3 million in marketing expenses (including advertising and promotion expenditures for
Oracea, the Primus products and Pandel) and approximately $9.9 million in general and administrative
expenses, which include business development, finance, legal and corporate activities. Significant
components of selling, general and administrative expenses incurred during the year ended December 31,
2005 inctuded approximately $10.4 million in direct selling and sales training expenses, approximately
$7.7 million in marketing expenses (including advertising and promotion expenditures for Periostat, the
Atrix Products, the Primus products and Pandel), and approximately $7.1 million in general and
administrative expenses, which include business development, finance, iegal and corporate activities. The
increase in selling, general and administrative expense of approximately $15.7 million during the year
ended December 31, 2006 compared to the year ended December 31, 2005, was primarily due to $2.9
million of non-cash stock-based compensation expense, increased marketing costs of $7.1 million primarily
associated with Oracea pre-launch and post-launch activities and increased direct sales force and sales
training costs related to Oracea of approximately $4.7 million and an increase in various general and
administrative costs of $1.0 million.

The restructuring charge during the year ended December 31, 2005 consisted of a $1.2 million charge
related to a reorganization foilowing the approval of a third party generic version of Periostat, Of this
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charge, $813,000 related to employee severance costs while the remaining portion was primarily related to
the write-off of assets. As a result of the restructuring, we ceased all domestic sales activities related to
Periostat and our dental franchise.

Other Income/Expense
Other Income/Expense 2006 Change 2005
(dollars in thousands)
INEEIESTINCOME o\ttt ettt tie e e e eieaneannns $2,001 843% §$1,087

The increase in interest income was due to higher average short-term investment and cash equivalent
balances and corresponding yields in 2006 compared to 2005.

Preferred Stock Dividend and Series D-1 Preferred Stock Restructuring and Exchange

Preferred stock dividends included in net loss allocable to common stockholders were $1.9 million
during the year ended December 31, 2006 and $1.7 million during the year ended December 31, 2005. Such
preferred stock dividends are paid in cash and are the result of our obligations in connection with the
issnance of our Series D Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, or the Series D Stock, in May 1999, On
December 15, 2005, we executed a Restructuring and Exchange Agreement with each of the holders of our
outstanding Series D Stock, pursuant to which, among other things, the Series D stockholders agreed to
effect an exchange, whereby we exchanged all 200,000 outstanding shares of our Series D Stock for 200,000
shares of our Series Cumulative Convertible Preferred D-1 Stock, or the Series D-1 Stock. In 2003, we also
recorded a $3.7 million non-cash charge in connection with the Series D Stock Restructuring and
Exchange Agreement.

Pursuant to the terms of our Series D-1 Stock, the holders of the Series D-1 Stock are entitled to
dividends payable in cash at a current rate of 10.0% per annum, which are declared and paid every six
months. The annual dividend rate increases by 1.0% per annum on May 19, 2007 and each subsequent
anniversary thereof until the earlier of the date that all of the shares of Series D-1 Stock are (l) converted
into shares of common stock, or (ii} redeemed.

Years Ended December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004

Revenues
Revenues 2005 Change 2004
{dollars in thousands)
Net Product 8ales . .ooeereee s eiannnnnnns $25,736  (50.3)%  $51,739
Contract Revenues . ........vcoviivinneeninnrnn, 481 103.0% 237
License Revenues . . ... ....viiiiiiiinrnniranens 188 10.6% 170
Total o e e $26,405 (49.4)%  $52,146
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Revenues during the year ended December 31, 2005 included approximately $25.7 million in net
product sales of Periostat, Mutual’s branded version of Periostat, Pandel and the Atrix Products, During
2005, we recorded $5.6 million in sales to Mutual. The decrease in 2005 net product sales was primarily
due to lower Periostat net sales as a result of the launch of a third party generic competitor in May 2005.
Based on data provided by a leading independent prescription tracking service, we estimate that Periostat’s
share of the doxycycline market was 14% at December 31, 2005. Contract revenues during the year ended
December 31, 2005 were derived primarily from our Promotion and Cooperation Agreement with Primus
and residual contract revenues from our expired agreement with Merck & Co., Inc., or Merck, for Vioxx.
Licensing revenues during the year ended December 31, 2005 consisted primarily of international licensing
revenues for Periostat and $132,000 in license revenue representing the unamortized portion of upfront
license revenue received in 2000 from the License and Supply Agreement with Showa Yakuhin Kako Co.,
Ltd., which was terminated in March 2005. During the year ended December 31, 2004, contract revenues
were primarily derived from residual contract revenues from our expired agreement with Merck and
license revenues consisted primarily of international license fees for Periostat, including the amortization
of the Showa Yakuhin Kako Co., Lid. license.

Cost of Product Sales

Cost of Product Sales 2005 Change 2004
(dollars in thousands)

Costof Product Sales ..............ccoovvinnn. $5,885 (21.0)% $7,446

Percent of Net Product Sales. .................... 229% N/A 14.4%

Cost of product sales includes product packaging, third party royalties, amortization of product
licensing fees, and the costs associated with the manufacturing, storage and stability of Periostat, Mutual’s
branded version of Periostat, Pandel and the Atrix Products, as well as charges taken to reflect decreases in
inventory carrying value.

Cost of product sales for the year ended December 31, 2005 included a charge of approximately
$1.0 million associated with the estimated excess inventories of Periostat and Mutual’s branded version of
Periostat as a result of the launch by a third party generic competitor. Cost of product sales also increased
as a percentage of net product sales as a result of lower average selling prices to Mutual, a greater
absorption of fixed overhead expense over a smaller net sales base and a change in product mix during the
year ended December 31, 2005 as compared the year ended December 31, 2004.

Research and Development

Research and Development 2005 Change 2004
. (dollars in thousands)
Research and development ......................... $13,980 58.2% $8.843

Research and development expenses consist primarily of funds paid to third parties for the provision
of services and materials for drug development, including milestone fees, manufacturing and formulation
enhancements, clinical trials, purchased in-process research and development, statistical analysis and
report writing and regulatory compliance costs (including a drug approval submission and filing fees).

Significant development projects conducted during the year ended December 31, 2005 included:
» continuing clinical and manufacturing development work for Oracea of approximately $5.0 million;

» clinical and manufacturing development work for incyclinide of $3.1 million;
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e clinical and manufacturing development and formulation work for Periostat-MR of approximately
$1.3 million;

e stability testing and formulation costs for potential products utilizing our Restoraderm technology
of approximately $1.1 million; and

« the initial purchase price installment for SansRosa technology of $750,000.

Personnel and direct internal overhead expenses, including consulting and regulatory costs incurred
during the year ended December 31, 2005, were approximately $2.7 million.

Significant development projects conducted during the year ended December 31, 2004 included:
» clinical and manufacturing development work for Oracea of approximately $2.7 million;

e clinical and manufacturing development and formulation work for Periostat-MR, of approximately
$2.2 million;

¢ in-process research and development charges associated with developing our Restoraderm
technology, including milestone fees and formulation and stability testing costs for two potential
products, of approximately $868,000;

e clinical and manufacturing development work for incyclinide of $673,000; and

« the completion of a Phase III clinical trial to evaluate Periostat for the treatment of rosacea, which
accounted for $417,000 in expense.

Personnel and direct internal overhead expenses, including consulting and regulatory costs incurred
during the year ended December 31, 2004 were approximately $2.0 million.

Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, General and Administrative 2008 Change 2004
(dollars in thousands)
Selling, General and Administrative .............. $25,242 (14.2)%  $29,417
Legalsettlement ..................ciiiiin... —_ N/A 2,000
Restructuring charge. ... 1,184  240.2% 348
Total ... e $26,426 (16.8)%  $31,765

Selling, general and administrative expenses consist primarily of personnel salaries and benefits, direct
marketing costs, professional, lega! and consulting fees, insurance and general office expenses.

Significant components of selling, general and administrative expenses incurred during the year ended
December 31, 2005 included approximately $10.4 million in direct selling and sales training expenses,
approximately $7.7 million in marketing expenses (including advertising and promotion expenditures for
Periostat, the Atrix Products, the Primus products and Pandel) and approximately $7.1 million in general
and administrative expenses, which include business development, finance, legal and corporate activities.
Significant components of selling, general and administrative expenses incurred during the year ended
December 31, 2004 included approximately $15.0 million in direct selling and sales training expenses,
approximately $7.5 million in marketing expenses (including advertising and promotion expenditures for
Periostat, the Atrix Products and Pandel), and approximately $6.9 million in general and administrative
expenses, which include business development, finance, legal and corporate activities. The decrease in
selling, general and administrative expenses during the year ended December 31, 2005 compared to the
year ended December 31, 2004 was primarily attributable to decreased personnel costs as a result of the
April 2004 sales force restructuring and the May 2005 termination of our domestic dental sales and
marketing activities and the corresponding reduction of 63 employees, including our dental sales force.
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Legal settlement consisted of $2.0 million during the year ended December 31, 2004 that resulted
from the accrual for a payment to Mutual in connection with the settlement of all outstanding litigation
between us and Mutual.

Restructuring charges during the year ended December 31, 2005 consisted of $1.2 million related to a
reorganization following the approval of a third party generic version of Periostat in May of 2005. As a
result of the restructuring, we ceased all of our dental sales and marketing activities, including the
termination of 63 employees. Restructuring expenses during the year ended December 31, 2004 consisted
of $348,000 that resulted from the April 2004 reorganization of our sales organization into dedicated
dental and dermatology sales forces. These charges consisted primarily of severance costs and the write-off
of fixed assets. As of December 31, 2005, we had paid all but $96,000 of such restructuring charges, which
related exclusively to the May 2005 restructuring.

Gain on Sale of U.K. and European Dental Assets

During 2004, we sold our U.K. and European dental assets to Alliance Pharma plc, a U.K. specialty
pharmaceuticals company, for net pretax proceeds of approximately $3.0 million. A provision of $945,000
was made for anticipated U.K. income taxes due on this sale. In accordance with United States generally
accepted accounting principles, the pretax gain on this sale of assets is included within operating income
and the income tax provision is included within income taxes.

Other Income/Expense

Other Income/Expense 2005 Change 2004
{dollars in thousands)
INterest iNCOMIE « .\ vt vttt et eeneinenaennns $1,087 158.0% $421

The increase in interest income was due primarily to higher average investment yields in 2005
compared to 2004,
Preferred Stock Dividend

Preferred stock dividends included in net (loss) income allocable to common stockholders were
$1.7 million during the year ended December 31, 2005 and $1.6 million during the year ended
December 31, 2004, Such preferred stock dividends were paid in cash and are the result of our obligations
in connection with the issuance of our Series D Stock in May 1999,

In 2005, we also recorded a $3.7 million non-cash charge in connection with the Series D Stock
Restructuring and Exchange Agreement as previously described.
Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash Requirements/Sources and Uses of Cash

We require cash to fund our operating expenses, capital expenditures and dividend payments on our
outstanding Series D-1 Stock. We have historically funded our cash requirements primarily through the
following: :

» Public offerings and private placements of our preferred and common stock;
¢ Cash flows from operations; and

¢ Exercise of stock options and warrants.
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We believe that other key factors that could affect our internal and external sources of cash are:

The cost of commercialization activities, including product marketing and sales;

¢ The successful commercialization of Oracea and its acceptance by managed care organizations and
other third party payors;

¢ Successfully obtaining European Union approval of Oracea and in turn the success of MediGene
AG, our foreign marketing partner for Oracea, in commercializing Oracea in the European Union;

¢ The success of our dermatology franchise;

e The success of our prosecution of the application Serial No. 10/757,656 related to the use of
chemically modified tetracyclines for the treatment of acne and acne rosacea, including incyclinide;

» The issuance of U.S. Patent Application, Serial No. 10/117,709;

¢ Receipt and maintenance of marketing approvals from the FDA and similar foreign regulatory
authorities for our product candidates;

¢ The success of our preclinical, clinical and development programs;

» Revenues and profits from sales of Oracea, Pandel, and Periostat, and our other product
candidates, as well as the products we co-promote;

¢ The terms and conditions of our outstanding Series D-1 Stock;

 Our ability to continue to meet the covenant requirements under our amended revolving credit
facility with Silicon Valley Bank, or SVB;

» The costs involved in preparing, filing, prosecuting, maintaining and enforcing patent claims and
other patent-related costs, including potential litigation costs and the results of such litigation,;

» The extent to which we acquire or invest in businesses, products and technologies;

¢ The costs involved in obtaining and maintaining regulatory approvals and clearances required to
market and sell our products; and

* The receptivity of the capital markets to any future financings.

On December 18, 2006, we executed a Product License and Supply Agreement with MediGene AG, a
corporation existing under the laws of Germany, for the marketing rights to Oracea. Under the Product
License and Supply Agreement, effective January 1, 2007, MediGene receives the right to manufacture,
register, market and sell Oracea in the European Unicn, certain contiguous countries and Russia. We
received an upfront fee of $5.0 million less applicable withholding taxes of approximately $1.0 million, for
which we expect to be reimbursed during 2007, related to the execution of the agreement and are entitled
to an additional $7.5 million in milestone payments upon the achievement of certain annual sales
thresholds. In addition, we will receive an agreed upon transfer price and a royalty of 12% of annual net
sales up to $10 million and 15% of annual net sales in excess of $10 million in the specified territories.

In October 2002, we announced the execution of a license agreement with Medtronic, Inc. involving
our IMPACS compounds, pursuant to which Medtronic obtained an exclusive, worldwide license to
technology relating to the use of the compounds to treat aortic aneurysms and other forms of vascular
disease with medical devices, This program is still underway. In an amendment to the Medtronic License
dated January 27, 2007, we agreed to narrow the scope of Medtronic’s rights, to provide that the license
may become non-exclusive if certain milestones are not timely met, and to accelerate the timing of the first
milestone payment of $250,000 so that it was payable as an advance payment due upon execution of the
amendment. Further milestone payments of $500,000 and $2,000,000, respectively, become due upon first
human use and first commercial sale, of a product incorporating IMPACS technology. Medtronic must
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also pay royalties based on a percentage of net sales of such a product. Neither we nor Medtronic have
developed a timetable for clinical development or commercial launch of any product.

In November 2006, we raised $42.5 million in a public offering, net of placement agency fees and all
related offering expenses. In December 2005 and January 2006, we raised $11.6 million and $15.5 million,
respectively, in a public offering, net of placement agency fees and all related offering expenses.

On May 31, 2006, we entered into a Fifth Loan Modification Agreement, or the Maodification
Agreement, with SVB to amend and renew the Loan and Security Agreement between us and SVB dated
March 19, 2001, as previously amended, or the Loan Agreement, which expired on May 31, 2006. Pursuant
to the terms of the Modification Agreement, among other things, (i) the expiration date of amended credit
facility was extended to May 31, 2007 and (ii) covenants requiring us to (A) maintain a Minimum Adjusted
Quick Ratio, as defined therein, and (B) maintain a minimum of $2.0 million in cash, net of borrowings
under the Loan Agreement, were eliminated. Under the amended credit facility, we were permitted to
borrow up to the lesser of $5.0 million or 80% of eligible receivables, as defined under the Loan
Agreement. The amount available to us was reduced by any outstanding letters of credit issued under the
amended credit facility in amounts totaling up to $2.0 million. As we paid down amounts under any letter
of credit, the amount available to us under the amended credit facility increased.

On October 9, 2006, we entered into the Sixth Loan Modification Agreement, or the Subsequent
Modification Agreement with SVB to amend and renew the Loan Agreement. Pursuant to the terms of the
Subsequent Modification Agreement, the expiration date of amended credit facility has been extended to
October 9, 2008. Under the amended credit facility, we may borrow up to the lesser of (i) $10.0 million or
(ii) 80% of eligible receivables plus certain specified amounts, subject to reduction during the period
October 9, 2006 through December 31, 2007. The amount available to us is reduced by any outstanding
letters of credit that may be issued under the amended credit facility in amounts totaling up to $2.0 million.
As we pay down amounts under any letter of credit, the amount available to us under the credit facility
increases. We are not obligated to draw down any amounts under the amended credit facility and any
borrowings shall bear interest, payable monthly, at SVB’s prime rate. Under the Subsequent Modification
Agreement, we are charged an unused line credit fee of 0.25% per annum. In addition, under the amended
credit facility, we are subject to financial covenants that require us to maintain minimum liquidity and
tangible net worth levels on a quarterly basis. No letters of credit were outstanding at December 31, 2006.
We were not obligated to draw down any amounts under the amended credit facility and any borrowings
bear interest, payable monthly, at SVB’s prime rate, or 8.25%, at December 31, 2006. Under the
Subsequent Modification Agreement, we are charged an unused line credit fee of 0.25% per annum. We
had no borrowings outstanding at December 31, 2006.

At December 31, 2006, we had cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments of approximately
$65.8 million compared to the approximately $44.4 million balance at December 31, 2005. This increase is
primarily a result of the proceeds from the public offering of 4,850,000 shares of our common stock, offset
in part by net cash used in operating activities during the year ended December 31, 2006. In accordance
with investment guidelines approved by our Board of Directors, cash balances in excess of those required
to fund operations have been invested in government notes, commercial paper, certificates of deposit and
money market funds. Our working capital at December 31, 2006 was $59.6 million compared to $34.6
miilion at December 31, 2005. During the year ended December 31, 2006, we invested approximately
$439,000 in capital expenditures, $1.7 million in Oracea milestone fees, and $250,000 for in-process
research and development, paid approximately $1.8 million in cash dividends to the holders of our
Series D-1 Stock and received proceeds of approximately $1.1 million (net of purchases) of short-term
investments.

We anticipate that our (i) current cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments at December 31,
2006, (ii) the availability of funds from our line of credit with SVB and (iii) our ability to control variable
spending, will be sufficient to fund our operations through at least the end of 2007. In addition, we may
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also finance our cash needs through public or private equity offerings, debt financings, corporate
collaboration or licensing arrangements. However, there is no assurance that these financing alternatives
will be available on attractive terms, if at all, when needed or in amounts sufficient to fund our operations.
Our forecast of the period of time through which our financial resources will be adequate te support our
operations is a forward-looking statement that involves risks and uncertainties, and actual results could
vary materially. '

Cash Flows/Cash Management

The principal use of cash in operating activities during the year ended December 31, 2006 was the
payment of operating expenses and related working capital liabilities. Cash flows from operations can vary
significantly due to various factors including the level of revenues and collection of receivable therein, the
timing of payments made to our vendors, vendor payment terms, customer mix and customer payment
terms.

Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments totaled $65.8 million, or 83% of total assets at
December 31, 2006, compared to $34.4 million, or 70% of total assets at December 31, 2005. Net cash used
by operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $31.0 million, which includes a net loss of
$33.4 million.

Investing activities during the year ended December 31, 2006 consisted primarily of payments of
Oracea related milestones of $1.7 million, net purchases, sales and maturities of short-term investments of
$1.1 million, capital purchases of $439,000 and acquired in-process research and development of $250,000.
Financing activities during the year ended December 31, 2006 consisted primarily of the cash inflows of
$54.1 million from our December 2005 offering of 1,550,000 shares of our common stock and our
November 2006 offering of 3,500,000 shares of our common stock, the exercise of common stock options,
and the payment of preferred dividends to the holders of our Series D-1 Stock.

Contractual Obligations

Our major outstanding contractual obligations relate to cash dividends on our outstanding Series D-1
Stock and operating leases for our office space.

Below is a table which presents our contractual obligations and commercial commitments as of
December 31, 2006:

Payments Due by Period
Contractual Obligations Total 2007 2008 and 2009 2010 and 2011 2012 and after

Capital Leases(1)
(including interest).. § 277,265 § 105416 $ 171,849 — —
Operating Leases(2) .. $ 2,399,349 § 954,881 $1,444, 468 — —

Cash Dividends on

Series D-1 Preferred

Stock. ...t $12,641,095(3) $2,128,219(3) $4,856,438(3)  $5,656,438(3) (3)
Total Contractual

Obligations ........ $15,317,709(3) $3,188,516 $6,472,755 $5,656,438 3

(1) On July 28, 2006, we entered into a three year capital lease for computer equipment.

(2) Such amounts primarily consist of minimum rental payments for our office lease in Newtown,
Pennsylvania, payments for sales force equipment operating leases and payments for leased vehicles in
use by certain members of our sales force. In May 1999, we entered into a lease agreement relating to
our office space in Newtown, Pennsylvania. The lease has an initial term of ten years. Rent is expected
to be approximately $420,000 per year. In January 2006, we entered into a lease for commercial
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vehicles to be used by certain members of our sales force. The lease has a term of three years with
annual payments of approximately $350,000.

(3) Pursuant to the terms of our Series D-1 Stock, the holders of the Series D-1 Stock are entitled to
dividends payable in cash at a current rate of 10.0% per annum, which are declared and paid every six
months. The annual dividend rate increases by 1.0% per annum on May 19, 2007 and each subsequent
anniversary thereof until the earlier of the date that all of the shares of Series D-1 Stock are
(i) converted into shares of commeon stock, or (ii) redeemed.

In January 1992 we entered into license with SUNY, for all of our IMPACS Technology, or the SUNY
License and have subsequently amended the SUNY License twice, The SUNY License grants us an
exclusive worldwide license to make and sell products employing tetracyclines that are designed or utilized
to alter a biological process. In consideration of the license granted to us, we: (i) issued to SUNY 78,948
shares of our common stock in 1992; and (ii) have agreed to pay SUNY royalties on the net sales of
licensed products, with minimum annual royalty payments of $50,000 per year. The term of the license is
until the later of: (i) the expiration of the last to expire of the licensed patents in each country; or
(ii) November 18, 2018, at which time we have a fully paid, non-exclusive license. Qur rights under the
SUNY License are subject to certain statutory rights of the United States government resulting from
federal support of research activities at SUNY. We are entitled to deduct costs incurred to defend SUNY
patents from current and future royalties due to SUNY. In the event that cumulative legal costs exceed
the amount of the royalties’ payable to SUNY, the amount of such excess is accumulated to offset future
royalties earned by SUNY, if any, on net sales of products based on the SUNY technology.

On June 10, 2002, we executed a Development and Licensing Agreement with Supernus
Pharmaceuticals, Inc., or pursuant to which we were granted an exclusive worldwide license (including the
right to sublicense) to use Supernus technology and patents to develop prescription products for the
treatment of various inflammatory disorders. Under the agreement, certain product development functions
will be performed for us by Supernus. We have committed to pay Supernus milestone payments in cash or,
at our option, in a combination of cash and our common stock, upon the achievement of certain clinical
and regulatory milestones. Through December 31, 2006, the total milestone payments made to Supernus
related to Oracea were $2.7 million. For rosacea-indicated development, these future payments could total
up to $1.0 million in the aggregate and relate primarily to international approval and international
commercialization of Oracea. Under the agreement we must also pay Supernus royalties based on a
percentage of net sales of any products utilizing any part of the licensed technology, including Oracea. We
began making royalty payments to Supernus in the fourth quarter of 2006 as a result of our July 2006
launch of Oracea.

On August 19, 2004, we executed an Asset Purchase and Product Development Agreement with
respect to Restoraderm technology, or the Restoraderm Purchase Agreement. Under the terms of the
Restoraderm Purchase Agreement, we purchased all right, title and interest in the intellectual property
and related rights to the Restoraderm topical drug delivery system, which we intend to develop for
dermatological applications. Pursuant to the terms of the Restoraderm Purchase Agreement, the purchase
price of the assets shall be up to $1.0 million, subject to the achievement of certain milestones. We may be
required to pay certain product development milestone payments in the aggregate amount of up to
approximately $2.0 million as well as royalty and sublicense fees upon product commercialization.

On December 14, 2005, we executed a Share Purchase Agreement, the SansRosa Purchase
Agreement, with SansRosa and all of the existing shareholders of SansRosa, or the SansRosa
Shareholders, pursuant to which we acquired 51% or 2,483,830 shares of the outstanding shares of capital
stock of SansRosa in exchange for a payment of $750,000. In 2006, we acquired additional shares of the
outstanding stock in exchange for a payment of $100,000 which was offset by the payment to a third party
to acquire the related technology. Our total ownership in SansRosa at December 31, 2006 is 61%. For
accounting purposes, the 2005 SansRosa acquisition was treated as the acquisition of in-process research
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and development. The cost of the acquisition was charged to in-process research and development since
the SansRosa technology has not achieved technical feasibility at this time. SansRosa is the assignee of
certain patent applications covering methods for treatment of redness associated with rosacea and other
skin disorders. Under the SansRosa Purchase Agreement, we have the right to purchase all of the
remaining shares of SansRosa capital stock upon the achievement of specified regulatory and development
milestones. If all milestones are achieved and a patented product is developed and approved for sale, we
will pay the SansRosa Shareholders an additional $4.0 million to $6.0 million. The agreement also provides
for royalty payments to the SansRosa Shareholders if future product sales incorporate the SansRosa
technology.

We entered into change of control agreements, or the Existing Agreements, with each of the following
officers, collectively referred to as the Officers: Colin W. Stewart (December 8, 2003), Nancy C. Broadbent
(September 18, 2002), David F. Pieiffer (September 18, 2002), Klaus Theobald (February 1, 2004), Andrew
K. W. Powell (September 23, 2004) and Greg Ford (August 9, 2004).

Under the Existing Agreements, in the event the employment of an Officer was terminated as a result
of an Involuntary Termination within 24 months of a Change of Control, each as defined in the Existing
Agreements, the Officers were entitled to receive, among other things, (i) a lump sum payment of 1.5 times
base salary and 1.5 times the average bonus paid for the three fiscal years prior to the Termination Date, as
defined in the Existing Agreements, (ii) health coverage and benefits for a period of 24 months and
(iii} certain outplacement/administrative support for a period of 18 months. In addition, under the Existing
Agreements, if a Change of Control occurred while Ms. Broadbent or Messrs. Stewart, Pfeiffer, Theobald,
Powell or Ford was employed by us, regardless of whether their employment relationship with us
continued following such Change of Control, then all stock options granted to these individuals prior to the
Change of Control would become fully vested and exercisable as of the date of the Change of Control to
the extent such stock options were outstanding and unexercisable at the time of such termination.

On October 16, 2006, we entered into a new change of control agreement with Mr. Stewart, or the
Stewart Agreement, and a new form of change of control agreement with each of the remaining Officers,
such form referred to as the Management Agreement, together with the Stewart Agreement, the
Agreements, which Agreements supersede the Existing Agreements.

The Agreements contain the above-described provisions of the Existing Agreements, except that, in
the event the employment of an Officer is terminated as a result of an Involuntary Termination within 24
months of a Change of Control (i) the Stewart Agreement provides that the lump sum payment will be 2.5
times base salary and 2.5 times the average bonus paid for the three fiscal years prior to the Termination
Date and (ii) the form of Management Agreement provides that the lump sum payment will be 2 times
base salary and 2 times the average bonus paid for the three fiscal years prior to the Termination Date.

In addition, each of the Agreements provides for an additional payment if the Officer would be
subject to an excise tax, interest or penalty based on a payment provided for in the applicable Agreement.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Management’s discussion and analysis of its financial position and results of operations are based
upon our consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The preparation of these financial
statements requires management to make judgments and estimates that affect the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities.
Management believes the critical accounting policies and areas that require the most significant judgments
and estimates to be used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements pertain to revenue
recognition, stock compensation and the valuation of deferred taxes, intangible assets and inventory.
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Revenue Recognition

We generally recognize revenues for product sales upon shipment to wholesale customers, net of
estimated returns and estimates for chargebacks, applicable wholesale distribution fees and rebates
provided that collection was probable and no significant obligations remained. Following the launch of a
third party generic competitor to Periostat in May 2005 and commencing with the second quarter of 2005,
we began recognizing Periostat sales revenue based on product sales to end-users, which are estimated
using prescription dispensing data generated by an independent prescription tracking service. While we do
not independently verify the prescription dispensing data, we do analyze shipments and estimates of
channel inventory to determined if the prescription dispensing data is consistent with our records. The
launch of generic competition to Periostat resulted in increased product returns from the wholesale and
retail channels. As of December 31, 2006, we have a liability of $612,000 for potential Periostat product
returns in accrued expenses on the Consolidated Balance Sheet for estimated returns prior to the change
to a prescription based revenue recognition model.

For new product launches our policy is to recognize revenue on a net prescription value basis using
dispensing data generated by an independent prescription tracking service until trade channel inventories
are reduced to targeted stocking levels and we have sufficient data to determine product acceptance in the
marketplace which will enable us to estimate product returns based on historical data of Periostat and
similar products. Net prescription value is calculated by deducting estimates for chargebacks, wholesale
distribution fees, patient rebates, government rebates and any other launch discounts offered from the
applicable gross sales value. When inventories have been reduced to target wholesale and retail levels and
we have the ability to estimate product returns, we recognize product sales upon shipment, net of
discounts, returns and allowances. During the fourth quarter of 2006, based on sales levels and prescription
data related to the fourth quarter of 2006 and the number of units on hand in the pipeline relative to
overall demand for the product, we determined that Oracea inventories with our customers had reached
normal targeted levels. At such time, we began recognizing Oracea revenues on a shipment basis, net
applicable discounts and allowances. Oracea revenues for the year ended December 31, 2006, reflect
revenue recognition on a shipment basis, net of applicable discounts and allowances as the Company
recognized, in the fourth quarter of 2006, approximately $2,800,000 in previously deferred Oracea
revenues from the third quarter of 2006.

As described above, we record sales discounts, allowances and returns upon recognizing product sales.
We only accept unopened returns of damaged or expired products. The return allowance, when
estimatable, is based on an analysis of the historical returns of the product and similar products and we
consider current end user demand and wholesale and retail inventory levels. If product returns are not
estimatable, we defer revenue recognition for all outstanding products in the wholesale and retail channel
that is subject to return. Pursuant to an agreement with one major customer, product returns are not
permitted. Chargebacks, wholesale distribution fees and rebates are based on an analysis of the applicable
agreements and historical experience. In addition, we also consider the volume and price of the product in
the channel, trends in wholesaler and retailer inventory levels, conditions that might affect end-user
demand (such as generic competition) and other relevant factors.

During the third quarter of 2006, we launched Oracea to the U.S. dermatology community. As part of
such launch, we introduced a patient rebate program for Oracea prescriptions. Only patients presenting
the computer-coded card to their pharmacists were entitled to receive the rebate. In accordance with
Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 01-09, “dccounting for Consideration Given by a Vendor to a
Customer”, we have accounted for these patient rebates as a reduction of net product sales on our
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2006.
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Deferred Taxes

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, we consider the likelihood that part or all of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized. This assessment requires significant judgment and estimates. The
ultimate realization of the deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income
during the period in which those temporary differences become deductible. We consider our history of
losses, scheduled reversal of deferred tax assets and liabilities, deferred tax planning strategies, if any, and
projected future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred tax asset items are deductible. The
Tax Reform Act of 1986 contains provisions that may limit the net operating loss and research and
experimentation credit carryforwards available to be used in any given year upon the occurrence of certain
events, including significant changes in ownership interest. We have incurred a net loss for the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005, and uncertainty regarding our future profitability has prevented us from
reaching the “more likely than not” conclusion required under the applicable literature to recognize
deferred tax assets on our Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Intangible Assets

Acquired product rights and Oracea milestone fees are stated at cost, amortized over the shorter of
the estimated useful life of the products or the contract term under which such rights have been licensed,
using the straight-line method. Amortization of acquired product rights and Oracea milestone fees are
charged to cost of product sales.

We are required to test for asset impairment of acquired product rights and Oracea milestone fees
whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable. We
apply Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, or SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” in order to determine whether or not an asset is impaired. This standard
requires an impairment analysis when indicators of impairment are present. When such indicators are
present, the standard indicates that if the sum of the future expected cash flows from the asset,
undiscounted and without interest charges, are less than the carrying value, an asset impairment must be
recognized in the financial statements. The amount of the impairment is the difference between the fair
value of the asset and the carrying value of the asset.

In making future cash flow analyses of our intangible assets we make assumptions relating to: (i) the
intended use of the product and the expected future cash flows resulting directly from such use; (ii) generic
competitor activities and regulatory initiatives that affect our products; and (iii} customer preferences and
expected managed care reimbursement.

Inventories

Inventory carrying values are evaluated periodically and consider the saleable quantities of inventory
versus quantities of inventory on-hand.

During the year ended December 31, 2006, we recorded write-downs of $257,000 for excess and short-
dated inventory. During the year ended December 31, 2005, we recorded a charge of $1.0 million for the
excess inventory of Periostat and Mutual’s branded version of Periostat due to the anticipated decreased
demand following the introduction of a third party generic version of Periostat that occurred in May 2005.

We classify direct manufacturing costs relating to inventory and samples manufactured in advance of a
new product launch as research and development expense until such time as we receive an approval letter
from the FDA for a new product. Following FDA approval of the product, we capitalize any inventory
costs relating to that product that were not previously expensed.
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Stock-Based Compensation

As part of our adoption of SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment,” or SFAS No. 123R,
as of January 1, 2006, we recognized the fair value of stock-based compensation awards in our consolidated
financial statements using the modified prospective method. We apply the Black-Scholes option pricing
model to determine the fair value of stock options on the date of grant, and we estimate key assumptions
that are important elements in the model, such as the expected stock-price volatility and expected stock
option life. Our estimates of these important assumptions and expected forfeiture rates are based on
historical data and judgment regarding market trends and factors. These estimates are not intended to
predict actual future events or the value ultimately realized by individuals who receive equity awards.

Critical accounting estimates and the related assumptions are evaluated periodically as conditions
warrant, and changes to such estimates are recorded as new information or changed conditions require
revision.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB)
No. 108, “Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Financial Misstatements in
Current Year Financial Statements,” which expresses the Staff’s views regarding the process of quantifying
financial statement misstatements. Companies are required to quantify the impact of correcting all
misstatements, including both the carryover and reversing effects of prior year misstatements, on the
current year financial statements. The techniques most commonly used in practice to accumulate and
quantify misstatements are generally referred to as the “rollover” (current year income statement
perspective) and “iron curtain” (year-end balance sheet perspective) approaches. The financial statements
would require adjustment when either approach results in quantifying a misstatement that is material, after
considering all relevant quantitative and qualitative factors. At the effective date of adoption (January 1,
2006 for us), the misstatements considered immaterial under a registrant’s previous method of quantifying
misstatements but material under SAB 108 may be corrected as an accounting change by adjusting opening
retained earnings rather than being included in the current year statement of operations. The adoption of
SAB No. 108 did not have an impact on our consolidated financial statements.

in June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or the FASB, issued Interpretation No. 48,
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—An Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109,” or FIN 48.
FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial
statements and prescribes a threshold of more-likely-than-not for recognition of tax benefits of uncertain
tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 also provides related guidance on
measurement, derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, and disclosure. Differences between the
amounts recognized in the financial statements prior to the adoption of FIN 48 and the amounts reported
after adoption will be accounted for as a cumulative-effect adjustment recorded to the beginning balance
of retained earnings.

As required, we will adopt FIN 48 on January 1, 2007. Prior to the adoption of FIN 48, our policy was
to recognize tax benefits of uncertain tax positions only if it was probable that the position would be
sustained. Accordingly, we anticipate that certain accrued expenses for uncertain tax positions will be
reversed upon adoption of FIN 48 due to the lower recognition threshold. Based on our analysis, we
estimate that accrued expenses will decrease in the amount of $945,000 and retained earnings will increase
by the same amount as of January 1, 2007 as a result of the adoption in FIN 48.

In November 2005, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position SFAS 123(R)-3, Transition Election Related
to Accounting for the Tax Effects of Share-based Payment Awards, or SFAS No. 123(R)-3, that provides an
elective alternative transition method of calculating the pool of excess tax benefits available to absorb tax
deficiencies recognized subsequent to the adoption of SFAS No. 123R to the method otherwise required
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by paragraph 81 of SFAS No. 123R. The adoption of SFAS No. 123(R)-3 did not have an impact on our
consolidated finanical statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements”, or SFAS 157. SFAS
157 clarifies the definition of fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands the
disclosures on fair value measurements. SFAS 157 is effective for us beginning January 1, 2008. We are
currently evaluating the impact of SFAS 157 adoption on our consolidated financial statements.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

We had cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments at December 31, 2006 which are
exposed to the impact of interest rate changes and our interest income fluctuates as interest rates change.
Due to the short-term nature of our investments in money market funds, the carrying values of our cash
equivalents approximate their fair value at December 31, 2006. Our short-term investments in commergial
paper, certificates of deposit and government notes are carried at fair value.

The carrying amount, which approximates fair value, and the annualized weighted average nominal
interest rate of our short-term investment portfolio at December 31, 2006, was approximately $19.3 million
and 4.8%, respectively. A one percent change in the interest rate would have resulted in a $478,000 impact
to interest income for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Item 8.,  Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The financial statements and supplementary data required to be filed pursuant to this Item 8 are
appended to this Annual Report on Form 10-K. A list of the financial statements and financial statement
schedules filed herewith is found at “Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.”

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
1. Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our chief executive officer and chief financial officer,
evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2006. The term
“disclosure controls and procedures,” as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, means controls and other procedures of a company that are designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or submits under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods
specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation,
controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a company in the
reports that it files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is accumulated and
communicated to the company’s management, including its principal executive and principal financial
officers, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Our management
recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only
reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives and management necessarily applies its judgment in
evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures. Based on this evaluation, our
chief executive officer and chief financial officer concluded that, as of December 31, 2006, our disclosure
controls and procedures were effective at the reasonable assurance level.
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2. Internal Controls over Financial Reporting

(a) Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The management of CollaGenex is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal
control over financial reporting. Internal control over financial reporting is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) or
15d-15(f) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as a process designed by, or under the
supervision of, the company’s principal executive and principal financial officers and effected by the
company’s board of directors, management and other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and includes those policies and
pracedures that: .

« Pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

« Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and

¢ Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

CollaGenex’ management, including the supervision and participation of the Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer, assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2006. In making this assessment, the Company’s management used the
criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSC) in
“Internal Control - Integrated Framework.”

Based on our assessment, management has concluded that, as of December 31, 2006, the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting is effective based on those criteria.

The Company's independent registered public accounting firm has issued its report on our assessment
and the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. This report appears
below.

(b) Report of the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
CollaGenex Pharmaceuticals, Inc.:

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Annual
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting that CollaGenex Pharmaceuticals, Inc. maintained
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COS0O). CollaGenex Pharmaceuticals, Inc.’s management is responsible for
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maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s
assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal controi over financial reporting
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in
all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial
reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary (o
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements,

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk
that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that CollaGenex Pharmaceuticals, Inc. maintained effective
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects,
based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by COSO. Also, in our
opinion, CollaGenex Pharmaceuticals, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets of CollaGenex Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31,
2006, and the related financial statement schedule, and our report dated March 15, 2007 expressed an
unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements and related schedule.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
March 15, 2007
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(c) Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

No change in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) occurred during the fiscal quarter ended as of December 31, 2006 that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial

reporting.
Item 9B. Other Information

Not applicable.
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PART 111

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance of the Registrant.

The information relating to our directors, nominees for election as directors, executive officers and
audit committee under the headings “Election of Directors”, “Executive Officers”,
“Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” and “Corporate Governance” in our
definitive proxy statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders is incorporated herein by
reference to such proxy statement.

We have adopted a written code of business conduct and ethics that applies to our directors, officers
and employees, inctuding our principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting
officer or controller, or persons performing similar functions. We make available our code of business
conduct and ethics free of charge through our website which is located at www.collagenex.com. We intend
to disclose any amendments to, or waivers from, our code of business conduct and ethics that are required
to be publicly disclosed pursuant to rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Nasdaq
Stock Market by filing such’amendment or waiver with the Securities and Exchange Commission and by
posting it on our website. '

Item 11.  Executive Compensation.

The discussion under the heading “Executive Compensation” in our definitive proxy statement for the
2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders is incorporated herein by reference to such proxy statement. The
information specified in Item 407(e)(5) of Regulation S-K and set forth in our definitive proxy statement
for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders is not incorporated by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters.

The discussion under the heading “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and
Management and Related Stockholder Matters” in our definitive proxy statement for the 2007 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders is incorporated herein by reference to such proxy statement.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

The discussion under the headings “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” and “Corporate
Governance” in our definitive proxy statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders is
incorporated herein by reference to such proxy statement.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

The discussion under the heading “Auditors’ Fees” in our definitive proxy statement for the 2007
Annual Meeting of Stockholders is incorporated herein by reference to such proxy statement.

51



PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a) (1) Financial Statements.

Reference is made to the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and Schedule on Page F-1.
(2) Financial Statement Schedule.

Reference is made to the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and Schedule on
Page F-36.

(3) Exhibits. .
Reference is made to the Index to Exhibits on Page 54.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned; thereunto duly

authorized this 16th day of March, 2007.

COLLAGENEX PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.

By: /s/ COLIN W. STEWART

Colin W. Stewart, Chief Executive Officer and

President

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature

/s COLIN W. STEWART

Colin W. Stewart

/sf NANCY C. BROADBENT

Nancy C. Broadbent

/s/ PETER R. BARNETT, D.M.D.

Peter R. Barnett, D.M.D.

/s/ ROBERT C. BLACK

Robert C. Black

/s/ JAMES E. DAVERMAN

James E. Daverman

/s/ ROBERT J. EASTON

Robert J, Easton

/s/ ROBERT A. BEARDSLEY, PH.D.

Robert A. Beardsley, Ph.D.

W. James O’Shea

George M. Lasezkay, Pharm.D., J.D.

Title

President, Chief Executive Officer

and Director (Principal Executive Officer)

Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

(Principal Financial and Accounting

Officer)

Director

Director

Chairman of the Board and Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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March 13, 2007
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33 Amended Certificate of Designation, Preferences  8-K 10-18-2001 4.1
and Rights of the Series D Cumulative Convertible  (000-28308)
Preferred Stock, dated as of October 15, 2001

34 Amended Certificate of Designation of Series A 8-K 6-5-2002 42
Participating Preferred Stock, as filed with the {000-28308)
Secretary of State of the State of Delaware on
June 5, 2002

35 Certificate of Designation, Preferences and Rights  8-K 12-19-2005 3.1
of the Series D-1 Cumulative Convertible Preferred  (000-28308)
Stock

Instruments Defining the Rights of Security Holders

4.1 Specimen certificate evidencing shares of common  10-K 3-16-06 4.1
stock, par value $.01 per share (000-28308)

42 Registration Rights Agreement, dated S-1 Effective 4.1
September 29, 1995, by and among the Company (333-03582) 6-20-1996
and certain investors, as supplemented

4.3 Fourth Investment Agreement as of September 29,  S-1 Effective 4.3
1995 by and among the Company and certain (333-03582) 6-20-1996
investors

4.4 Amended and Restated Shareholder Protection 8-K 6-5-2002 4.1
Rights Agreement, dated as of May 29, 2002, by and (000-28308)
between the Company and American Stock
Transfer & Trust Company

4.5 Stockholders and Registration Rights Agreement, 8-K 5-26-1999 10.2
dated March 19, 1999, by and among the Company, (000-28308)
OCM Principal Opportunities Fund, L.P. and the
Purchasers set forth therein

4.6 Amendment No. 1 to Stockholders and Registration 8-K 10-18-2001  10.1

Rights Agreement, dated March 19, 1999, by and (000-28308)
among the Company, OCM Principal Opportunities
Fund, L.P. and the Purchasers set forth therein
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4.7 Amendment No. 2 to Stockholders and Registration 8-K 10-18-2001  10.2
Rights Agreement, dated March 19, 1999, by and (0D0-28308)
among the Company, OCM Principal Opportunities
Fund, L.P. and the Purchasers set forth therein

48 Restructuring and Exchange Agreement, dated 8-K 12-19-2005  10.1
December 15, 2005, by and among the Company (000-28308)
and the Holders of Outstanding Series D
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock

Material Contracts—Stock Purchase, Financing and Credit Agreements

10.1 Stock Purchase Agreement dated March 19, 1999, 8-K 3.25-1999 10.3
between OCM Principal Opportunities Fund, L.P.  (000-28308)
and other Purchasers set forth therein

10.2 Common Stock Purchase Agreement, dated 8-K 2-15-2002 101
February 14, 2002, by and between the Company (000-28308)
and Kingsbridge Capital Limited

10.3 Warrant dated February 14, 2002 issued to 8-K 2-15-2002 10.2
Kingsbridge Capital Limited (000-28308)

10.4 Form of Common Stock Purchase Agreement dated 8-K 3-16-2001 10.1
March 12, 2001, between the Company and the (000-28308)
Investors set forth therein, together with Form of
Registration Rights Agreement as an exhibit thereto
and Form of Warrant as an exhibit thereto

10.5¢  Share Purchase Agreement, dated December 14, 10-K 3-16-06 10.5
2005, by and among SansRosa Pharmaceutical (000-28308)
Development, Inc. and each of the shareholders of
SansRosa Pharmaceutical Development, Inc.

10.6 Loan and Security Agreement, dated May 19, 2001, 10-K 3-26-2001  10.24
between the Company and Silicon Valley Bank (000-28308)

10-K/A 1-2-2002 10.24
(000-28308)

10.7 First Loan Modification Agreement, dated as of 10-Q 5-15-2002 10.4
March 22, 2002, by and between the Company and ~ (000-28308)
Silicon Valley Bank

10.8 Second Loan Modification Agreement, dated asof  10-Q 5-15-2002 10.5
March 27, 2002, between the Company and Silicon  (000-28308)
Valley Bank

109 Fourth Loan Modification Agreement, dated 8-K 6-7-2004 10.1
June 7, 2004, by and between the Company and (000-28308)
Silicon Valley Bank

10.10  Fifth Loan Modification Agreement, dated May 31, 8-K 6-6-06 10.1
2006, by and between the Company and Silicon (000-28308)

Valley Bank
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10.11  Sixth Loan Modification Agreement, dated 8-K 10-12-06 10.1
October 9, 2006, by and between the Company and  (000-28308)
Silicon Valley Bank

Material Contracts—Supply, License, Distribution

10.12+ Assignment of Amendment to and Restatement of ~ S-1 Effective 10.1
Agreement, dated January 13, 1992 by and among ~ (333-03852) 6-20-1996
the Company, Johnson & Johnson Consumer
Products, Inc. and Research Foundation of State
University of New York

10.131 Supply Agreement, dated January 23, 1995, between S-1 Effective 10.2
the Company and Hovione International Limited (333-03852) 6-20-1996

10.14%  First Addendum dated December 10, 2001, to the 8-K 12-10-2001 101
Supply Agreement, dated January 23, 1995, between (000-28308)
the Company and Hovione International Limited

10.15  Form of Material Transfer Agreement between the  S-1 Effective 10.9
Company and Researchers (333-03582) 6-20-1996

10.16% Distribution Services Agreement, dated August 15, 10-Q 11-16-1998 104
1998, between the Company and Cord (000-28308)
Logistics, Inc. (now known as Cardinal Health
Specialty Pharmaceutical Services)

10.17% Exclusive Distribution Agreement, dated as of 10-Q 5-15-2002 10.3
March 1, 2002, by and between the Company and (000-28308)
Cord Logistics, Inc. (now known as Cardinal Health
Specialty Pharmaceutical Services)

10.18  Services and Supply Agreement, dated as of 10-Q 5-15-20m 10.1
September 26, 2000, as amended by Letter (000-28308)
Apgreement, dated as of December 1, 2000, by and
between the Company and Pharmaceutical
Manufacturing Research Services, Inc.

10.19  Letter Agreement, dated as of June 26, 2001, by and 10-Q 8-14-2001 10.1
between the Company and Pharmaceutical (000-28308)
Manufacturing Rescarch Services, Inc.

10.20  License Agreement, dated August 24, 2001, by and  10-Q 11-14-2001  10.1
between the Company and Atrix Laboratories, Inc.  (000-28308)
(now known as Tolmar Inc., a subsidiary of 10-Q/A 2-14-2002 10.1
Technofarma, S.A. {000-28308)

10.211 Wholesale Service Agreement, effective as of 10-Q 5-15-2002 10.1
November 1, 2001, by and between the Company (D0D-28308)

and National Specialty Services, Inc. (now known as
Oncology Therapeutic Networks)
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effective as of November 12, 2001, by and between  (000-28308)
the Company and National Specialty Services, Inc.
(now known as Oncology Therapeutic Networks)

10.23% Agrecment, dated May 24, 2002, between the 10-Q 8-14-2002 10.1
Company and Altana, Inc. (000-28308)
10.24  Amendments dated October 6, 2003 and *

November 17, 2006 to Agreement, dated May 24,
2002, between the Company and Altana, Inc.

10.25% Letter Agreement, dated as of September 12,2002, 10-K 3-31-2003 10.35
by and between the Company and Pharmaceutical
Manufacturing Research Services, Inc.

10.26%+ License and Supply Agreement, dated April 8, 2004, 8-K 4-8-2004 10.1
among the Company, Mutual Pharmaceutical (000-28308)
Company, Inc. and United Research
Laboratories, Inc.

10.27t Distribution Services Agreement, dated as of 10-Q 5-5-2005 10.1
April 1, 2005, by and between the Company and (000-28308)
Cardinal Health

10.28f Core Distribution Agreement, dated as of April 19, 10-Q 5-5-2005 10.2
2005, by and between the Company and McKesson  (000-28308)
Company

10.29t Promotion and Cooperation Agreement, dated as of 8-K 6-10-2005 99.1

June 6, 2005, by and between the Company and (000-28308)
Primus Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

1030 Amendment dated October 30, 2006 to Promotion *
and Cooperation Agreement, dated as of June 6,
2005, by and between the Company and Primus
Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

10.31 Amendment to License and Marketing Agreement, 10-K 3-16-06 10.27
dated August 24, 2001, by and between the (000-28308)
Company and Atrix Laboratories, Inc. (now known
as Tolmar Inc., a subsidiary of Technofarma, S.A),
dated February 22, 2006

1032 Commercial Manufacturing Agreement dated asof 10-K 3-16-06 10.28
March 1, 2006, by and between the Company and  (000-28308)
Cardinal Health PTS, LLC

10.33t Product License and Supply Agreement, dated 8-K 12-22-06 10.1
December 18, 2006 by and between the Company  (000-28308)
and MediGene AG
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10.35  Asset Purchase and Product Development 10-Q 11-9-2004 10.2
Agreement, dated August 19, 2004, by and between  (000-28308)
the Company and Thomas Skold
10.36  Sale of Assets Agreement, dated November 3, 2004, 10-K 3-10-2005 1043
by and among CollaGenex International Limited, (000-28308)
Alliance Pharmaceuticals Ltd. and Alliance Pharma
plc
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10.37# Non-Employee Director Compensation Summary *
10.38# Executive Officer Compensation Summary *
10.39# 1992 Stock Option Plan 5-1 Effective 10.12
(333-03582) 6-20-1996
10.40# 1996 Stock Option Plan 51 Effective 10.13
(333-03582) 6-20-1996
10.41# 1996 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan 5-1 Effective 10.14
(333-03582) 6-20-1996
10.42# Form of Non-Disclosure Agreement executed by all  §-1 Effective 10.4
Employees as employed from time to time (333-03852) 6-20-1996
10.43# Form of Non-Competition Agreement executed by  S-1 Effective 10.5
each of Nancy C. Broadbent and David Pfeiffer (333-03852) 6-20-1996
10.44# Form of Mutual Non-Disclosure Agreement 51 Effective 10.6
executed by certain consultants and research (333-03852) 5-20-1996
collaborators as retained from time to time
10.45# Form of Indemnification Agreement executed by 5-1 Effective 10.7
each of the Company’s directors and officers (333-03852) 6-20-1996
10.46# Forms of Consulting Agreement ¢xecuted by each  S-1 Effective 10.8
of Lorne M. Golub and Thomas F. McNamara (333-03582) 6-20-1996
10.47# Form of Change of Control Agreement executed 8K 10-17-06 10.2
with each of Nancy C. Broadbent, David Pfeiffer, (C00-28308)
Andrew Powell, Klaus Theobald and Greg Ford
10.48# Form of Change of Control Agreement executed 8-K 10-17-06 10.1
with Colin W. Stewart (000-28308)
10.49# Form of Incentive Bonus Agreement executed with  10-Q 11-14-2003  10.1
David F. Pfeiffer (000-28308)
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10.50# Transition Agreement and Release, dated B-K 3-19-2003 10.1
March 18, 2003, by and between the Company and ~ (000-28308)
Brian Gallagher

10.51# Consulting Agreement, dated March 18, 2003, by 8-K 3-19-2003 10.2
and between the Company and Brian Gallagher (000-28308)

10.52# Non-Statutory Stock Option Agreement, dated 10-K 3-10-2005 1042
December 7, 2004, by and between the Company (000-28308)
and Robert A. Beardsley, Ph.D.

10.53# Non-Statutory Stock Option Agreement, dated 10-Q 11-9-2004 10.1
September 23, 2004, by and between the Company  (000-28308)
and Andrew Powell

10.54# Non-Statutory Stock Option Agreement, dated 8-K 9-26-2005 10.1
September 22, 2005, by and between the Company ~ (000-28308)
and George M. Lasezkay

10.55# 2005 Equity Incentive Plan Def 14A 4-20-2005

(000-28308)

10.56# Form of Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement for 10-Q 8-9-2005 10.1
2005 Equity Incentive Plan (000-28308)

10.57# Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement for 10-Q 8-9-2005 10.2
2005 Equity Incentive Plan (000-28308)

10.58# Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement dated asof  10-Q 8-9-2005 10.3
June 29, 2005 by and between the Company and (000-28308)
Peter R. Barnett, D.M.D.

10.59# Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement dated as of  10-Q 8-9-2005 104
June 29, 2005 by and between the Company and (000-28308)
Robert C. Black

10.60# Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement dated asof  10-Q 8-9-2005 10.5
May 26, 2005 by and between the Company and (000-28308)
Brian M. Gallagher, Ph.D.

10.61# Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement dated asof  10-Q 8-9-2005 10.6
May 26, 2005 by and between the Company and (000-28308)
James E. Daverman

10.62# Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement dated asof  10-Q 8-9-2005 10.7
June 29, 2005 by and between the Company and (000-28308)
Robert J. Easton

10.63# Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement dated asof  10-Q 8-9-2005 10.8
June 29, 2005 by and between the Company and W.  (000-28308)
James O'Shea

10.64# Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement dated asof  10-Q 8-9-2005 10.9
June 29, 2005 by and between the Company and (000-28308)

Robert A. Beardsley, Ph.D.
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Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of the Exchange Act,
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Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification by Chief Financial Officer pursuant to
Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of the Exchange Act,
as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002

321 Certification by Chief Executive Officer and Chief *
Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

T Confidential treatment requested as to certain portions, which portions have been separately filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

# Management contracts or compensatory plans or arrangements required to be filed as an exhibit
hereto pursuant to Item 15(a) of Form 10-K.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
CollaGenex Pharmaceuticals, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of CollaGenex Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31,
2006. In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we also have audited the
financial statement schedule, “Valuation and Qualifying Accounts.” These consolidated financial
statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and financial statement
schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinien, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of CollaGenex Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31,
2006 and 2005 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-
year period ended December 31, 2006, in conformity with U_S. generally accepted accounting principles.
Also in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule when considered in relation to the basic
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material aspects, the information
set forth therein.

As discussed in notes 2 and 9 to the consolidated financials, effective January 1, 2006, the Company
adopted the fair value method of accounting for stock-based compensation as required by Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards, No. 123(R) “Share-Based Payment.”

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the effectiveness of CollaGenex Pharmaceuticals, Inc.’s internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Intermal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO),
and our report dated March 15, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of,
and the effective operation of, internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
March 15, 2007




COLLAGENEX PHARMACEUTICALS, INC,
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2006 and 2005
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

2006 2005
Assets
Current assets:
Cashand cashequivalents ..... ...t iienenss $ 46,493 § 26,219
SROM-eImM INVEStMENTS. . .ottt et eer e raeraasaans 19,337 18,206
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $187 and $104 in 2006 and 2005,
respectively . ... .o e e e 6,071 1,428
N0 03 y L= S G OO 1,959 630
Prepaid expenses and other currentassets ............. i i e 2,416 1,564
Total CUTTENL A85E1S . . . oottt ettt ittt aeeanaeneerainrannanaanran 76,276 48,047
Equipment and leasehold improvements,net. ........ ... oiiiiiiinl, 1,008 539
Intangible assets, net ... ..o e e 1,882 536
0111 Vo ol 1:3:1 < < O 41 43
FOtal ASSBES . . . oot et $ 79,207 % 49,165
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable . ... ... $ 9066 $ 5411
ACCIUEU EXPEISES. . oo\ttt ittt i e i 7,574 6,024
Accrued equity financing costs ........ oo — 1,069
Preferred dividends payable. ...........c.oo i i — 900
Total current Habilities . .. ..ot vt it ettt i 16,640 13,404
Other non-current liabilities. . .. ......coiirr it e i 265 93
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 5, 6, 7, 8, 11 and 13)
Stockholders’ equity:

Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 5,000,000 shares authorized, 200,000

shares of Series D-1 Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock designated,

issued and outstanding 2006 and 2005 (liquidation value $21,000 at 2006

and $20,900 at 2005) ... oot e 2 2
150,000 shares of Series A Participating Preferred Stock, $0.01 par value,

designated and no shares issued or outstanding at 2006 and 2005,

TESPECTIVEIY . . ettt — —
Common stock, $0.01 par value; 75,000,000 and 25,000,000 shares

authorized, 21,191,724, and 16,054,797 shares issued and outstanding in

2006 and 2005. . . ...t e e 212 161
Additional paid-incapital. ....... ... . e 185,581 124,647
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) ...l 7 {4)
Accumulated deficit. .. ... i e e {123,500)  (89,138)

Stockholders’ equity . .......oviin i e i e 62,302 35,608
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity . ........ooovviiiiiiiiin s $ 79207 §$ 49,165

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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COLLAGENEX PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Operations
Years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

2006 2005 2004
Revenues:
Netproductsales..................coiiiiiiinninn.... $ 24448 § 25736 $ 51,739
Contract FeVENLIES . . ... ...\ttt iiiirrirnrnnrnnrannnns 1,390 481 237
License revenues ...........ccoiinienivnienienneennn. 64 188 170
Grant revenues. ..........oviiiiein i, 471 — —
Totalrevenues ....... ... .. . vt 26,373 26,405 52,146
Costs and expenses:
Costof productsales...........coiiiiiiiiiiiiinianns. 5473 5,885 7,446
Research anddevelopment ........................... 15,394 13,986 8,843
Selling, general and administrative..................... 40,925 25,242 29417
Restructuringcharge................... P — 1,184 348
Legalsettlement...... ... .. ..o i, — — 2,000
Gain on sale of UK and European dental assets ......... — — {2,980)
Totalcostsand expenses.. ..........covveniennnnnn. 61,792 46,297 45,074
Operating (lossyincome . ........... ..o iiiiin.n, (35,419) (19,892) 7,072
Other income (expense):
Interest INCOME. .. .. .. . it it i iieeinrennns 2,001 1,087 423
Interestexpense..... ... ... ... ... i it (16) — —
(Loss} income before income taxes .................. (33,434) (18,805) 7,495
Incometaxes.........cooiniii it — — 967
Net (loss)income. ... ...ooveir e (33,434) (18,805) 6,528
Preferred stock dividends . .......................c et 1,928 1,727 1,600
Preferred stock restructuring charge ..................... — 3,680 —
Net (loss) income allocable to common stockholders.. ... .... $ (35362) § (24212) § 4,928
Basic net (loss) income per share allocable to common
stockholders ........ ... ... ... i, $ (1.98) § (1.67) $ 0.35
Diluted net (loss) income per share allocable to common
StOCKhOIErS ...\ oeet e $ (198) $ (1.67) § 0.34
Weighted average shares used in computing per share
amounts:
BasiC. . . 17,902,257 14,480,779 14,264,687
Diluted. ... .o e e e e 17,902,257 14,480,779 14,500,637

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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COLLAGENEX PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

(Dollars in thousands)

2006 2005 2004

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net(loss)income. ... ... .. .ooiiiiii e, $(33,434) $(18,805) § 6,528
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash (used in) provided
by operating activities:

Stock-based compensation. . ...... ..o oo 3,286 — —
Write-down of inventory. .. .......... ... iiiii 257 1,020 —
Write-off of fixed assets ............. ...l — 96 —
Depreciation and amortization expense .................... 643 883 875
Accounts receivable recovery (provisions) .................. 83 (154) (101)
Charge for in-process research and development ............ 300 750 300
Gain on sale of UK and European dental assets ............. — — (2,980)
Change in assets and liabilities:
Accountsreceivable ........ .. .o (4,726) 5,832 (1,199)
INVENEOMIES .. vvve v i e (1,586) 1,042 (1,020)
Prepaid expenses and otherassets ....................... (850) 634 (380)
Accountspayable.......... ... ... .. ..o, 3,655 1,094 588
Accrued eXpPenses . ...t e e e 1,459 364 217
Other non-current liabilities . ........................... (107) (111) (122)
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities. ... ... (31,020) (7,35%) 2,706
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures . ......... ..ot (439) (392) (292)
Net proceeds from the sale of UK and European dental assets .. .. — — 2,980
Purchase of in-process research and development. ............... 250 (900) (150)
Payment of Oraceamilestonefees . .....................ool i (1,670) — —
Purchases of short-term investments .............c.ocoivinvenn. (39,155) (354200 (26,777)
Sales and maturities of short-term investments .. ... ............. 38,035 43,987 —
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities ....... (3,479) 7275  (24,239)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net................... 54,109 15,458 —
Net proceeds from the exercise of stock options and warrants . .. .. 2,521 579 2,352
Principal payments on capital leases. . ................ ... (29) — —
Payment of preferred dividends ........... .. ... ... ... ... (1,828) (1,627) (1,600)
Net cash provided by financing activities. ............... 54,773 14,410 752
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents. . . .. 20,274 14,330  (20,781)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginningofyear .................... 26,219 11,889 32,670
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year. .......................0 $ 46,493 §$ 26,219 § 11,889

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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COLLAGENEX PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(dollars in thousands, except for per share amounts)

(1) Business

CollaGenex Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and subsidiaries ,or the Company, is a specialty pharmaceutical
company currently focused on developing and marketing innovative proprietary medical therapies to the
dermatology market. As of December 31, 2006, the Company markets four prescription pharmaceutical
products to the dermatology market through their professional dermatology sales force and generate
revenues from four other prescription pharmaceutical products that the Company continues to sell to the
dental market. In May 2006, the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, or the FDA, granted the Company
marketing approval for Oracea™ for the treatment of inflammatory lesions (papules and pustules) of
rosacea in adult patients. Oracea is the first FDA approved, orally-administered, systemically-delivered
drug to treat rosacea. In July 2006, the Company launched Oracea to the U.S. dermatology community.

The Company’s marketed dermatology products are: Oracea; Pandel®, a prescription corticosteroid
the Company licensed from Altana, Inc. in May 2002; Alcortin™, a prescription topical antifungal steroid
combination; and Novacort™, a prescription topical steroid and anesthetic. In June 2005, the Company
executed a Promotion and Cooperation Agreement with Primus Pharmaceuticals Inc., or Primus, to
market Alcortin and Novacort to dermatologists.

Prior to the May 2005 introduction of a third party generic version of Periostat®, the Company’s
dental sales force detailed four prescription pharmaceutical products to the dental market. On May 20,
2005, the Company discontinued all domestic sales force and promotion activities for these products. The
Company currently still generates sales from these dental products, which all treat periodontal disease and
include the Company’s own product Periostat, as well as Atridox®, Atrisorb FreeFlow® and Atrisorb-D®,
or the Atrix Products, which are licensed from Atrix Laboratories, Inc. (now known as Tolmar Inc., a
subsidiary of Tecnofarma, S.A.). The Company had also sold a separately branded version of Periostat to
United Research Laboratories, Inc./Mutual Pharmaceutical Company, Inc., or Mutual, pursuant to a
License and Supply Agreement executed in April 2004 as part of a settlement of the Company’s
outstanding patent litigation with Mutual. As a result of the launch of a third party generic version of
Periostat in May 2005, Mutual ceased purchasing product from the Company during June 20053.

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the results of operations of the Company
and its majority-owned subsidiaries. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Short-term Investmenis

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less
to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalent investments are held at amortized cost, which approximates fair
value. All short-term investments have original maturity dates of between three months and one year. The
Company’s short-term investments are primarily comprised of commercial paper and government notes.
At December 31, 2006 and 2005, all of the Company’s short-term investments, carried at fair value, were
classified as available-for-sale with unrealized gains and losses included as a separate component of
stockholders’ equity. The accumulated net unrealized gain on short-term investments was $7 at
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COLLAGENEX PHARMACEUTICALS, INC,
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(dollars in theusands, except for per share amounts)

December 31, 2006 and the accumulated net unrealized loss on short-term investments was $4 at
December 31, 2005. Short-term investments consisted of the following at December 31, 2006 and 2005:

Gross Gross

2006 Amortized cost  unrealized gain  unrealized loss Fair value
Certificates of Deposit . . . . $ 7,196 $— $(1) $ 7,195
U.S. Agency Notes(1)..... 10,351 — 10,358
Commercial Paper........ 1,783 1 = 1,784
Total .vocvivnnninn... $19,330 58 $(1 $19,337
Gross Gross

2005 Amortized cost  unrealized gain  unrealized loss Fair value
Certificate of Deposit. ... $ 748 $— $— $ 748
U.S. Agency Notes(1). ..., 17,462 — @ 17,458
$18,210 $— 0 $18,206

(1) U.S. Agency notes are comprised of Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, Farmer Mac, Federal Farm Credit
and Federal Home Loan Bank. If held to maturity, these holdings allow the issuer to settle the
securities at a price no less than the amortized cost.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out
method. Critical accounting estimates and assumptions related to inventory carrying values are evaluated
periodically and consider the saleable quantities of inventory versus quantities of inventory on-hand.

The Company classifies direct manufacturing costs relating to inventory and samples manufactured in
advance of a new product launch as research and development expense until such time as it receives an
approval letter from the FDA for a new product. Following FDA approval of the product, the Company
capitalizes any inventory costs relating to that product that were not previously expensed.

Intangible Assets, Net

Intangible assets, which consist of acquired product rights and Oracea milestone fees paid post-FDA
approval are stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization is computed using the straight-line
method over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the products or the contract term for which such
rights have been licensed. Amortization of acquired product rights and Oracea milestone fees are charged
to cost of product sales.

The Company is required to test for asset impairment of acquired product rights and Oracea
milestone fees whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be
recoverable. The Company applies Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, or SFAS No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” in order to determine whether or not an
asset is impaired. This standard requires an impairment analysis when indicators of impairment are
present. When such indicators are present, the standard indicates that if the sum of the future expected
cash flows from the asset, undiscounted and without interest charges, are less than the carrying valuee, an
asset impairment must be recognized in the financial statements. The amount of the impairment is the
difference between the fair value of the asset and the carrying value of the asset,




COLLAGENEX PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(dollars in thousands, except for per share amounts)

In making future cash flow analyses of our intangible assets, the Company makes assumptions relating
to: (i) the intended use of the product and the expected future cash flows resulting directly from such use;
(if) generic competitor activities and regulatory initiatives that affect our products; and (iii) customer
preferences and expected gross to net discounts.

Equipment and Leasehold Improvements

Equipment and leasehold improvements, consisting of computer and office equipment, exhibit
equipment and leasehold improvements are recorded at cost. Depreciation and amortization are
calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets or the related lease
term, whichever is shorter, and are generally three to ten years. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance
are expensed as incurred.

Segment Information

The Company operates as one business that is managed by a single management team reporting to the
chief executive officer. The Company does not prepare discrete financial information with respect to
separate product or product candidate areas or by location and does not have separately reportable
segments.

During each of the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company’s total net revenues
were comprised of the following:

Year-ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

L] o7 PP 45% none none
Otherdermatology(1)... ... 25% 31% 17%
Dental ... e 28% 69% 83%
GrantreVENMUE ..o vt vt iiae e eeatae et ininanoaanrnna 29% none none

(1) Includes the Company’s estimate for Periostat prescriptions written by dermatologists.

Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, accounts receivable,
accounts payable, accrued expenses and preferred dividends payable approximate fair value because of the
short term nature of these instruments.

Share-Based Compensation

As part of the Company’s adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123
(revised 2004), Share-Based Payment, or SFAS No. 123R, as of January 1, 2006, the Company has
recognized the fair value of share-based compensation awards in the Company’s consolidated financial
statements using the modified prospective method. The Company applies the Black-Scholes option pricing
model to determine the fair value of stock options on the date of grant and estimates key assumptions that
are important elements in the model, such as the expected stock-price volatility and expected stock option
life. The Company’s estimates of these key assumptions and expected forfeiture rates are based on
historical data and judgment regarding market trends and factors. These estimates are not intended to
predict actual future events or the value ultimately realized by individuals who receive equity awards.
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COLLAGENEX PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(dollars in thousands, except for per share amounts)

Net Product Sales

The Company generally recognizes revenues for product sales upon shipment to wholesale customers,
net of estimated returns and estimates for chargebacks, applicable wholesale distribution fees and rebates
provided that collection was probable and no significant obligations remained. However, following the
launch of a third party generic competitor to Periostat in May 2005 and commencing with the second
quarter of 2005, the Company began recognizing Periostat sales revenue based on product sales to end-
users, which are estimated using prescription dispensing data generated by an independent prescription
tracking service, as well as on-hand inventory estimates in the distribution channel. The launch of generic
competition to Periostat resulted in increased product returns from the wholesale and retail channels.

The Company records sales discounts, allowances, rebates and returns upon recognizing product sales.
The Company only accepts returns of damaged or expired products. The return allowance, when
estimatable, is based on an analysis of the historical returns of the product and the Company considers
current end user demand and wholesale and retail inventory levels. If product returns are not estimatable,
the Company defers revenue recognition for all outstanding product in the wholesale and retail channel
that is subject to return. Chargebacks, wholesale distribution fees and rebates are based on an analysis of
the applicable agreements and historical experience. In addition, the Company also considers the volume
and price of the product in the channel, trends in wholesaler and retailer inventory levels, conditions that
might affect end-user demand (such as generic competition) and other relevant factors. Below details the
activity in the reserves mentioned above during the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005.

Cun_'e_nt
provision
related to
sales made Actual returns
Beginning  in the current  or credits in the  Ending
2006 Balance period current period Balance
Accounts receivable allowances:
Chargebacks . ....vvvrviin i $ 78 $1,702 $(1,707) $ 73
Cashdiscounts ............oiiiiiiininiinnan, 26 621 (533) 114
Total ..o e $104 $2.323 $(2,240) $187
Accounts payable/Accrued expenses:
Patientrebates ........oovitiiieinianieiats $ — $ 866 $ (788) $ 78
Product returns (excluding Periostat)(1)}.......... 98 496 (210) 384
Government rebates ................ ... ... 158 262 (340) 80
Wholesale distributionfees ..................... 79 639 {422) 296
Total. ..o e e $335 $2,263 $(1,760) $838
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COLLAGENEX PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(dollars in thousands, except for per share amounts)

Current
provision
related to
sales made Actual returns
Beginning  in the current  orcreditsinthe  Ending
2005 Balance period current period Balance
Accounts receivable allowances:
Chargebacks . ......coevviiiiiiiiiiiiiiianns $153 $1,467 $(1,542) $ 78
Cashdiscounts ............cveiviinenneaiinn, 104 485 (563) 26
Total. ..o s $257 $1,952 $(2,105) $104
Accounts payable/Accrued expenses:
Product returns (excluding Periostat)(1).......... $ 41 $ 141 $ (84 $ 98
Government rebates ... iaii e 226 946 (1,014) 158
Wholesale distributionfees ..................... 65 289 (275) 79
Total. ..o e $332 $1,376 $(1,373) $335

(1) The returns provision for Periostat at December 31, 2006 and 2005 amounts to $612 and $1,267,
respectively, and is comprised of a reserve for all estimated outstanding wholesale and retail inventory
subject to return, due to an inability to estimate returns. (see note above).

For new product launches, includingthe Oracea launch in July 2006, the Company’s policy is to
recognize revenue on a net prescription value basis using dispensing data generated by an independent
prescription tracking service until trade channel inventories are reduced to targeted stocking levels and the
Company has sufficient data to determine product acceptance in the marketplace which will enable the
Company to estimate product returns based on historical data of similar products. Net prescription value is
calculated by deducting estimates for chargebacks, wholesale distribution fees, patient rebates, government
rebates and any other launch discounts offered from the applicable gross sales value. When customer
inventories have been reduced to targeted wholesale and retail levels and new product acceptance can be
ascertained, the Company begins to recognize product sales upon shipment, net of discounts, rebates and
allowances, including a returns reserve allowance. During the fourth quarter of 2006, based on sales levels
and the prescription data related to the fourth quarter of 2006 and the number of units on hand in the
pipeline relative to the overall demand for the product, the Company began recognizing Oracea revenues
on a shipment basis, net of applicable discounts and allowances. Accordingly, Oracea revenues for the year
ended December 31, 2006 reflect revenue recognition on a shipment basis, net of applicable discounts,
rebates and allowances as the Company recognized, in the fourth quarter of 2006, approximately $2,800 in
previously deferred Oracea revenues.

During the third quarter of 2006, the Company launched Oracea to the U.S. dermatology community.
As part of such launch, the Company introduced a patient rebate program for Oracea prescriptions. Only
patients presenting the computer-coded card to their pharmacists were entitled to receive the rebate. In
accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 01-09, “Accounting for Consideration Given by a
Vendor to a Customer,” the Company has accounted for these patient rebates as a reduction of net product
sales on the Company’s Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2006.
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COLLAGENEX PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(dollars in thousands, except for per share amounts)

Contract and License Revenues

Related to license and contract revenues, non-refundable up-front fees are deferred and amortized to
revenue over the related performance period. The Company estimates the performance period based on
the specific terms of each collaborative agreement. The Company recognizes periodic payments over the
period that the Company performs the related activities under the terms of the agreements. Revenue
resulting from the achievement of milestone events stipulated in the agreements is recognized when the
milestone is achieved. Milestones are based upon the occurrence of a substantive element specified in the
contract or as a measure of substantive progress towards completion under the contract.

Pursuant to the Company’s Promotion and Cooperation Agreement, or the Promotion Agreement,
with Primus contract revenues for Alcortin and Novacort are fee-based arrangements where contract
revenue is earned as prescriptions are filled and recognized as a percentage of the gross profit earned by
Primus. The Company does not take title to the inventory sold by Primus under the Promotion Agreement.

Grant Revenues

During the fourth quarter of 2005, the Company received notice that a grant had been approved by
the National Institutes of Health, or NTH, to fund additional research by the Company and its
collaberators on the potent anti-inflammatory effects of incyclinide. The Company expenses such research
expenditures as they are incurred and recognizes grant revenue when earned for the portion of the
expenditures that are reimbursable by the NIH. The Company recognized $471 in grant revenues during
year ended December 31, 2006.

Advertising Cests

The Company records advertising costs as expense when incurred. Such amounts are charged to
selling, general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of operations. Advertising costs
for 2006, 2005 and 2004 were $692, $55 and $24, respectively.

Research and Development

Research and product development costs are expensed as incurred. Research and development
expenses consist primarily of personnel costs and funds paid to third parties for the provision of services
and materials for drug development, manufacturing and formulation enhancements, clinical trials,
statistical analysis and report writing and regulatory compliance costs, including governmental filing fees.

Costs to acquire in-process research and development projects and technologies which have not
achieved technical feasibility at the date of acquisition are expensed as research and development expense
as incurred.

Deferred Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. In estimating the Company’s
income tax provision, the Company recognizes the benefit of an uncertain tax position that the Company
has taken or expects to take on income tax returns filed if such tax positions is probable of being sustained.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences
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COLLAGENEX PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(dollars in thousands, except for per share amounts)

between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax
bases and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a
change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, the Company considers the likelihood that part or
all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. This assessment requires significant judgment and
estimates. The ultimate realization of the deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future
taxable income during the period in which those temporary differences become deductible. The Company
considers its history of losses, scheduled reversal of deferred tax assets and liabilities, tax planning
strategies and projected future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred tax asset items are
deductible. The Tax Reform Act of 1986 contains provisions that may limit the net operating loss and
research and experimentation credit carryforwards available to be used in any given year upon the
occurrence of certain events, including significant changes in ownership interest. The Company incurred
net losses for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 and uncertainty regarding the Company’s
future profitability has prevented the Company from reaching the “more likely than not” conclusion
required under the applicable literature to recognize deferred tax assets on the Consolidated Balance
Sheet.

Management Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Concentration of Credit and Other Risks

The Company invests its excess cash in money market funds with major U.S. financial institutions,
commercial paper and government notes. The Company has established investment guidelines focused on
protecting the safety and liquidity of this invested cash.

The Company currently contracts with a single source for the manufacturing of Oracea capsules and
Periostat tablets and has an agreement with a single company to supply the active ingredient in Oracea and
Periostat. A single company also provides all warehousing and distribution services to the Company.

During 2006, three distributors accounted for 44%, 31%, and 13% of net product sales, respectively.
Two distributors accounted for 39% and 35%, of gross accounts receivable balances as of December 31,
2006. During 2005, three distributors and Mutual accounted for 37%, 24%, 1295, and 22% of net product
sales, respectively. Three distributors accounted for 59%, 28%, and 8% of the gross accounts receivable
balances as of December 31, 2005. During 2004, three distributors and Mutual accounted for 33%, 29%,
19% and 14% of net product sales, respectively.

During the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, Periostat and Mutual’s branded version of
Periostat accounted for approximately 19%, 76%, and 88% of the Company’s total net revenues,
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(dollars in thousands, except for per share amounts)

respectively. During the year ended December 31, 2006, Oracea accounted for approximately 45% of the
Company’s total net revenues,

Net (Loss) Income Per Share

Basic (loss) income per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing net (loss) income allocable to common
stockholders by the weighted average shares of common stock outstanding. Net (loss) income allocable to
common stockholders includes dividends (including dividends in arrears—see Note 5) and other charges
on the preferred stock. Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution that could occur if outstanding options
and warrants were exercised and/or convertible securities were converted into common stock.

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company had outstanding stock options and stock warrants
that were not included in the calculation of diluted net loss per share allocable to common stockholders
because doing so would have been anti-dilutive. Such stock options and warrants to purchase 2,774,372
shares and 3,345,267 shares of common stock have been excluded from the computation of diluted EPS for
the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. During the years ended December 31, 2006,
2005 and 2004, the Company had approximately 2,353,000, 2,353,000, and 2,020,000 of potential common
stock shares from convertible preferred stock that were not included in the calculation of diluted net (loss)
income per share allocable to common stockholders because doing so would have been anti-dilutive. For
the year ended December 31, 2004, for diluted earnings per share there were common stock equivalents of
235,950 as a result of “in-the-money” stock options and warrants calculated using the treasury method.
Excluded from the computation of diluted EPS were 2,213,550 shares of “out-of-the-money” stock options
and warrants for the year ended December 31, 2004 as they were anti-dilutive,

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB)
No. 108, “Considering ihe Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Financial Misstaterments in
Current Year Financial Statements,” which expresses the Staff’s views regarding the process of quantifying
financial statement misstatements. Companies are required to quantify the impact of correcting all
misstatements, including both the carryover and reversing effects of prior year misstatements, on the
current year financial statements. The techniques most commoniy used in practice to accumulate and
quantify misstatements are generally referred to as the “rollover” (current year income statement
perspective) and “iron curtain” (year-end balance sheet perspective) approaches. The financial statements
would require adjustment when either approach results in quantifying a misstatement that is material, after
considering all relevant quantitative and qualitative factors. In the year of adoption (January 1, 2006 for
the Company), the misstatements previously considered immaterial under the Company’s previous method
of qualifying misstatements, that are material under SAB No. 108 may be corrected as an accounting
change by adjusting opening retained earnings rather than being included in the current vear statement of
operations. The adoption of SAB No. 108 did not have an impact on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements.

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or the FASB, issued Interpretation No. 48,
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—An Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109,” or FIN 48,
FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial
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(dollars in thousands, except for per share amounts)

statements and prescribes a threshold of more-likely-than-not for recognition of tax benefits of uncertain
tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 also provides related guidance on
measurement, derecognition, classification, interest and penatlties, and disclosure. Differences between the
amounts recognized in the financial statements prior to the adoption of FIN 48 and the amounts reported
after adoption will be accounted for as a cumulative-effect adjustment recorded to the beginning balance
of retained earnings.

The Company will adopt FIN 48 on January 1, 2007. Prior to the adoption of FIN 48, the Company’s
policy was to recognize tax benefits of uncertain tax positions only if it was probable that the position
would be sustained. Accordingly, the Company anticipates that certain accrued expenses for uncertain tax
positions will be reversed upon adoption of FIN 48 due to the lower recognition threshold. Based on the
analysis, it is estimated that accrued expenses will decrease in the amount of $945, and retained earnings
will increase by the same amount as of January 1, 2007 as a result of the adoption in FIN 48.

In November 2005, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position SFAS 123(R)-3, Transition Election Related
to Accounting for the Tax Effects of Share-based Payment Awards, or SFAS No. 123(R)-3, that provides an
elective alternative transition method of calculating the pool of excess tax benefits available to absorb tax
deficiencies recognized subsequent to the adoption of SFAS No. 123R to the method otherwise required
by paragraph 81 of SFAS No. 123R. The adoption of SFAS No. 123(R)-3 did not have an impact on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS Statement No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements”, or SFAS
157. SFAS 157 clarifies the definition of fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and
expands the disclosures on fair value measurements. SFAS 157 is effective for the Company beginning
January 1, 2008. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of SFAS 157 adoption on its consolidated
financial statemenis.

Reclassification

Certain prior year balances have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

(3) Composition of Certain Financial Statement Captions
Inventories

Inventories at December 31, 2006 and 2005 consist of the following:

2006 2005

L § (N =3y 7 | TR $ 978 § 77
WOTK-IN-PrOCESS. - . o v vttt e e tn b 339 —
Finished goods. ......cooiivii i 642 533
$1,959 $630

During the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company recorded charges to cost of product sales of
$257 for excess and short - dated inventories. During year ended December 31, 2005, the Company
recorded charges to cost of product sales of $1,020 for excess inventory of Periostat and Mutual’s branded

F-15



COLLAGENEX PHARMACEUTICALS, INC,
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(dollars in thousands, except for per share amounts)

version of Periostat. The charge resulted from decreased demand for Periostat and the termination of the
Company’s License and Supply Agreement with Mutual both of which resulted from the introduction of a
third party generic version of Periostat in May 2005.

Equipment and Leasehold Improvements

Equipment and leasehold improvements at December 31, 2006 and 2005 consist of the following:

2006 2005 Useful Life
Computer and office equipment. ....... $ 1,632 $1.309 3-5 years
Equipment under capital lease ......... 279 — 3 years
Exhibit equipment. ................... 173 97 5 years
Leasehold improvements. ............. Shorter of 10 years or
197 37 iease term

$ 2281 $1,493

Less: accumulated depreciation and
amortization. . ............... 0. (1,273)  (954)
$ 1,008 $ 339

Intangible Assets, Net
Intangible assets, net at December 31, 2006 and 2005 consist of the following:

December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005
Accumulated Accumulated
Gross Amortization Net Gross Amortization Net
Oracea milestone fees................. $1670 § (56) %1614 § — § — §—
Atrix acquired product rights........... 1,876 (1,608) 268 1,876 (1,340) 536
Total intangible assets................. $3.546  $(1,664) $1.882 31,876  $(1,340) $3536

In August 2001, the Company signed a license agreement with Atrix Laboratories, Inc. (now known as
Tolmar Inc.}, for the rights to market the Atrix Products in the United States. The Atrix acquired product
rights are being amortized, through December 2007.

Oracea milestone fees represent the Oracea formulation milestones paid post-FDA approval of
Oracea and are being amortized on a straight-line basis over a fifteen year period commencing in
July 2006.
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Amortization expense, which is included in cost of product sales, was $324, $628 and $585 in 2006,
2005 and 2004, respectively. Expected amortization of intangible assets is as follows:

2007 . et e $ 379

2008 . . e e 111

2009 . e 111

2010 L e 111

2011 and thereafter. ...t 1,170

Total .o e e $1,882
Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses at December 31, 2006 and 2005 consist of the following:

2006 2005
Payroll and related COSts. ....oovvriiiiiein i $3,041  $2,097
Research and development costs ..........ooovveiiiiiiininn, 1,257 739
ProducCt TELUITIS .+ .. oottt iiseretrnane s ansannsiasrrnnnnans 996 1,267
Foreign taxes (notes 2and 16) ...ttt 945 945
Sales and marketing COStS .....vvuuiinninn i 864 239
Professional and consultingfees. ...........cooveii it 132 232
State and franchiSe taXes . ... .civvirrr ittt i ey 161 110
Deferred FEVENMUE . ... oottt aneirnenraceeennanrraenrnranss 80 58
GoOVErnment TEDAtES . .. .. v vttt inrae e aranraanns 80 237
(97117-1 oAU U 18 4
RESUUCTULINE . .. oottt et eeama e saraate e enss — 96
TOtAL o ot ettt ettt e $7,574 $6,024

(4) Stockholders’ Equity—Common Stock

On February 14, 2002, the Company entered into an equity line arrangement under the terms of a
Common Stock Purchase Agreement with Kingsbridge Capital Limited. Pursuant to this agreement, the
Company was able, at its sole discretion and from time to time through February 13, 2003, to sell shares of
its common stock to Kingsbridge at a discount to market price, as determined prior to each such sale. The
equity line provided for the sale of up to $8,500 in registered shares of the Company’s common stock to
Kingsbridge. The equity line terminated pursuant to its terms on February 13, 2003 and, prior to such
termination, the Company issucd an aggregate of 151,522 shares of common stock for gross proceeds of
$1,266.

In connection with the consummation of such equity line arrangement with Kingsbridge Capital
Limited, in 2002 and pursuant to the terms of a warrant agreement executed by the Company, the
Company issued Kingsbridge a warrant to purchase 40,000 shares of its common stock at an exercise price
of $9.38 per share. The conversion price of the Company’s Series D Cumulative Convertible Preferred
Stock, or Series D Stock, was reduced to $9.89 as a result of the issuance of shares under the equity line

F-17




COLLAGENEX PHARMACEUTICALS, INC,
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

{dollars in thousands, except for per share amounts)

and the issuance of such warrant (see note 5). Such warrant is exercisable, and will expire on August 13,
2007, No warrants have been exercised and all 40,000 warrants are outstanding at December 31, 2006.

On May 29, 2002, the Company’s Board of Directors approved an Amended and Restated
Shareholder Protection Rights Agreement (the “Rights Agreement”). American Stock Transfer & Trust
Company is the rights agent under the Rights Agreement. Each Right, once exercisable, entitles the holder
to purchase from the Company one one-hundredth of a share of the Company’s Series A Participating
preferred stock at an exercise price of $65 per share. All Rights expire on September 26, 2007 unless
carlier redeemed. At December 31, 2006, the Rights were neither exercisable nor traded separately from
the Company’s common stock, and become exercisable only if a person or a group of affiliated or
associated persons has acquired, or obtained the right to acquire, beneficial ownership of 20% or more of
the voting power of alt outstanding shares of the Company’s common stock and in certain other limited
circumstances. Upon separation from the common stock, each Right will entitle the holder, other than the
acquiring person that has triggered such separation, to effectively purchase certain shares of the
Company’s common stock equal in market value to two times the then applicable exercise price of the
Right. If the Company is acquired in a merger or other business combination transaction, or 50% or more
of the Company’s assets or earning power are sold in one or more related transactions, the Rights will
entitle holders, upon exercise of the Rights, to receive shares of common stock of the acquiring or
surviving company with a market value equal to twice the exercise price of each Right.

On December 21, 2005, the Company entered into definitive agreements with institutional and other
investors to sell 2,900,000 shares of the Company’s common stock for an aggregate purchase price of
$29,000. On December 23, 2005, the Company closed on the first tier of the offering issuing 1,550,000
shares of common stock in exchange for net proceeds of $14,388 after deduciing approximately $1,069 in
placement agency fees and other offering expenses that were accrued by the Company at December 31,
2005. On January 6, 2006, the Company closed on the second tier of the offering issuing 1,350,000 shares of
common stock in exchange for $12,663 of net proceeds.

On November 21, 2006, the Company sold 3,500,000 shares of its common stock to institutional and
other investors for an aggregate gross purchase price of $45,500. The net proceeds of the offering were
approximately $42,500 after deducting the placement agency and financial advisory fees and all offering
expenses that were payable by the Company.

(5) Preferred Stock Agreements

The Company’s Board of Directors may, without further action by the Company’s stockholders, direct
the issuance and determine the rights, preferences and limitations of one or more series of shares of
preferred stock. The holders of preferred stock would normally be entitled to receive a preference
payment in the event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Company before any payment is
made to the holders of the common stock.

On May 12, 1999, the Company consummated a $20,000 financing through the issuance of 200,000
shares of Series D Stock, which generated net proceeds to the Company of approximately $18,500. OCM
Principal Opportunities Fund, L.P. (“OCM”) led the investor group, which also included certain then
current stockholders of the Company.
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On December 15, 2005, the Company executed a Restructuring and Exchange Agreement with each
of the holders of the Series D Stock pursuant to which the Series D stockholders agreed to effect an
exchange whereby the Company would exchange all 200,000 outstanding shares of Series D Stock for
200,000 shares of the Company’s Series D-1 Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, or Series D-1 Stock.
The Company recorded a non-cash charge to net (loss) income allocable to common stockholders on the
consolidated statement of operations of $3,680 related to this Exchange Agreement in the fourth quarter
of 2005.

On December 19, 2005, the Company filed a Certificate of Designations, Preferences and Rights of
the Series D-1 Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock with the Secretary of State of the State of
Delaware and on December 21, 2005, the Company exchanged all 200,000 outstanding shares of Series D
Stock for 200,000 shares of Series D-1 Stock. As of December 21, 2005, there were no outstanding shares
of Series D Stock.

Beginning May 12, 2002, the holders of Series D Stock were paid dividends in cash at a rate of 8.0%
per annum. Beginning May 12, 2005, the dividend rate, on the Series D Stock increases 100 basis points per
year. Dividends on the Series D Stock and Series D-1 Stock totaling $928, $1,727, and $1,600 were
declared in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. In January 2007, the Company declared $1,000 in dividends
on the Series D-1 Stock. Under US GAAP, dividends do not become a liability until declared. Accordingly,
the $1,000 declaration of dividends in January 2007 is not recorded as a liability in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2006. However, for purposes of calculating basic and
diluted EPS for the year ended December 31, 2006, on the consolidated statement of operations the $1,000
of cumulative preferred stock dividends in arrears are deductible from net loss in arriving at net loss
allocable to common stockholders. There were no amounts of cumulative preferred stock dividends in
arrears as of December 31, 2005.

Pursuant to the terms of the Series D-1 Stock, the holders of the Series D-1 Stock are entitled to
dividends payable in cash at a rate of 10.0% per annum, which are declared and paid every six months. The
annual dividend rate increases by 1.0% per annum each May 19 until the earlier of the date that all of the
shares of Series D-1 Stock are (i) converted into shares of common stock, or (i) redeemed.

The dividend payable to the holders of the Series D-1 Stock shall be doubled upon an event of default,
which is defined as, among other things, default on the payment of dividends, material breaches of that
certain Stock Purchase Agreement, dated March 19, 1999, by and among the Company, OCM, and the
purchasers set forth therein or that certain Stockholders and Registration Rights Agreement, dated
March 19, 1999, as amended, by and among the Company, OCM and the purchasers set forth therein, the
filing of a bankruptcy petition by or against the Company, acceleration of indebtedness in excess of $1,000,
a change in control, or the failure of the Company’s common stock 10 actively trade on the American Stock
Exchange, New York Stock Exchange or the Nasdaq Stock Market. The Company is entitled to pay the
default dividends in shares of common stock in the event the Company cannot pay cash dividends because
of a deficiency in cash or a prohibition under Delaware law, such that a cash payment would have a
material adverse effect on the Company.

The Series D Stock was convertible into common shares of the Company at an initial conversion price
of $11.00 per share, subject to adjustment (see below and note 7), at any time by the holder and under
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certain conditions by the Company. Each share of Series D-1 Stock is convertible, at the option of its
holder, at any time, into shares of common stock determined by dividing $100 by the conversion price,
which is currently $8.50 per share, for each share of Series D-1 Stock converted. The conversion price of
the Series D-1 Stock shall be adjusted, on a weighted average basis, upon the issuance of securities, options
or warrants at a price per share less than the then effective conversion price. In the event the Company
fails to declare dividends after the Company has been notified of an event of default for failure to pay
dividends, the holders of a majority of the Series D-1 Stock shall have the option to elect to have the
conversion price of the Series D-1 Stock reset to the then fair value of the Company’s common stock,
based upon the five-day trailing average closing price of the common stock (see below).

Each share of Series D-1 Stock is convertible, at the Company’s option, into shares of the Company’s
common stack, at the applicable conversion rate, at any time after the common stock has traded at a price
per share of at least 200% above the conversion price then in effect for 30 consecutive trading days,
provided that the shares of common stock to be issued upon such conversion are registered under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

The Series D-1 Stock is entitled to vote together with the holders of the Company’s common stock on
all matters to be voted on by the Company’s stockholders generally, on an as-converted to common stock
basis. The approval of the holders of at least 66 2/3% of the Series D-1 Stock is required for certain actions
by the Company, including creating or issuing stock ranking senior to the Series D-1 Stock. The approval
of the holders of at least a majority of the Series D-1 Stock is required for certain actions by the Company,
including paying dividends, other than those on the Series D-1 Stock, incurring indebtedness in excess of
$10,000 for working capital purposes, disposing of the Company’s assets, except in the ordinary course of
business, and acquisitions in any calendar year period in excess of $10,000.

In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, whether voluntary or
inveluntary, the holders of cutstanding shares of Series D-1 Stock shall be entitled to receive out of the
Company’s assets available for distribution to the Company’s stockholders, an amount equal to $100 per
share of Series D-1 Stock plus all cumulative dividends, whether or not earned or declared, which at
December 31, 2006 equaled $21,000.

Each outstanding share of Series D-1 Stock is redeemable, at the Company’s option as follows: at
$100 per share plus all accrued and unpaid dividends if less than 5% of the Series D-1 Stock originally
issued are outstanding and at $100 per share plus accrued and unpaid dividends in the event of a change in
control of the Company.
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(6) Acquisition

On December 14, 2005, the Company executed a Share Purchase Agreement (the “SansRosa
Purchase Agreement”), with SansRosa Pharmaceutical Development, Inc., (“SansRosa”), and all of the
existing shareholders of SansRosa (the “SansRosa Shareholders™), pursuant to which the Company
acquired 51% or 2,483,830 shares of the outstanding shares of capital stock of SansRosa in exchange for a
payment of $750. In 2006, the Company acquired additional shares of the outstanding stock in exchange
for a payment of $100, which was offset by the payment to a third party to acquire the related technology.
The Company’s total ownership in SansRosa at December 31, 2006 is 61%. For accounting purposes, the
2005 SansRosa acquisition was treated as the acquisition of in-process research and development. The cost
of the acquisition was charged to in-process research and development since the SansRosa technology has
not achieved technical feasibility at this time. SansRosa is the assignee of certain patent applications
covering methods for treatment of redness associated with rosacea and other skin disorders. Under the
SansRosa Purchase Agreement, the Company has the right to purchase all of the remaining shares of
SansRosa capital stock upon the achievement of specified regulatory and development milestones. If all
milestones are achieved and a patented product is developed and approved for sale, the Company will pay
the shareholders of SansRosa an additional $4,000 to $6,000. The agreement also provides for royalty
payments to the SansRosa Shareholders if future product sales incorporate the SansRosa technology.

The Company’s policy is to consolidate the accounts and results of operations of its majority-owned
subsidiaries, including SansRosa. SansRosa did not have significant operations during the period from
December 14, 2005 through December 31, 2006. Accordingly, no minority interest liability has been
accrued at December 31, 2006 or 2005. Since the minority shareholders have no obligation to fund the
ongoing losses of SansRosa, no minority interest receivable has been recorded.

(7 Licensing/Co-Promotion Agreements
MediGene AG

On December 18, 2006, the Company executed a License and Supply Agreement with MediGene AG
that became effective on January 1, 2007. Under this agreement, MediGene has the right to manufacture,
register, market and sell Oracea in the European Union, certain contiguous countries and Russia. The
Company was paid an up front non-refundable fee of $5,000 less applicable withholding taxes of
approximately $1,000, for which the Company expects to be reimbursed during 2007, upon execution of the
agreement and is entitled to an additional $7,500 in milestone payments upon the achievement of certain
annual sales thresholds. In addition, the Company will receive an agreed upon transfer price and a royalty
of 12% of annual net sales up to $10,000 and 15% of annual net sales in excess of $10,000.

Primus

In June 2005, the Company entered into the Promotion Agreement with Primus under which the
Company agreed to promote Alcortin, a prescription topical antifungal steroid combination, and Novacort,
a prescription topical steroid and anesthetic. Under the Promotion Agreement, the Company receives a

percentage of the gross profit arising from prescriptions written by dermatology professionals (or offices)
that result in sales of the products in the United States. The majority of marketing expenses, excluding
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sales force compensation and sample product costs, related to the promotion of the Primus products are
funded by Primus. The majority of product sample costs and ali sales force compensation are funded by the
Company. The Company is required to deliver a minimum amount of annual contract year sales
presentations to dermatologists. The Company has also agreed to achieve certain levels of product
prescriptions as measured on an annual contract year basis. On July 1, 2006, the Company and Primus
amended the Promotion Agreement. As a result of the amendment, sample expense and marketing costs,
excluding sales force compensation, are funded 60% by the Company and 40% by Primus. The Promotion
Agreement has an initial term that extends through June 30, 2008 and then renews automatically for
successive additional terms of one year unless earlier terminated pursuant to the terms of the agreement.

Restoraderm

On August 19, 2004, the Company executed an Asset Purchase and Product Development Agreement
(the “Purchase Agreement”) relating to its Restoraderm® technology that superseded its Co-operation,
Development and License Agreement executed in February 2002, Under the terms of the Purchase
Agreement, the Company purchased all right, title and interest in the inteilectual property and related
rights to the Restoraderm topical drug delivery system. The Company intends to develop Restoraderm for
dermatological applications. In accordance with the terms of the Purchase Agreement, the purchase price
of the assets will be up to $1,000 subject to the achievement of certain milestones. The Company is also
required to pay product development milestone payments in the aggregate amount of up to approximately
$2,000 and royalty and sublicense fees, if applicable, upon product commercialization. During the year
ended December 31, 2006, the Company incurred approximately $100 related to product development
milestones. During the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company incurred approximately $300 in
research and development expenses related to the asset purchase. During the year ended December 31,
2004, the Company incurred approximately $133 related to the product development milestones, which
was charged to research and development in the consolidated statements of operations. The purchase was
charged to in-process research and development since the Restoraderm technology had not achieved
technical feasibility when acquired.

Merck

Pursuant to a Co-Promotion Agreement the Company executed with Merck in September 1999, the
Company received the exclusive right to co-promote Vioxx®, a prescription strength non-steroidal
anti-inflammatory drug. The agreement provided for certain payments by Merck to the Company upon
sales of Vioxx to the dental community. On September 23, 2002, the Company executed an amendment,
extension and restatement of such Co-Promotion Agreement which expired on December 31, 2003. The
Company continued to earn nominal residual contract revenues through 2005 from this agreement. The
Co-Promotion Agreement also provides for indemnification of the Company by Merck against any claims
arising from manufacturing or design defects in the product or for which the Company, as the promoter of
the product, may be strictly liable as if it had been a seller of an inherently dangerous product. During the
years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Company recorded $153 and $237, respectively, in residual
contract revenues under this agreement. The Company did not receive any contract revenues from this
agreement during the year ended December 31, 2006, and will not earn any further contract revenue under
this agreement.
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Atrix

On August 24, 2001, the Company signed the Atrix License Agreement with Atrix, now known as
Tolmar Inc., to market the Atrix Products to the United States dental markets. Pursuant to the terms of
the Atrix License Agreement, among other things, Atrix will manufacture the dental products for the
Company at an agreed upon transfer price and will reccive royalties on future net sales of the products
each calendar year. The Company paid a $1,000 licensing fee to Atrix in 2001 to market such products in
the United States. The $1,000 license fee payment has been capitalized and is being amortized to cost of
product sales over the estimated useful life of the license on a straight-line basis (see below). On an annual
basis the Company was required to make minimum marketing expenditures to promote the products equal
to the lesser of $4,000 or 30% of the Company’s contribution margin, as defined in the agreement, for the
promotion of a specific Atrix product that the Company markets plus the lesser of $2,000 or 30% of the
Company’s contribution margin, as defined in the agreement, for the promotion of a separate Atrix
product that the Company markets. These annual requirements were met by the Company in 2004. The
Company terminated its domestic dental promotional activities in May 2005 and accordingly was no longer
required to meet the minimum annual spending on a going forward basis.

On February 22, 2006, the Company amended its Atrix License Agreement and has agreed to
continue to sell the Atrix Products through its distributor and pay an increased royalty on net sales and an
increased transfer price to Toimar Inc., but the Company is no longer required to make annual minimum
expenditures for advertising and promotional activities. Pursuant to the amended agreement, either party
may terminate the Agreement at any time, with or without cause, upon six (6) months prior written notice.
The amendment amends the term of the License and Marketing Agreement through December 31, 2007.
Accordingly, the Company has adjusted the estimated remaining useful life of Atrix product right asset
through December 31, 2007.

Altana

On May 24, 2002, the Company executed a Sublicense Agreement with Altana pursuant to which the
Company was granted the exclusive right to create improvements to, market, advertise, promote,
distribute, offer for sale and sell, in the United States and Puerto Rico, Pandel Cream, a mid-potency
topical corticosteroid indicated for the relief of mild-to-moderate inflammatory disorders of the skin such
as atopic dermatitis and psoriasis. Altana currently licenses such rights from Taisho Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd., a company organized and existing under the laws of Japan. The Company purchases all Pandel
products to be sold from Altana.

Pursuant to the terms of its agreement, the Company paid Altana an aggregate sublicense fee of
$1,700. At the time of payment, the sublicense fee was capitalized and amortized over its expected useful
life (fully amortized as of December 31, 2005). In addition, the Company is required to pay a royalty fee
equal to a percentage of the net sales of the product, if any. The agreement was amended in
November 2006 as it relates to its’ termination clauses. The agreement may be terminated by the Company
at any time, without cause, upon twelve months prior written notice; or upon certain events as defined in
the amended agreement. In addition, Altana may terminate the agreement at any time, without cause,
upon nine months prior written notice to the Company, provided that Altana shall not provide any such
notice prior to February 1, 2007 or upon certain events as defined in the amended agreement. On
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February 1, 2007, the Company received notice from Altana of its intent to terminate the agreement on
November 1, 2007. Under the terms of the agreement, the Company will receive $1,700 which represents
initial license fees paid to Altana. Such payment is due from Altana upon termination of the agreement.

(8) Line of Credit

In prior years, the Company had entered into a credit facility with Silicon Valley Bank. On October 9,
2006, the Company entered into a Sixth Loan Modification Agreement with Silicon Valley Bank. Pursuant
to the terms of this agreement, the expiration date of the credit facility has been extended to October 9,
2008. Under the amended credit facility, the Company may borrow up to the lesser of (i) $10,000 or
(ii) 80% of eligible receivables plus certain specified amounts, subject to reduction during the period
October 9, 2006 through December 31, 2007. The amount available to the Company is reduced by any
outstanding letters of credit that may be issued under the amended credit facility in amounts totaling up to
$2,000. As the Company pays down amounts under any letter of credit, the amount available to it under
the credit facility increases. The Company is not obligated to draw down any amounts under the amended
credit facility and any borrowings shall bear interest, payable monthly, at Silicon Valley Bank’s prime rate
or 8.25% at December 31, 2006. Under the Sixth Loan Modification Agreement, the Company is charged
an unused line credit fee of 0.25% per annum. During the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
the Company’s unused line of credit fee was $25, $20 and $9, respectively. In addition, under the amended
credit facility, the Company is subject to financial covenants that require the Company to maintain certain
minimum liquidity and tangible net worth levels on a quarterly basis. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005,
the Company had no borrowings outstanding.

(9) Share-Based Compensation

At December 31, 2006, the Company had one active stock-based employee compensation plan. Stock
option awards to employees are granted with an exercise price equal to the market value of the Company’s
common stock on the date of grant. The option awards generally have a term of ten years and generally
* vest over a period ranging from two to five years. Certain options are subject to accelerated vesting if there
is a change in control (as defined in the plan and change of control agreements, if applicable).

Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company accounted for stock-based employee compensation, including
stock options, using the method prescribed in Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees™ and related Interpretations. Under APB Opinion No. 25, no
compensation cost was recognized for stock options with an exercise price equal to the fair market value of
the Company’s common stock on the date of grant, and a disclosure was made regarding the pro forma
effect on net earnings (loss) and basic and diluted EPS assuming compensation cost had been recognized
in accordance with SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” or SFAS No.123.
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The following table illustrates the effect on net (loss) income and basic and diluted net (loss) income
per common share if the Company had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 to
stock-based employee compensation during the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 (option
forfeitures are accounted for as they occurred and no amounts of compensation expense have been
capitalized into inventory or other assets, but instead are considered period expenses in the pro forma
amounts):

In thousands, except per share data 2005 2004
Net (loss) income allocable to common stockholders - as reported . ..... $(24,212) $ 4,928
Add: Stock-based compensation included in the determination of net loss

ASTEPOTIEA .. ittt — —
Deduct: Total stock-based compensation expense determined under the -

fair value method forallgrants (1). ... oiiiinii it (2,796) (3,679
Net (loss) income allocable to common stockholders—pro forma....... $(27,008) § 1,249
Basic net (loss) income per share allocable to common stockholders:

As reported net {10ss) inCome . . .....ooveniii i $ (1.67) § 035

Pro forma net (1088) iNCOME. .. ... iiiiiniiin i, $ (1.87) $ 0.09
Diluted net income (loss) per share allocable to common stockholders:

As reported net {(I0S8) iNCOME . .. ... vvvvniiiinnii e $ (167) § 034

Pro forma net (loss) iNCOME. .. ... .ovuvrirnereinen v $§ (1.87) $ 0.09

(1) Amounts have not been taxed as a result of the Company’s net operating loss carry-forwards and
full valuation allowance.

On December 16, 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123R, which requires companies to measure and
recognize compensation expense for all stock-based payments at fair value. SFAS No. 123R eliminates
accounting for stock-based compensation transactions using APB Opinion No. 25, and generally requires
that such transactions be accounted for using prescribed fair-value-based methods. Effective January 1,
2006, the Company adopted SFAS No. 123R using the modified prospective method. Under APB Opinion
No. 25, no compensation expense related to stock option grants was recorded in the consolidated
statements of operations for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004. The results for prior periods
have not been restated. Under the “modified prospective” method, compensation costs are recognized for
all newly granted or modified stock-based awards and for the unvested portion of all awards granted prior
to the effective date.

The Company is using the straight-line method to recognize stock-based compensation expense. The
amount of stock-based compensation recognized during a period is based on the value of the awards that
vest in that period. SFAS No. 123R requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and revised, if
necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. The term “forfeitures” is
distinct from “cancellations” or “expirations” and represents only the unvested portion of the surrendered
option. The Company has applied an annual forfeiture rate of 2.8% to all unvested options as of the date
of adoption and for the year ending December 31, 2006. This analysis is re-evaluated quarterly and the
forfeiture rate is adjusted as necessary. Ultimately, the actual expense recognized over the vesting period
will only be for those shares that vest.
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During the year ending December 31, 2006, the Company recorded $3,286 of stock-based
compensation cost. This amount is composed of $423 related to research and development expenses and
$2,863 related to selling, general and administrative expenses. No amount of stock-based compensation
cost has been capitalized into inventory or other assets during the year ended December 31, 2006.

As a result of adopting SFAS No. 123R, the Company’s loss allocable to common stockholders for the \
year ended December 31, 2006, was $3,286 greater than if the Company had continued to account for |
stock-based compensation under APB Opinion No, 25. Basic and diluted loss per share allocable to
common stockholders for the year ended December 31, 2006, would have been $1.79 per share if the
Company had not adopted SFAS No. 123R, compared to reported basic and diluted loss per share
allocable to common stockholders of $1.98 per share.

Since inception, the Company has had four stock-based compensation plans. The Company issues new
shares of common stock upon the exercise of stock options. The only active plan at December 31, 2006 is
the 2005 Equity Incentive Plan, or the 2005 Plan.

The 1992 Stock Option Plan, as amended, or the 1992 Plan, provided for the granting of incentive and
nonqualified options to directors, employees and consultants to purchase up to 291,000 shares of the
Company’s common stock at an exercise price not less than the fair value on the grant date. Such options
are exercisable for a period of ten years from the grant date and generally vest over a four-year period. All
291,000 options available under the 1992 Plan were granted by 1996.

The 1996 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan, or the Non-Employee Director Plan, provided
for the granting of stock options to new non-employee directors to purchase up to 300,000 shares of
common stock at an exercise price not less than the fair value on the grant date. Such options are
exercisable for a period of ten years from the date of grant and generally vest over a five-year period. The
Non-Employee Director Plan expired in March 2006, Unissued shares under the Non-Employee Director
Plan were eligible to be reissued into other active Company stock-based compensation plans.

The 1996 Stock Option Plan, as amended, or the 1996 Plan, provided for the granting of incentive and
nonqualified options to employees and consultants to purchase up to 3,000,000 shares of the Company’s
common stock at an exercise price not less than the fair value on the grant date. Such options are
exercisable for a period of ten years from the grant date and generally vest over a two-to-five-year period,
although vesting for options granted to certain Company officers is subject to acceleration under certain
circumstances, as these options are performance-based. The 1996 Plan expired in March 2006, at which
time all unissued options were rolled over to the 2005 Plan.

The 2005 Plan provides for the issuance of incentive and nonqualified options, restricted stock awards,
restricted stock units and other stock-based awards, including the grant of stock appreciation rights to
employees, officers, directors, consultants, advisors, and other service providers to purchase shares of the
Company’s common stock at a price per share, for the incentive options, not less than the fair value of a
share of the Company’s common stock on the grant date. The number of shares of common stock that can
be issued pursuant to the 2005 Plan is 1,000,000 shares plus the rollover of 476,555 remaining shares of
common stock reserved for issuance under the 1996 Plan upon its expiration in March 2006. At
December 31, 2006, stock options were only available for issuvance under the 2005 Plan. Such options are
exercisable for a period of ten years from the grant date and generally vest over a five-year period. At
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December 31, 2006, there were 889,155 shares of common stock available to be granted under the 2005
Plan,

Certain options granted in 2003 are being amortized at a rate that is accelerated versus the contractual
vesting period of such options as these options are performance-based and it is anticipated that the
performance criteria will be met prior to straight-line vesting.

In May 2006, the Company accelerated the vesting of certain options held by a former member of the
Company’s Board of Directors, Accordingly, a charge of $92 was recorded for the year ended
December 31, 2006 to reflect the fair value of such options on the date of modification.

The following table summarizes activity under all stock option plans for the years ended December 31,
2006, 2005, and 2004:

2006 2005 2004
Weighted-average fair value of options granted per share.......... $ 7.70 $420 $ 6.79
Intrinsic value of options exercised. . .........ocviiiiiiiin $1,198 $358 $1,887

At December 31, 2006, the value of the unvested portion of all outstanding stock-related awards was
$6,822 which the Company expects to amortize and recognize as compensation expense over the weighted-
average service period of approximately 3.0 years.

The amount of cash received during the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 from the
exercise of options was $2,521, $579, and $2,352, respectively. No related tax benefit from the exercise of
such options was realized as a result of the Company’s net operating loss carryforwards and full valuation
allowance.

The fair values of the options granted during the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 were
determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, which incorporates various assumptions. The
risk-free rate of interest for the average contractual life of the option is based on U.S. Government
Securities Treasury Constant Maturities. Expected volatility is based on the historical daily volatility of the
Company’s common stock. The expected life is determined using the short-cut method permitted under
Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107, Share-Based Payment. The expected dividend rate yield is zero because
the Company currently does not pay or expect to pay dividends to common stockholders. The following are
the weighted average assumptions used during the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004:

2006 2005 2004

Expected life inyears ...........coieeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie 650 612 7.02

Risk-free IMtEresSt rate . . ...y vee v iiaaane e e aans 4.63% 4.05% 3.87%
VOlatility . ..o 69% 3% 80%
Expected dividend yield ........ ... —% —% —%
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The Company has granted stock options to officers, directors and employees as follows:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Number of Average Remaining Aggregate
Shares Subject Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
to Issuance Price Term Value ($000)
Outstanding at January 1,2004 . ........ 3,433,004 $ 972
Granted.........coiie i 744,007 9.12
Cancelled. .. ...... ... it (551,154) 10.95
Exercised........... .o, (354,634) 6.19
Outstanding at December 31, 2004. . .... 3,271,223 $ 9.76
Granted . .......... ...t 482,755 6.20
Cancelled. ................ ... ... (329,791) 10.40
Exercised............................ (118,920) 4.88
QOutstanding at December 31, 2005.. .. .. 3,305,267 $ 935
Granted ............................. 510,500 11.40
Cancelled.............c..c.oiiian, (50,250) 9.64
Exercised.................. .o (286,927) 8.79
Outstanding at December 31, 2006. .. ... 3,478,590 $ 9.69 5.95 years $14,888
Unvested at December 31,2006 ........ 1,373,428 $ 9.31 8.20 years $ 6,400
Exercisable at December 31,2006 ...... 2,105,162 $ 994 4.51 years $ 8,484
The Company had the following stock options available for exercise:
Weighted Average Weighted Number of Aggregate
Remaining Average Shares Intrinsic Value
Contractual Term  Exercise Price  Exercisable {$000)Y
December 31,2006 .............. 4.51 $ 9.94 2,105,162 $ 8,484
December 31,2005 .............. 4.50 $10.13 1,935,084 $ 3,754
December 31,2004 .............. 4.23 $ 7.35 1,789,962 N/AW

(1) The aggregate intrinsic value on this table was calculated based on the positive difference
between the closing sales price of the Company’s common stock on the balance sheet date and
the exercise prices of the underlying options. The intrinsic value of options exercisable at
December 31, 2004 is not applicable as a result of the weighted average exercise price of such
options exceeding the closing sale price of the Company’s common stock on December 31, 2004,
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(10) Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

Current 2006 2005 2004
Federal .............ooiiiiiiiiiiu $— $— §22
Foreign......oooiiiiiiinonenniin i an — — 945
State ... - = —
$— 8= 8967

Reconciliations of the income tax expense from the Federal statutory rates for 2006, 2005 and 2004
are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

Effective Rate Reconciliation 2006 2005 2004
Pretax income at statutory rates ........... $(11,368) (34.0)% $(6,393) (34.0)% $ 2,548 34.0%
Adjustments relating from:
Foreign income taxed at different rates..... 9 01
State taxes, net of federal benefit .. ........ — — — —_
Stock-based compensation................ 583 1.7 — —
Other permanent differences and

AGJUSLMENTS . . oo e 750 23 63) (0.3) 87 12
Increase (decrease) in valuation allowance . . 10,035 30.0 6,456 343 (1,677) (22.4)
Expected tax eXpense. ..........ooveen . $§ — $ —%s$ — 8% —%§ 967 129%

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets
at December 31, 2006 and 2005 are presented below:

2006 2005
Deferred tax assets:
Accumulated depreciation and amortization. ............. $ 657 § 526
Net operating loss carryforwards ................oooinai 35,408 26,163
Tax credit carryforwards ... 1,052 1,043
Accrued eXpPenses .. ...t 1,714 836
Deferredrevenue ... i 260 488
Total gross deferred assets ...........coovveieninenn, 39,091 29,056
Less valuation allowance .. .......ccvvvnviarvnnenananens (39,091) (29,056)
Net deferred taxes. . ..o vvveneeeniienenenanannns $ — § -
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In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely
than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized, The ultimate realization of
deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which
temporary differences are deductible and carryforwards are available. Due to the uncertainty of the
Company’s ability to realize the benefit of the deferred tax assets, the net deferred tax assets are fuily offset
by a valuation allowance at December 31, 2006 and 2005.

The net change in the total valuation allowance for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 were
increases of $10,035 and $6,456 respectively, related primarily to the increase in net operating losses in
2006 and 2005. At December 31, 2006, the Company had approximately $105,000 of Federal and $42,000
of state net operating loss carryforwards available to offset future taxable income for tax reporting
purposes. The Federal net operating loss carryforwards will begin to expire in 2010. The state net
operating losses have begun to expire and will continue to expire through 2026, if not utilized. Included in
the Company’s net operating loss carryforward are deductions relating to the exercise of stock options in
the amount of $9,100, which tax benefit will be credited to additional paid-in capital to the extent such tax
assets are realized in the future. The Company also has research and development tax credit carryforwards
of approximately $893 available to reduce Federal income taxes which begin expiring in 2007.

Section 382 and Section 383 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 subjects the future utilization of
net operating losses and certain other tax attributes, such as research and development credits, to an
annual limitation in the event of an ownership change, as defined. Due to the Company’s previous equity
transactions, a portion of the Federal net operating losses and tax credits of the Company are subject to an
annual limitation of approximately $3,800. To the extent that any single-year limitation is not utilized to
the full amount of the limitation, such unused amounts are carried over to subsequent years until the
earlier of its utilization or the expiration of the relevant carryforward period. As of December 31, 2006,
approximately $94,000 is immediately available to offset future taxable income. The annual net operating
loss utilization may be further limited if additional changes in ownership occur. The Company is currently
evaluating such further limitations that could result from the December 2005, January 2006 and
November 2006 common stock sales of an aggregate of 6,400,000 shares of common stock. In addition to
the section 382 and 383 limitations, the state net operating loss carryforwards are subject to a $2,000
annual limitation for 2006 and the greater of 12.5% of taxable income or $3,000 for tax years after 2006.

(11) Technology License

At the time of its formation in 1992, the Company entered into an agreement with the Research
Foundation of the State University of New York at Stony Brook (“SUNY”) whereby the Company
received an option to acquire a technology license. The Company’s option to acquire the license was
exercised in 1995 and remains in effect for a period not to exceed twenty years from the date of the first
sale of product incorporating the technology under license or the last to expire of the licensed patents in
each country. The Company is required to pay all patent fees and related legal costs under the license, as
well as to support certain additional research efforts. In addition, the Company is liable to SUNY for
annual royalty fees based on net Oracea and Periostat sales, if any, as defined in the agreement. Legal
costs incurred by the Company in defending the patents underlying the technology license are deducted
from royalties paid to SUNY (See note 15). A minimum annual royalty of $50 per year is required for the
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duration of the technology license. The Company incurred royalty expense (recorded within cost of sales)
for this technology of $498, $899, and $1,933 in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

(12) Sales Force Restructuring

On May 16, 2005, the Company announced the restructuring of its sales force following the FDA’s
approval of a third party generic version of Periostat. As a result of the restructuring, the Company ceased
all dental promotional activities. The Company incurred a $1,184 restructuring charge during the year
ended December 31, 2005. Of this charge, $813 related to employee severance costs while the remaining
portion was primarily related to the write-off of tangible assets and payments due under an operating lease
associated with the Company’s dental sales and marketing activities that could no longer be utilized by the
Company. As of December 31, 2006 all of these costs have been paid by the Company.

On April 22, 2004, the Company announced the restructuring of its pharmaceutical sales organization
into dedicated dental and dermatology sales forces. The Company incurred a $348 restructuring charge
during the year ended December 31, 2004. As of December 31, 2003, all of these costs have been paid by

the Company.

(13) Other Commitments and Contingencies

During 2006, the Company entered into a capital lease covering certain computer equipment that
expires in 2009. At December 31, 2006, the gross amount of computer equipment and related accumulated
amortization recorded under capital leases were $279 and $39, respectively. Amortization of assets held
under capital leases is included with depreciation expense. The Company also has several noncancelable
operating leases, primarily for office space and automobiles, that expire over the next three years.

Future minimum lease payments under noncancelable operating leases (with initial or remaining lease
terms in excess of one year) and future minimum capital lease payments as of December 31, 2006 are:

Year ending December 31: Capital Leases  Operating Leases
2007 e $105 $ 955
2008 .t 105 903
2000 . e 67 541

Total minimum lease payments .............. $277 $2,399
Less amount representing interest............ _ 27
Present value of capital lease payments ....... $250

Expenses under operating leases including restructuring charges, for the years ended December 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004 totaled $875, $546 and $520, respectively.
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Change in Control Agreements

The Company entered into change of control agreements, or the Existing Agreements, with each of
the following officers, collectively referred to as the Officers: Colin W. Stewart (December 8, 2003), Nancy
C. Broadbent (September 18, 2002), David F. Pfeiffer (September 18, 2002), Klaus Theobald (February 1,
2004), Andrew K. W. Powell (September 23, 2004) and Greg Ford (August 9, 2004).

Under the Existing Agreements, in the event the employment of an Officer was terminated as a result
of an Involuntary Termination within 24 months of a Change of Control, each as defined in the Existing
Agreements, the Officers were entitled to receive, among other things, (i) a lump sum payment of 1.5 times
base salary and 1.5 times the average bonus paid for the three fiscal years prior to the Termination Date, as
defined in the Existing Agreements, (ii) health coverage and benefits for a period of 24 months and
(iii) certain outplacement/administrative support for a period of 18 months. In addition, under the Existing
Agreements, if a Change of Control occurred while Ms. Broadbent or Messrs. Stewart, Pfeiffer, Theobald,
Powell or Ford was employed by the Company, regardless of whether their employment relationship with
the Company continues following such Change of Control, then all stock options granted to these
individuals prior to the Change of Control would become fully vested and exercisable as of the date of the
Change of Control to the extent such stock options were outstanding and unexercisable at the time of such
termination.

On October 16, 2006, the Company entered into a new change of control agreement with Mr, Stewart,
or the Stewart Agreement, and a new form of change of control agreement with each of the remaining
Officers, such form referred to as the Management Agreement, together with the Stewart Agreement, the '
Agreements, which supersede the Existing Agreements.

The Agreements contain the above-described provisions of the Existing Agreements, except that, in
the event the employment of an Officer is terminated as a result of an Involuntary Termination within 24
months of a Change of Control (i) the Stewart Agreement provides that the lump sum payment will be 2.5
times base salary and 2.5 times the average bonus paid for the three fiscal years prior to the Termination
Date and (ii) the form of Management Agreement provides that the lump sum payment will be 2 times
base salary and 2 times the average bonus paid for the three fiscal years prior to the Termination Date.

In addition, each of the Agreements provides for an additional payment if the Officer would be
subject to an excise tax, interest or penalty based on a payment provided for in the applicable Agreement.

Other Commitments

On June 10, 2002, the Company executed a Development and Licensing Agreement with Supernus
Pharmaceuticals, Inc., or Supernus (successor in interest to Shire) pursuant to which the Company was
granted an exclusive worldwide license (including the right to sublicense) to use Supernus technology and
patents to develop prescription products for the treatment of various inflammatory disorders. Under the
agreement, certain product development functions will be performed for the Company by Supernus. The
Company has committed to pay Supernus milestone payments in cash or, at its option, in a combination of
cash and our common stock, upon the achievement of certain clinical and regulatory milestones. For
rosacea-indicated development, these future payments could total up to $1,000 in the aggregate and relate
primarily to international approval and international commercialization of Oracea. Through December 31,
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2006, the total milestone payments made to Supernus related to Oracea were $2,700 of which $1,700 has
been capitalized. Under the Development and Licensing Agreement with Supernus, the Company must
also pay Supernus royalties based on a percentage of net sales of any products utilizing any part of the
licensed technology.

In December 2003, Brian Gallagher, Ph.D., the Company’s former chairman, chief executive officer
and president, left the Company and until December 2005, Dr. Gallagher acted as a consultant to the
Company. The Company incurred $304 and $324, respectively, in consulting fees to Dr. Gallagher in each
of the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004.

Other Matters

As described in note 7, the Company has committed to make potential future “milestone” payments
to third parties as part of the Company’s in-licensing and development programs primarily in the area of
research and development agreements, Payments generally become due and payable only upon the
achievement of certain developmental, regulatory and/or commercial milestones. Because the achievement
of these milestones is neither probable nor reasonably estimable, the Company has not recorded a liability
on its consolidated balance sheet for any such contingencies.

The Company is involved in various other claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of
business at December 31, 2006. In the opinion of management, the ultimate disposition of these matters
will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of
operations, or liquidity.

{14) Legal Settlements and Proceedings
IVAX and CorePharma

On October 1, 2004, the Company filed a complaint for patent infringement against IVAX
Pharmaceuticals Inc., or IVAX, and CorePharma LLC, or CorePharma, in the United States District
Court for the Eastern District of New York. In its complaint, the Company alleged that the submission of
abbreviated new drug applications by each of IVAX and CorePharma for 20 mg tablets of doxycycline
hyclate infringed United States Patent RE 34,656, for which the Company is the exclusive licensee. The
Company also alleged that any manufacture, importation, marketing and sale of generic 20 mg tablets of
doxycycline hyclate by IVAX and CorePharma would infringe the RE 34,656 patent. The Company sought
an injunction preventing IVAX and CorePharma from introducing 20 mg tablets of doxycycline hyclate in
the United States. The injunction was denied by the Court on June 16, 2005, The Company, [IVAX and
CorePharma have since agreed not to pursue litigation on the merits of the Company’s patent
infringement claims of the counterclaims alteged by IVAX and CorePharma. On May 10, 2006, the Court
in the Eastern District of New York entered a Stipulated Order of Dismissal with Prejudice as to the
matters at issue with CorePharma, and on September 20, 2006 a similar order was entered with respect to
IVAX.
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In addition to the above proceedings, the Company is involved in, or has been involved in, arbitrations
or various other legal proceedings that arise from the normal course of business. The Company cannot
predict the timing or outcome of these claims and other proceedings. At December 31, 2006, the Company
is not involved in any arbitration and/or other legal proceedings that it expects to have a material adverse
effect on the business, financial condition, results of operations or liquidity of the Company. All legal costs
are expensed as incurred.

(15) Legal Expenses to Defend Periostat Patents

Under the Company’s license agreement with SUNY covering Periostat and Oracea, the Company is
entitled to deduct costs incurred to defend its patents, including the $2,700 in settlement payments to
Mutual and West-Ward, from current and future royalties due to SUNY on net sales of products based on
the SUNY technology. During the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, the Company incurred
$23, $1,100, and $4,116 (which included the $2,000 Mutual settlement) in legal defense, litigation, and
settlement costs, respectively. The Company deducted $498, $899, and $1,933, from royalties earned by
SUNY during the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively (see note 11). The
cumulative legal patent defense, litigation and settlement costs incurred during the litigation period
throngh December 31, 2006 exceed the amount of the royalties payable to SUNY by $3,666. These excess
amounts, which have been expensed, will be available to offset future royalties earned by SUNY, if any, on
net sales of products based on the SUNY technology.

{(16) Sale of U.K. and European Dental Assets

On November 3, 2004, CoilaGenex International Ltd (“CIL”}, a wholly-owned U.K. subsidiary of the
Company, sold its U.K. and European dental assets to Alliance for net proceeds of $2,980. This agreement
provided for the sale by CIL to Alliance of certain trademark rights, U.K. and European governmental
marketing authorizations, distribution agreements and other intangible assets relating to the sale or
potential sale of Periostat in the UK., Europe, Israel, South Africa, New Zealand and Australia. The
agreement also granted Alliance an option to acquire a license to register and market Periostat-MR™, a
once-daily, modified release form of Periostat, for adult periodontitis in the same territories. The .
Company has retained all rights to Periostat-MR for all other clinical indications. The Company also |
entered into a Supply Agreement with Alliance pursuant to which the Company will supply Periostat in
bulk tablet form to Alliance at a negotiated transfer price.

The Company recorded net proceeds of $2,980 from the sale during the year ended December 31,
2004. The net proceeds represent the $3,300 payment from Alliance less professional fees incurred in
connection with the transaction. As a result of the transaction, the Company also recognized $96 in
previously deferred license revenues during the year ended December 31, 2004. In addition to these
revenues, the Company also recognized $223, $74 and $74 in net product sales related to bulk shipments of
Periostat to Alliance during each of the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

As part of this sale in 2004, the Company recorded a liability of $945 within accrued expenses for
anticipated U.K. income taxes due on this sale. As described in note 2, the Company adopted FIN 48 on
January 1, 2007. As a result of the adoption, this liability was reversed on January 1, 2007 as the threshold
for this tax uncertainty was above more-likely-than not. On January 19, 2007, the Company received a
notice from the U.K. taxing authorities saying that no changes were needed to the Company’s tax return
which means that no additional taxes were due rélated to this transaction.
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(17) 401(k) Salary Reduction Plan

In January 1995, the Company adopted a 401(k) Salary Reduction Plan (the “401(k) Plan”} available
to all employees meeting certain eligibility requirements. The 401(k) Plan permils participants to
contribute up to 15% of their annual salary, as defined, not to exceed the limits established by the Internal
Revenue Code. All contributions made by participants vest immediately in the participant’s account.
During the year ended December 31, 2004 the Company made a discretionary contribution of $100 to the
401(k) Plan. In 2005, the 401(k) plan was amended to allow an employer sponsored matching contribution
of 20% on each dollar for the first 6% of the compensation deferred by the participant. The Company
made matching contributions of $92 and $78 during the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005.

(18) Related Party Transactions

A current member of the Company’s Board of Directors is also a 1.0% holder of the Company’s
Series D-1 Stock which was exchanged for shares of Series DD Stock in connection with the execution of the
Restructuring and Exchange Agreement in December 2005 (See note 5).
(19) Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

The tables below summarize the Company’s unaudited quarterly operating results for 2006 and 2005:

Three months ended
March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,

2006 2006 2006 2006
Total FEVEIMUES . ..o v vttt tiinannnaennnnns $3722 $§ 3,792 $ 5633 $13,226
Gross margin on product sales. ...l 2,449 2,261 3,663 10,600
NEELOSS. .+ e oo et et et e i s aeas (8,852) (9,877) (9,875) (4,830)
Net loss aliocable to common stockholders........... (9,316)  (10,341)  (10,375) (5,330)
Basic and diluted net loss per share allocable to
common stockholders(1) ..................ooil $ (0.54) $§ (0.59) $ (059) $ (0.28)

Adad

Three months
March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,

2005 2005 2005 2005

Total FEVENUES .\ vvv et iieveei s anaaican e $12,035 $ 6917 $ 4,500 $ 2,953
Gross margin on product sales. ...l 9,371 5,17 3,446 1,863
NEt 1SS, - o e it (2,058)  (5,415) (4,924) (6,408)
Preferred stock restructuring charge ................. — —_ — (3,680)
Net loss allocable to commeon stockholders............ (2,458)  (5,842) (5,378) (10,534)
Basic and diluted net loss per share allocable to

common stockholders(1) ...l $ (017) $ (041) $ (0.37) $ (0.72)

(1) Quarterly figures do not sum to annualized figure due to the quarterly EPS computation being done
independently,
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(20) Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Years Ended December 31,
2006 _2005 2004
Supplemental schedule of non-cash investing and financing activities:

Accrued liability for licenses ...............cciiiiiiiiiiiiiii i, §— 8§ — 3§15
Accrued liabilities for in-process research and development licenses . ... ... $50 § — §—
Accrued liabilities for leasehold improvements .......................... $70 § — §—
Accrued liabilities for capital leases . ..............c.civiiiiii i $250 § — § —
Preferred stock restructuring charge (Seenote 5) ................ooonit. $§ — $3680 § —
Accrued liability for commeon stock offering fees (Seenote 4) ............. $ — $1,069 § —
Cash dividends declared but not paid on preferred stock.................. $ — § 900 $800
Cash paid for income taxes. . .......... ... oot $§— $ — §25
Cash paid forinterest ....... ... .. . . i i $15 § — §$—
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Balance at the

Beginning of Balance at the
Description . Period Additions Deductions End of Period
A ts Ch d t
Receivable Statersent of
Allowances: Operations
2006 -+ v ee e e e et $104 $2323(1)  $2,240(2) $187
2005 L i e e $257 $1,952(1) $2,105(2) $104
2004 oo $359 $2,580(1)  $2,681(2) $258

(1) Amounts are recognized as a reduction from gross sales.

(2) Amounts represent chargebacks and cash discounts processed.
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Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative total stockholder return on our common stock with the
cumulative total return on The NASDAQ Composite Index and The NASDAQ Biotechnology Index
(capitalization weighted) for the period beginning on December 31, 2001 and ending on the last day of our
last completed fiscal year.
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Among CollaGenex Pharmaceuticals, Inc., The NASDAQ Composite Index
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Base
Period

December 31, June30, December 31, June3d, December3l, June30, December3l, June3d, December3l, June30, December3i,
200 2062 2002 2003 2003 2004 2004 2005 2005 2006 2006

$100.00 $91.36 $117.36 $163.70  $13741  $11605 § 9062 5 9395  $14901 $14790  §172.47

$100.00 $77.39 $ 6885 § 8140 $101.86 $10498 $11216 B106.10 $11532  $il4.56  $127.52
$100.00 $60.62 $ 6208 5 8549 $ 9027 §$ 9462 § 9908 $ 9247 S111.81  $10288  $110.06

{1)  Graph assumes $100 invested on December 31, 2001 in our common stock, The NASDACQ Composite index and The NASDAQ Biotechnology
Index (capitalization weighted).

{2)  Total return assumes reinvestment of dividends.

(3)  Year ended December 31.
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Corporate Information

CollaGenex Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
41 University Drive, Suite 200
Newtown, PA 18940

Tel: 215 579 7388

Fax: 215 579 8577

Email: cgpi@cellagenex.com
Internet: www.collagenex.com

Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm

KPMG LLP

1601 Market Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103
Tel: 267 256 7000

Safe Harbor

%

CoLLAGENEX
PHARMACEUTICALS

Legal Counsel

Wilmer Cutler Pickering Hale and Dorr LLP
60 State Street

Boston, MA 02109

Tel: 617 526 6000

Transter Agent

American Stock Transfer
& Trust Company

59 Maiden Lane

New York, NY 10007

Tel: 212 936 5100

Annual Meeting

The Annual Meeting of Stockholders

will be held at 8:30 a.m. on Wednesday,
May 23, 2007 at the Philadelphio Marriott,
1201 Market Street, Philadeiphia, PA.

Stockholder Inquiries

Questions regarding stock transfer
requirements, lost certificates and
changes of address should be directed 1o
the transfer agent as listed. Other stock-
holder or invesior inquiries, including
requests for our filings with the U.S.
Securities ond Exchonge Commission,
should be directed to Investor Relations af
the Company's address or phone number
and SEC filings are available on the

Company’'s web site at www.collogenex.com,

The Company’s Common Stock is traded on the NASDAG Global
Market under the symbol CGPI, As of March 1, 2007, there were
approximately 87 holders of record of the Company’s common
stock, which do not include stockholders whose common stock
is held in street name. The Company hos never declared or
paid a cash dividend on its common stock.

The following table sets forth the high and low last sale prices
per share price for our common stock for each of the quarters
in the period beginning January 1, 2005 through December 31,
2006 as reported on the NASDAQ Global Market.

2006 2005
High Low High Low
March 31 514.80 $1.27 87.52 54.50
June 30 514.67 510.52 $7.61 5399
September 3C 513.22 $8.52 59.95 5715
December 31 $14.65 $11.35 $12.07 $8.50

Statements contained or incorporated by reference in this Annual
Report that are not based on histerical fact are "forward-looking
staternents” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation
Referm Act of 1995, Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, ond Section 21E of the Exchange Act. These forward-
looking siatements regarding future events and our future results
are based on current expeclations, eslimaies, forecas!s and
projections, and the beliefs and assumptiens of our management.
We cannot assure investors that our expectations and assumptions
will prove to have been correct. important factors could couse our
actual results to differ materially from those indicated or implied

by forwarg-looking statements. Such factors that cobld couse or
contribute ta such differences include those facters discussed in
our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2006, under the section “Risk Factors” as well os other documents
that may be filed by us from time to time with the Securities ond
Exchange Comsmission. We undertake no intention or chligation

to update or revise any forword-looking statements, whether

as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.
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